Public Document Pack

COTSWOLD

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Thursday, 17 June 2021

Tel: 01285 623210/623236
e-mail — democratic@cotswold.gov.uk

CABINET MEMBER FOR CLIMATE CHANGE AND FORWARD PLANNING
DECISION-MAKING MEETING

A meeting of the Cabinet Member for Climate Change and Forward Planning Decision-Making
Meeting will be held remotely on Friday, 25 June 2021 at 10.00 am.

V2

V4l

I/

A
*t A~

N

Rob Weaver
Chief Executive

To: Members of the Cabinet Member for Climate Change and Forward Planning Decision-Making
Meeting
(Councillors Rachel Coxcoon)

Recording of Proceedings — The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Cabinet, and
Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-recording.
Photography is also permitted.

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the
Committee Administrator know prior to the date of the meeting.

Cotswold District Council, Trinity Road, Cirencester, Gloucestershire, GL7 |PX
Tel: 01285 623008 gewiw.cotswold.gov.uk



(END)

AGENDA

Neighbourhood Planning: Representation to the Regulation |16 Consultation on the
South Cerney Neighbourhood Development Plan (pages | — 6)

To agree a representation from the Council to the Regulation |6 consultation on the
South Cerney Neighbourhood Development Plan.

Reporting Officer: Joseph Walker (01285 623146)
DATE OF DECISION: NO EARLIER THAN FRIDAY 25 JUNE 2021

DEADLINE FOR COMMENTS: 5PM ON THURSDAY 24 JUNE 2021

Page 2



Agenda ltem 1

COTSWOLD

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Council name

Cotswold District Council

Name and date of
Committee

CABINET MEMBER FOR THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Report Number

ALLOCATED BY DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

Subject

NEIGHBOURHOOD  PLANNING: REPRESENTATION TO  THE
REGULATION 16 CONSULTATION ON THE SOUTH CERNEY
NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Wards affected

South Cerney Village and Siddington and Cerney Rural directly

Accountable
member

Councillor Rachel Coxcoon, Cabinet Member for Climate Change and
Forward Planning, Tel: 01285 623000 Email:
rachel.coxcoon@cotswold.gov.uk

Accountable officer

Joseph Walker, Community Partnerships Officer
Tel: 01285 623146 Email: joseph.walker@publicagroup.uk

Summary/Purpose | To agree a representation from the Council to the Regulation 16
consultation on the South Cerney Neighbourhood Development Plan.
Annexes Annex A: South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan Regulation 16

Submission:
Al) Regulation 16 Draft plan;

)] Draft Plan
1)) Appendices A-M
iii) Appendix N
A2) Basic Conditions Statement;
A3) Consultation Statement;

A4) Strategic Environmental Assessment Screening Report

Annex B: Cotswold District Council Draft representation

Recommendation/s

a) That the Cabinet member considers the draft representation, and
subject to any amendments, agrees it for submission to inform the
review by the Independent Examiner.

Corporate priorities

The Council has a duty to support neighbourhood planning.

‘Ensure that all services delivered by the Council are delivered to the
highest standard.’

Key Decision

No

Exempt

No

Consultees/
Consultation

The plan has been consulted on by the Parish Council, and is currently
subject to a consula@ Zarried out by this Council. Local residents,
businesses and a range of statutory and non-statutory organisations



mailto:rachel.coxcoon@cotswold.gov.uk
mailto:joseph.walker@publicagroup.uk

COTSWOLD

DISTRICT COUNCIL

have been informed of the consultation. It should be noted that the
consultation does not present an opportunity to add to or alter the plan
directly — but is instead an opportunity for consultees to raise concerns
with the examiner to inform the decision on whether the submitted plan
meets the Basic Conditions - the legal requirements for a
Neighbourhood Development Plan to proceed to referendum.

Page 4




2.2.

COTSWOLD

DISTRICT COUNCIL

BACKGROUND

South Cerney Parish Council (SCPPC) applied to this Council in early 2016 to designhate a
neighbourhood area. The area applied for, and subsequently approved, was the entirety of
South Cerney Parish. Since that point, a steering group consisting of local residents,
supported by a planning consultant, has consulted locally, reviewed and developed a local
evidence base, and drafted a plan, the South Cerney Neighbourhood Development Plan
(SCNDP). This plan was duly consulted upon in 2020 — a consultation to which this Council
responded — and representations have been considered in preparing a submission draft.
Following the submission of this draft to the Council, consultation was launched on 21 May
2021, closing on 2 July 2021.

MAIN POINTS

This consultation gives Cotswold District Council a further opportunity to seek to influence
the content of the plan. Should a neighbourhood plan proceed through examination, and
subsequent referendum, and be made by this Council, it will become part of the Local
Development Framework through which planning applications are determined. As the Local
Planning Authority making those determinations, it is in the Council’s interests to ensure that
so far as possible, neighbourhood plans meet the necessary legal standards and provide a
useful framework for decision-making.

The representation attached at Annex B has been prepared and reviewed by a number of
officers who have an involvement within Development Management, Planning Policy and
Neighbourhood Planning. Through informal discussions with members of the SCNDP
steering group, and through the Council’s representation to the Regulation 14 consultation
earlier this year, the Council has had opportunity to share its perspective on the policies
proposed by the SCNDP. This consultation provides an opportunity to share that perspective
with the independent examiner, to inform their judgement on whether the plan should
proceed to referendum, and if so, with what modifications.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None — this decision purely concerns the response to the current consultation.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None — this decision purely concerns the response to the current consultation, and informs
the independent examiner’s review of the submitted SCNDP.

RISK ASSESSMENT

This is a low risk decision, but mitigates the risk of the SCNDP being examined without the
District Council’s concerns being taken into account.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

Not required for this decision.

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS

None directly for this decision, as it is purely a consultation response. The SCNDP
encourages energy efficiency and rengvggjesznergy measures, and promotes active travel,
as well as supporting nature conservation.



COTSWOLD

DISTRICT COUNCIL

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

The Council could choose not to submit a representation, but would thus miss the
opportunity to communicate its views to the independent examiner.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

Page 6



COTSWOLD

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Strategic Environmental Assessment Screening Report
November 2018
South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan

Introduction
Legislative Background
Screening Process
Assessment — is an SEA required?
o Maps and data
o Commentary
o Summary of likely significant effects based on SEA criteria (Schedule 1)
o Applying the SEA Directive to Neighbourhood Plans — the need for an SEA
Conclusion — Screening Outcome

Introduction

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

This screening report is designed to determine whether or not the content of the South
Cerney Neighbourhood Plan (Draft Version 17/7/2018) requires a Strategic Environmental
Assessment (SEA) in accordance with European Directive 2001/42/EC. It also includes an
assessment of whether a Habitats Regulation Assessment (HRA) in accordance with Article
6(3) and (4) of the Habitats Directive 92/43/EEC would be required. Under EU regulations
the legal requirement for SEA/HRA depends on the content of the plan.

The South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan is being prepared, to set out the vision for the area
and the planning policies for use and development of land within the Neighbourhood area.

The area covered by the NDP is the Parish of South Cerney which includes the village of
South Cerney and Cerney Wick, and lies adjacent to the Wiltshire District border. South
Cerney Parish lies approximately 1.6km to the south east of Cirencester, the largest Principal
Settlement within Cotswold District. The Cotswold Water Park (CWP) crosses South Cerney
Parish and is an extensive series of lakes formed by mineral extraction. Some of the lakes
form the designated CWP SSSI. A Special Area of Conservation lies just beyond the Parish
boundary.

The Neighbourhood Plan is being prepared in the context of the Cotswold District Local Plan
2011-2031. The Local Plan was adopted by the Council in August 2018 having been through
Independent Examination. The Development Plan for the area will comprise both the
Cotswold District Local Plan and (when ‘made’) the South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan, and
be used to help determine planning applications and appeals.

The Vision for South Cerney is based on key issues raised by local people and includes; a
stronger network of facilities and services whilst ensuring the character and landscape, as
well as historical buildings, are conserved and enhanced, alongside sympathetic new
developments. http://southcerneyplan.org.uk/

The South Cerney draft Neighbourhood Plan considers the following;

Page 7


http://southcerneyplan.org.uk/

e Maintaining the physical and historic separation of the village of South Cerney from
Cirencester, Siddington and Preston

e Enhance the landscape and nature conservation, designate Local Green Space.

e Preserve the character South Cerney in terms local design and rural setting,

e Support and strengthen local businesses, including tourism, and within the Lakeside
Business Park

e Improve and enhance local facilities and services, improve traffic issues where
appropriate; and footpaths and cycleways, and access to lakeside areas.

1.7 The Plan does not directly allocate land for development. It provides local guidance on how
applications for development in the plan area should be determined.

1.8 The legislation set out below outlines the regulations that require the need for a screening
exercise.

Legislative Background

2.1.1 Establishing whether a neighbourhood plan requires an environmental assessment is an
important legal requirement and forms part of the neighbourhood planning process.

2.2 In order to be ‘made’ neighbourhood Plans are required to be tested against and meet a
number of ‘basic conditions’ set out in the Localism Act 2011 (Appendix 2). One of the basic
conditions is whether the Neighbourhood Plan is compatible with European Union
obligations, including those under the SEA Directive and Habitats Directive. Neighbourhood
Plans in England require SEA if their effects are likely to be significant, or if the plan requires
appropriate assessment under Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA). While screening for
SEA and HRA is a parallel process both are integrated here into one report.

2.3 Neighbourhood Development Plans (NDPs) are not required to undertake the type of
sustainability appraisal required for a Local Plan. However NDPs may require a strategic
environmental assessment (SEA) of the Plan in accordance with European Directive
2001/42/EC or ‘SEA Directive’. This was transposed into English law by the Environmental
Assessment of Plans and Programmes Regulations 2004 or the ‘SEA Regulations’. Regulation
9 sets out the requirements to assess (screen) the plan, and includes a requirement to
consult the environmental assessment consultation bodies. Detailed guidance of these
regulations can be found in the Government publication ‘A Practical Guide to the Strategic
Environmental Assessment Directive’ (ODPM 2005).

2.4 The Local Plan was subject to a full, comprehensive Sustainability Appraisal (SA) including
SEA, which has considered the significant environmental, economic and social effects of the
Local Plan for the District. The SA Report that accompanied the Local Plan to Examination
can be found here: https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/media/1500110/Cotswold-LP-Focussed-
Changes SA-Report v10 120117.pdf

2.5 The Habitats Directive 92/43/EEC is another key obligation and requires that any plan or
project likely to have a significant effect on a European Site must be subject to an
‘appropriate assessment,” rather than just screening. The effectiveness of measures to
mitigate the impact of the plan, on sites protected by the Habitats Directive, should also be
tested through full appropriate assessment, rather than just screening (EU Court of Justice
ruling in People Over Wind and Sweetman v Coillte Teoranta, April 2018).

2.6 The Habitats Directive was transposed into English law by the ‘Conservation of Habitats and
Species Regulations (as amended) 2012’ or Habitats Regulations. HRA is the screening

2
Page 8


https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/media/1500110/Cotswold-LP-Focussed-Changes_SA-Report_v10_120117.pdf
https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/media/1500110/Cotswold-LP-Focussed-Changes_SA-Report_v10_120117.pdf

assessment of the likely effects, or impacts, of a land use proposal against the conservation
objectives of European sites; and considers whether or not a proposal (alone or in
combination) is likely to be significant. European Sites are also known as Natura 2000 sites.
The HRA submitted alongside the Local Plan to Examination can be found here:
https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/media/1500069/Updated-HRA-Report-for-Local-Plan-

Focussed-Changes.pdf

Screening Process

2.7 Screening is ‘Stage A’ of the SEA process outlined in the Governments’ National Planning
Practice Guidance (NPPG)1, and should be undertaken as early as possible in the

neighbourhood plan process.

Str. gic envir I 1ent process

|Stage A: Screening
1. Determine whether the neighbourhood pian is likely

Neighbourhood plan preparation

to have significant environmental effects «—— Evidence gathering and engagement

2. Consult the environmental assessment
consultation bodies

v
|Stage B: the and obj .
ishi the ine and idi on the scope
1. Identify other relevant policies, plans and
programmes, and sustainability ohjectives
2. Collect baseline information
3. Identify sustainability issues and problems
4. Develop the strategic environmental assessment
framework
5. Consult the environmental assessment

consultation bodies on the scope of the strategic
environmental

L 2
Stage C: Developing and refining alternatives and
assessing effects
1. Test the neighbourhood plan objectives against the
strategic environmental sssessment framework
2. Develop the neighbourhoed plan options including
reasonable alternatives
3. Evaluate the likely effects of the neighbourhood plan
and aiternatives
4. Consider ways of mitigating adverse effects and
maximising beneficial effects
5. Propose measures to monitor the significant effects
of implementing the neighbourhood plan

v
Stage D: Prepare the Environmental Report ’

C 3
Stage E: Publish and consuit the consultation
bodies and the public on the environmental report

¥
Stage F: Post making reporting and monitoring
1. Prepare and publish post-adoption statement
2. Monitor significant effects of iImplementing the
neighbourhood plan
3. Respond to adverse effects

Prepare the pre-submission
neighbourhood plan

Pre-submission publicity an

on the ‘hood
plan
draft hood plan to

local planning authority

Local planning authority publicises
and invites representations on the
nelqhh_ourhood plan and ma!ms all

I

Nelghbourhood plan sent for
ination along with is
documents

l

Referendum

}

Neighbourhood plan made

Monitoring
Moniter and report on the
implernentation of the neighbourhood
plan

"https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment _data/file/580028/

sea2 033 20150209 fixed.pdf

Page 9


https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/media/1500069/Updated-HRA-Report-for-Local-Plan-Focussed-Changes.pdf
https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/media/1500069/Updated-HRA-Report-for-Local-Plan-Focussed-Changes.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/580028/sea2_033_20150209_fixed.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/580028/sea2_033_20150209_fixed.pdf

2.8

2.9
2.10

2.11

The criteria to decide whether a neighbourhood plan, might have significant environmental
effects is set out in Schedule 1 of the regulations (Annex Il of ODPM Guidance).

ANNEX 11

Criteria for determining the likely significance of effects referred to in Article 3(5)

. The characteristics of plans and programmes, having regard, in particular, to

— the degree to which the plan or programme sets a framework for projects and other activities, either with regard to
the location, nature, size and operating conditions or by allocating resources,

— the degree to which the plan or programme influences other plans and programmes including those in a hierarchy,
— the relevance of the plan or programme for the integration of environmental considerations in particular with a

view to promoting sustainable development,
— environmental problems relevant to the plan or programme,

— the relevance of the plan or programme for the implementation of Community legislation on the environment (e.g.

plans and programmes linked to waste-management or water protection).

2. Characteristics of the effects and of the area likely to be affected, having regard, in particular, to
— the probability, duration, frequency and reversibility of the effects,
— the cumulative nature of the effects,
— the tansboundary nature of the effects,
— the risks to human health or the environment (e.g. due to accidents),

— the magnitude and spatial extent of the effects (geographical area and size of the population likely to be affected),

— the value and vulnerability of the area likely to be affected due to:
— special natural characteristics or cultural heritage,
— exceeded environmental quality standards or limit values,
— intensive land-use,

— the effects on areas or landscapes which have a recognised national, Community or international protection status.

In the final section, table 2 applies the SEA Directive ‘process’ to neighbourhood plans and
summarises whether the NDP will require an SEA, based on the information gathered in the
following section,? and above criteria (see table 1). A screening outcome is provided in the
conclusion.

‘Assessment of the effects should be done in a proportionate way..."(Screening NDPs for SEA,

Locality, page 10), and although there may be some gaps in information, there should be
enough to assess the likely significant effects of the plan.

Assessment — Gathering Data

2.12

2.13

Once data on the environmental constraints and assets in the area have been gathered, it is
then possible to determine any likely significant effects of the NDP proposals (positive and
/or negative) on the environment.

The Plan vision and objectives, or draft proposals, and a list of sites considered for inclusion
in the plan (if any) and potential impact of new development will help determine whether or
not the plan would give rise to significant effects.

® RTPI SEA/SA Guidance, January 2018

Page 10



2.14  The following section on ‘assessment’ provides a screening assessment of the likely need for
a full SEA. The text in the box below is taken from the Government’s Planning Practice
Guidance (NPPG)*:

Whether a neighbourhood plan proposal requires a strategic environmental assessment, and (if
so) the level of detail needed, will depend on what is proposed. A strategic environmental
assessment may be required, for example, where:

e aneighbourhood plan allocates sites for development

e the neighbourhood area contains sensitive natural or heritage assets that may be affected
by the proposals in the plan

e the neighbourhood plan is likely to have significant environmental effects that have not
already been considered and dealt with through a sustainability appraisal of the Local Plan

Paragraph: 046 Reference ID: 11-046-20150209

Will the neighbourhood plan allocate sites for development?

2.15 The draft version of the plan does not directly allocate housing or employment sites. It does
suggest the redevelopment of Clarks Hay Garage in the centre of the village and designate
Local Green Space. Should the scope of the plan change this will need to be re-assessed.
Does the neighbourhood area contain sensitive natural or heritage assets that may
be affected by the proposals in the plan?

2.16 The more environmentally sensitive a location, the more likely it is that potential
environmental effects from a plan will be significant.

2.17 The NPPG provides guidance on this topic through providing a list of sites and area which
should be deemed as ‘sensitive areas’ for the purposes of environmental assessment (i.e.
screening projects for Environmental Impact Assessment or EIA):

Natura 2000 Sites *

Sites of special scientific interest (SSSls)

National parks

Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB)

World Heritage Sites

Scheduled Monuments

* & & o o

2.18 In the context of the most ‘sensitive areas,” within and in the vicinity® of the Neighbourhood
Area, the following sites and areas exist:

® https://www.gov.uk/guidance/strategic-environmental-assessment-and-sustainability-appraisal#baseline-
environmental-characteristics

*Natura 2000 is a network of nature protection areas in the territory of the European Union. It is made up of
Special Areas of Conservation and Special Protection Areas designated respectively under the Habitats
Directive and Birds Directive

Page 11


https://www.gov.uk/guidance/strategic-environmental-assessment-and-sustainability-appraisal#baseline-environmental-characteristics
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/strategic-environmental-assessment-and-sustainability-appraisal#baseline-environmental-characteristics

e there are two scheduled monument (SAM) designations:
o (site of) Castle to north west edge of the village
o Village Cross at junction High Street and Station Road
o Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI’s):
Cotswold Water Park to the south east (two areas)

o Wildmoorway Meadows to the east
o Elmlea Meadows to the south
o North Meadow SSSlI lies beyond but close to the Parish and District boundary to the

south

> To determine whether the effects of the plan are likely to affect areas outside the plan area, i.e. define
‘within the vicinity’ an indicative threshold of 1km has been used as there are no allocations [Screening
Neighbourhood Plans for SEA, Locality, p.12). Designations beyond this area however are also considered

Page 12



Legend
=3 seneauied Moruments
[ spectal Areas of Conservation ~g
[E] s of Special Sclenanc interest
[~ Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
) soun Cemey Parish Borger

© Crown copyright and database rights 2018 w‘%w
Ordnance Survey, LA No. 100018800

Kilometers
0.55 11 165 22

2.19 The European designated ‘Natura 2000’ sites are included within an area of search of 15km
for HRA purposes. The plan below shows those Natura sites within 15km of the
neighbourhood plan boundary. The relevant site is;

e North Meadow and Clattinger Farm Special Area of Conservation (SAC).

Page 13



2.20

Legend
@ Crown copyright and database rights 2018 ) souih camey 15km Buer
Ordnance Survey, LA No. 100018800 |0 soutn camey Partsn Bomer
—— io E wan:orcummm
0 35 7 105 14 S

Further key environmental assets (see Locality guidance on Screening Neighbourhood Plans
for SEA) located within, and in the vicinity of, the area include;

South Cerney Conservation Area lies within South Cerney village, with Driffield and Harnhill
Conservation Areas situated just beyond the 1km ‘area of search’ to the north east; and
Preston conservation area to the north.

Listed Buildings, including the Grade 1 Church of All Hallows

Siddington Copse Ancient Woodland lies to the north just beyond the area of search

Page 14



South Cerney Railway Cutting lies just to the north of South Cerney village (RIGs)® and
Shorncote Quarry to the west on the edge of the ‘area of search’.

Agricultural Land classification is mostly Grade 3b, some Grade 2 and Grade 1

Priority habitats; areas of lowland meadow, deciduous woodland and areas of floodplain
gazing marsh to the south.

North Meadow National Nature Reserve lies beyond the plan area to the south east, but
close to the District and Parish boundary (this nearly covers the North Meadow and
Clattinger Farm SAC areas)

The Plan also contains the Cotswold Water Park Key Wildlife Sites’ (KWS) mainly within the
south of the Parish and the lakes, River Churn KWS to North and the smaller Crane Farm
KWS in the centre.

A strategic nature area (SNA®) lies across the centre and south of the Parish area.

-y

Harnhd Conservation Area

Drffield Conservation Area.

e
‘South Cemey Conservation Acea

South Cemey Conservaton Area

Legend
[ soum cemey Parish Borger

[ ] usteaBuiangs

Conservation Areas

©® Crown copyright and database rights 2018
Ordnance Survey, LA No. 100018800

—— Kilometers
0 0.55 1.1 165 22

6 Regionally Important Geological and Geomorphological Sites (RIGS) are locally designated sites of local, national and regional importance
for geodiversity (geology and geomorphology) are considered important places for Earth Science which are worthy of conservation.

" Key Wildlife Sites are areas with a rich diversity of habitats that provide refuges and corridors for wildlife across Gloucestershire.

These sites have no legal protection, yet deserve recognition as the most important places for wildlife outside of legally protected land
such as Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI).

8 Strategic Nature Areas (SNAs) are landscape scale areas of land that have been selected by Biodiversity South West as being
important areas for conservation and expansion, they are not designated.

Page 15



© Crown copyright and database rights 2018
Ordnance Survey, LA No. 100018800

Kilometers
0 0.55 1.1 1.65 22

e Flood Zones — located in the Upper Thames valley and crossed by the River Churn
approximately half of the Parish is covered by fluvial flood zones, including the highest risk
flood zone 3b ‘“fluvial floodplain’ and high risk flood zone 3a to the south. The Plan area also
has the right characteristics for both groundwater flooding® and surface water flooding™,

9 . . . . . .
In some areas where there is a high water table and water levels in watercourses are high, less groundwater is able to drain away,

leading to water-logging and groundwater emergence.
10 - _— . .
Surface water flooding is a problem throughout the District caused by intense rainfall that may only last a few hours, and usually occurs

in lower lying areas often where the drainage system is unable to cope with the volume of water.
10
Page 16



with the highest risk of groundwater emergence indicated to be mainly in the south. South
Cerney has also experienced sewer flooding (Strategic Flood Risk Assessment Level 2, 2016).

e Source Protection Zones — Reflecting the vulnerability of groundwater in the area to
pollution, a SPZ covers the area. Source Protection Zone (Il —outer protection zone) covers
most of the plan area with a smaller area of Zone | —inner protection zone, extending to the
east (MAGIC interactive maps, Natural England)

See Figure 3

‘ u\‘n 7 \ )2 § / X )
=4 y\
| O oo |
» 0SSe".
i | % | Choose Option Fisad Zones |
j;_ \ / [ snowLaves

pEaEE

= ﬁCOTSWOLD
IR nistricT council

COTSWOLD DISTRICT COUNCIL
STRATEGIC FLOCO FISK ASEES SMENT
Punta Pized ot

Assessment - Commentary

2.21 The potential environmental effects which may arise as a result of the NDP and if they are
likely to be significant, are grouped by the SEA ‘topics’ as suggested by Annex I(f) of the SEA
Directive.

Annex | (f) of the SEA Directive — environmental receptors (physical and cultural attributes of an
area) which could be affected by proposals in the plan. Grouped into themes:

() the likely significant effects (1) on the environment, including on issues such as biodiversity,
population, human health, fauna, flora, soil, water, air, climatic factors, material assets, cultural
heritage including architectural and archaeological heritage, landscape and the interrelationship
between the above factors;

11
Page 17




2.22

Is the neighbourhood plan likely to have significant environmental effects that have
not already been considered and dealt with through a sustainability appraisal of the
Local Plan?

While the Neighbourhood Plan is likely to focus on more local detail than the Local Plan, The
Planning Inspector stated in his report that he was ‘..satisfied that the sustainability
appraisal that has been carried out throughout the process of preparing the Plan, as required
by section 19(5) of the Act, has complied with the requirements of the European Directive on
strategic environmental assessment and relevant national policy and guidance’. 11 (Para.24,
Cotswold District Local Plan 2011-2031: Inspector’s Report June 2018).

Biodiversity, flora and fauna, soil, water, air

2.23

2.24

2.25

2.26

2.27

The NDP does not directly allocate sites for housing or employment. However there are
environmentally sensitive areas in the Parish; three designated SSSI’s lie (one in two parts)
within the Plan area and a Natura Site (SAC) lies close to the southern border of the Plan
area and Parish.

Much of the central area of the Plan area is also covered by the Cotswold Water Park key
wildlife site. There are also a number of Priority Habitats.'* An ancient woodland (Siddington
Copse) lies within 1km of the Parish, and two Regionally Important Geological Sites lie, one
within, and one to the west, just within the area of search. North Meadow National Nature
Reserve also lies beyond the plan area to the south east, but close to the District and Parish
boundary.

Much of the Parish falls within SSSI Impact Risk Zones, however while a location nearest the
SSSI would require consultation with Natural England on the likely effects of any planning
application, nearer the settlement of South Cerney this would apply for example, only to
larger non-residential development or residential developments of 10 to 50 units, which is
not promoted by the NDP. Due to the lack of allocations in the Neighbourhood Plan, and
only indirect potential for more small-scale development, the NDP is considered unlikely to
lead to additional pressures on the SSSls, or due to location and scale in relation to North
Meadow and Clattinger Farm SAC.

The Plan has a draft policy to protect and enhance habitats and species it lists as important
‘Local Ecology Sites’ in the appendix; and seeks to support (and extend) the designation of
Local Green Spaces (Upper Up Playing Fields and Church Lane allotments). Such protection
and enhancement of habitats and species will help limit potential negative effects of any
development. Draft policy on an ‘area of separation’ to retain the physical and historic
separation between settlements to the north would not change, but safeguard the current
use of the land; although the policy also suggests that [some] ‘Development within the area
should be compatible with a rural setting.” An ‘area of separation’ may increase any
potential development pressure elsewhere in the Neighbourhood area and beyond, as an
indirect and/or cumulative effect.

No significant air quality issues currently exist (Air Quality Management Areas’s - AQMAs) in
the area. The NDP proposals to reduce commuting, improve and extend access to the
countryside and gravel lakes, and on sustainable travel to improve rights of way, with

" https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/media/1605407/Cotswold-Local-Plan-Report-Final.pdf

2 UK BAP priority species and habitats were those that were identified as being the most threatened and
requiring conservation action under the UK Biodiversity Action Plan (UK BAP). Despite new requirements the
UK BAP lists of priority species and habitats remain, however, important and valuable reference sources

12
Page 18


https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/media/1605407/Cotswold-Local-Plan-Report-Final.pdf

2.28

2.29

2.30

cycleway and footpath improvements have the potential to support a reduction in
emissions.

There is a small pocket of Grade 1, along with some areas of Grade 2 and Grade 3a to the
south of the ‘best and most versatile’ agricultural land™® within the Parish. However no land
has been allocated for development therefore there is unlikely to be a direct loss of the
higher quality agricultural land.

Similarly while there are areas of groundwater, and surface water flooding in the Parish,
there is unlikely to be an increase in water demand from development or for development
activities to contaminate water quality (the area is largely covered by a groundwater Source
Protection Zone'*) and/or contribute to potential flood risk in the area proposed by the Plan.

The NDP itself does not directly allocate sites for housing or employment, and any
facilitation of development is considered to be minimal, and therefore unlikely to be
significant in terms of the SEA Directive.

Landscape; cultural heritage

2.31

2.32

2.33

The plan seeks to support local design (South Cerney Neighbourhood Character Assessment)
and protect historic character, and lists non-designated Local Heritage Assets. There is a
conservation area, listed buildings and two Scheduled Monuments in the Parish. The latest
Heritage at Risk Register [https://www.historicengland.org.uk/advice/heritage-at-
risk/search-register/] did not highlight any features deemed to be at risk in the
Neighbourhood Area, other than the already noted Castle SAM. The draft polices propose to
‘conserve and enhance where possible’ the historic environment and villagescape, and so
are likely to have positive effects protecting local distinctiveness and character in the
Neighbourhood area.

Similarly a positive effect would likely apply to the landscape, a draft policy seeks to
‘conserve and enhance’ important views and vistas of the local landscape; as well as the
policy to preserve the open countryside and historic separation between South Cerney,
other villages and Cirencester but would not change the use of the land. Furthermore draft
polices relating to tourism and leisure in the Water Park seek to encourage tranquillity and
respect for the lakes and landscape of the area, limiting noise and other disturbance for
example. There is no Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) in the Parish and no areas
of locally designated Special Landscape Area (SLAs). As no land has been allocated in the
plan there is unlikely to be a significantly negative effect.

The NDP itself does not directly allocate sites for housing or employment, and any
facilitation of development is considered to be minimal, and unlikely to be significant in
terms of the SEA Directive.

Climatic change; human health; population

B Agricultural land is classified in five categories according to versatility and suitability for growing crops. The
top three grades, Grade 1, 2 and 3a, are referred to as 'Best and Most Versatile' land.

" Groundwater source protection zones (SPZs) are defined by the Environment Agency to protect
groundwater sources such as wells, boreholes and springs that are used for public drinking water. These are
designated zones around public water supply.

13
Page 19


https://www.historicengland.org.uk/advice/heritage-at-risk/search-register/
https://www.historicengland.org.uk/advice/heritage-at-risk/search-register/

2.34

The plan seeks to encourage sustainable modes of transport, walking and cycling, which help
limit potential increases in greenhouse gases from transport; and potential benefits for
resident’s health and well-being, as well as accessibility to the lakes, services and promote
local employment. Draft policy approaches may also provide opportunities for, and benefit,
community and tourist facilities/ infrastructure and village amenity; no allocations are
proposed to increase population pressure from such development, although there may be
some small scale development, these are considered unlikely to be significant effects in
terms of SEA.

Material assets

2.35

Potential increases in waste are likely to be limited due to the lack of proposed allocations
through the draft plan and while there are areas for example, permitted for existing sand
and gravel extraction at Shorncote Pit, and an area south and west of Cerney Wick (Adopted
Gloucestershire Minerals Plan) this is unlikely to be affected as a result of the NDP.

Assessment — HRA

2.36

2.37

The Cotswold District Local Plan was subject to HRA which looked at designated sites which
could be impacted by development within Cotswold District. Appropriate Assessment
concluded that adverse effects on any European Sites were ruled out in relation to physical
loss, damage to habitat, air pollution, increased recreation pressure, and no likely significant
in-combination effects with other authorities development plans. This section provides a
HRA screening for the South Cerney NDP as to whether Appropriate Assessment is required.

The closest Natura site, known as the North Meadow and Clattinger Farm Special Area of
Conservation (SAC), ‘a fragmented site located immediately adjacent to the southern
boundary of Cotswold District’ (CDC HRA Report, page 43. Jan 2017), lies within the vicinity
of the Parish approximately 20m at the nearest point beyond the plan boundary. The SAC
represents lowland hay meadows and contains rare species characteristic of lowland
meadows. It covers some 105ha in area.

South Cerney No housing or Minimal North The NDP does not Unlikely.
employment Meadow propose

The NDP does
not propose
development and

Likely to be
positive effects
from policies

allocations and development.
Clattinger Therefore unlikely

any effects with

14
Page 20



2.38

which support Farm SAC other Plans may the adopted
protection open combine with the Local Plan
spaces, NDP to have includes policy
sustainable adverse effect. (EN9) to
transport and to The SAC lies s.afeguard such
work locally. . . sites from
. outside the Parish
Public access to . development
. and District

lakes is that could cause

romoted within boundary, a significant
P therefore &

the NDP area.

adverse effect on

the NDP.

Assessment — likely significant effects?

2.39

development
planned elsewhere
is an important
consideration. No
such effects were
identified by the
HRA and
Appropriate
Assessment for the
District Local Plan.

the integrity of
the SAC

It is not considered that any further stages of HRA (Appropriate Assessment) are required for

Stage 8 in applying the SEA Directive (see table 2 — is SEA required?) is derived from the table

below (table 1) which itself outlines, in terms of the formal SEA Criteria (Annex IlI), the
assessment above; providing maps, data and commentary.

8. Is it likely
to have a

significant
effect on the
environment?

Criteria for determining the
likely significance of effects
(Annex Il SEA Directive)

The degree to which the
plan or programme sets a
framework for projects or
other activities, either with
regard to the location,
nature, size and operating
conditions or by allocating
resources

Summary Significant Effects

The South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan will set out
the framework to be used to determine proposals for
development within the neighbourhood. It supports
for example small scale ‘rural’ development,
redevelopment of a garage, and seeks to protect
‘areas of separation’ and local green spaces. It does
not allocate land for development or propose
development in excess of that identified within the
Cotswold District Local Plan.

The degree to which the
plan or programme
influences other plans or
programmes including
those in a hierarchy

The South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan can only
provide polices for the area it covers while the
policies at the District and National level provide a
strategic context for the NDP to be in general
conformity with. South Cerney is identified as a
Principal Settlement in, and will help deliver the aims

15
Page 21




8. Is it likely
to have a

significant
effect on the
environment?

Criteria for determining the
likely significance of effects
(Annex Il SEA Directive)

Summary Significant Effects

of, the Local Plan, but is not allocated to take
significant growth.

None of the policies in the likely to have a direct
impact on other plans in neighbouring areas.

The relevance of the plan
or programme for the
integration of
environmental
considerations in particular
with a view to promoting
sustainable development

A Neighbourhood Plan is required to contribute to
the achievement of sustainable development. The
proposals in the NDP look to balance environmental,
social and economic considerations such as
sustainable modes of transport, encourage local
businesses and designate Local Green Space. In
particular to the NDP is the importance of the
environment, it contains polices to protect and
enhance the environment; encourage tranquillity and
respect for the lakes and landscape of the area. It is
considered overall, as no development is allocated,
any impact on the local environment and places
valued by the local people is likely to be positive.

Environmental problems
relevant to the plan

The South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan is not
allocating land for housing or employment use,
therefore any adverse impact on the environment
arising from the NDP proposals (causing
environmental problems) is considered to be minimal
and unlikely to be significant. No change of use of the
land in the NDP is proposed other than to LGS.

The relevance of the plan
or programme for the
implementation of
community legislation on
the environment (e.g. plans
linked to waste
management or water
protection)

The South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan is to be
developed in general conformity with the Local Plan,
the Gloucestershire Minerals and Waste Plans, and
national policy. Therefore the implementation of (EU)
community legislation on water protection or waste is
not relevant to the NDP.

The probability, duration,
frequency and reversibility
of effects

It is considered unlikely that proposals in the NDP will
lead to irreversible, long or short term or frequent
adverse effects on the environment, especially no
allocation of land, and therefore changing the of use
of the land, is proposed. The NDP seeks to minimise
the negative effects of potential development and
promote positive impacts to enhance and conserve. It
is more likely to have positive local effects.

The cumulative nature of
the effects

It is considered unlikely that there will be any
significant cumulative effects as the potential limited
level of development is in conformity with the Local
Plan and appropriate for such a rural area / open
countryside.

16
Page 22




8. Is it likely
to have a
significant
effect on the
environment?

Criteria for determining the
likely significance of effects
(Annex Il SEA Directive)

The transboundary nature
of the effects

Summary Significant Effects

Effects will be local with limited effects on
neighbouring areas as the proposals within the NDP
only apply to designated area.

The risks to human health
or the environment (e.g.
due to accidents)

No risks have been identified

The magnitude and spatial
extent of the effects
(geographical area and size
of the population likely to
be affected)

The Neighbourhood Area covers an area of about
12.40km*and contains a population of 3465 (2011
Census). The scale of development in supported by
the NDP is small (and none is allocated) therefore
effects are likely to be localised. It is unlikely that the
effects of proposals within the neighbourhood plan
will be large scale and extensive.

The value and vulnerability
of the area likely to be
affected due to;

i) special natural
characteristics or cultural
heritage

iiJexceeded environmental
quality standards

iii) intensive land-use

The South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan is unlikely to
adversely affect the value and vulnerability of the
area in relation to natural or cultural heritage. The
Plan area is close to a SAC and National Nature
Reserve and contains SSSI’s, a strategic nature area,
key wildlife site and Priority Habitats. South Cerney
also contains a Conservation Area and two SAMs; and
draft policies seek to enhance enhance local ecology
sites, landscape views, and protect local heritage
assets, local green spaces, open spaces and
allotments as well as the rural character of the area.
Such policies are considered to have a positive effect
on the area. There is unlikely to be intensive land use
and therefore the NDP will not affect the value and
vulnerability of the area.

The effects on areas or
landscapes which have a
recognised national
community or international
protections status

The Plan boundary is within 15km (almost adjacent
to) the North Meadow and Clattinger Farm Special
Area of Conservation (SAC) and contains three SSSI’s.
The South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan however, is
unlikely to lead to additional pressures on the
European designated SAC or nationally designated
SSSI’s as it does not allocate and change the use of
land for development. The level of development
supported by the proposals in the NDP is likely to be
minimal and therefore unlikely to be a significant
effect.

17

Page 23




Assessment — Is an SEA required?

2.40 The process for screening a planning document to ascertain whether a SEA is required is
illustrated below:

Figura 2 — Application of the SEA Directive to plans and programmes

This diagram is intended as a guide to the criteria for application of the Directive to plans and
programmes (PPs). It has no legal status.

1. Iz tha PP subject 1o preparation and/or adoplion by a
national, regional or local authority OR prepared by an Mo 1o both criteria
authority for adoption throwgh a legislative procedure by '~\

Pariament or Government? (Art. 2(a])

Yos to ether critarion
r
2. |z tha PP required by leqgislative, regulatory or No

administrative provisions? (A, 2{a]) \\

Yas

¥y
. |z the PP prepared for agriculiune, forestry, fisheries, energy, Moto | 4. Wil the PP inview of its
industry, transport, waste management, water management, |  aithar likety effact on sitas,

]

telecommunications, towrism, town and country planning or | crtanion requine an assessmeant
lard use, AND does it set a framework; for future o under Article 6 or 7 of
development consant of projects in Annaxes | and Il to the tha Habitats Directiva?
ElA Directiva’? (Art. 3.2(3)) (Art. 3.2(04)
Yes to both critaria fes 1 o
: 6. Does the PP zet the
5. Does tha PP detarmine the use of small areas at local kavel, framesvork for fulure
ORis it 2 minor modification of a PP subject to Art. 3.27 Yas to development consant of N Mo
[Art. 3.3) ithar projects (not just projects "'\
critarian in Annexas to the EIA \

Mo to bath critaria Dlirectiva)? (Ar. 3.4)
z l Yes

5 5 5 posa to sarve nai fence or civi a e
. ls tha PP's sole purpose to serve national defence or ci 8. Is it likaly to have

emergency, OR is it a financial or budget PR, OR is it Yes i s - Mo
co-financed by structural funds or EAGGF programmes B ;qul“:r:egg-gﬂnnf;g I
9000 to 2006/77 [Art. 38, 3.0) o e \
Mo to all criteria R\“xfff 1o any criterion
3 Tk g
DIRECTIVE REQUIRES SEA DIH%{EEEH[EDSE;NOT

*The Diractive requires Memibar States to determine whether plans or programmes in this category are likely to
have significant environmental effects. These determinations may be made on a casa by casa basis andfor
by specifying types of plan or programime.

2.41  The table below is drawn from the ‘decision making’ flow diagram above, and shows the
assessment (in terms of the SEA Directive) of whether the NDP will require an SEA, based on
the information gathered in the appendix". It establishes the need for a SEA.

Y/N Reason
1Is the PP subject to preparation Y The Neighbourhood Development Plan will be ‘made’ by
and/or adoption by a national, Cotswold District Council as the Local Authority. The Plan
regional or local authority OR is prepared by the relevant Qualifying Body - South
prepared by an authority for Cerney Parish Council

adoptionthroughalegislative

> RTPI SEA/SA Guidance, January 2018

18
Page 24



Stage Y/N Reason

procedure by Parliament or
Government? (Art. 2(a))

2 Isthe PPrequired by legislative, N The Neighbourhood Plan is an optional plan and not a
regulatory or administrative requirement.
provisions? (Art.2(a)) The requirement for a NDP to have an SEA depends on

its content and therefore it is necessary to screen the
likely significant environmental effects of the NDP in line
with the SEA Regulations.

3. Isthe PP prepared for N The Neighbourhood Plan is prepared for town and
agriculture, forestry, fisheries, country planning purposes, but it does not set a
energy, industry, transport, waste framework for future development consent of projects
management, water in Annexes | and |l to the EIA Directive (Art 3.2 (a)).
management, http://ec.europa.eu/environment/eia/eia-
telecommunications, tourism, legalcontext.htm

town and country planning or
land use, AND does it set a
framework for future
development consent of projects
in Annexes | and Il to the EIA
Directive? (Art. 3.2(a))

4 Will the PP, in view of its likely N A District wide HRA Report for Cotswold District was
effect on sites, require an prepared for the Local Plan process. The HRA Screening
assessment under Article 6 or 7 conclusions for the Local Plan were that a number of
of the Habitats Directive? (Art. policies may result in significant effects on European
3.2(b)) Sites. These were considered further in Appropriate

Assessment in 2017. This concluded that adverse effects
on the integrity of any of the sites could be ruled out in
relation to physical loss, damage to habitat, air pollution,
increased recreation pressure, or in-combination effects
with other development plans.

Of the 8 Natura Sites looked at in the HRA Report, North
Meadow and Clattinger Farm SAC (one of two areas) are
the closest to South Cerney Neighbourhood area lying
adjacent to Cotswold District, to the south of the Parish
approximately 20m beyond the boundary at its closest
point .

In light of a recent ECJ™ ruling proximity or presence to a
European site may trigger SEA if there is a potential
impact, where mitigation measures cannot be used to
conclude there is ‘no significant effect’. As the NDP does
not in any case allocate sites for development and no
mitigation policies are included in the Plan proximity
(within 15km buffer'’) of the SAC it is unlikely to have a
significant effect and require Appropriate Assessment.

®The People Over Wind and Sweetman vs. Coillte Teoranta
" Para 3.4, HRA Report, January 2017

19
Page 25



http://ec.europa.eu/environment/eia/eia-legalcontext.htm
http://ec.europa.eu/environment/eia/eia-legalcontext.htm

Stage 7\

Reason

It is considered that the NDP will not affect the specified
Natura 2000 site over and above the impacts identified
in the HRA Report carried out for the Local Plan.
Therefore a full Appropriate Assessment is not
considered to be required for the NDP.

The HRA submitted alongside the Local Plan to
Examination can be found here:
https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/media/1500069/Updated-
HRA-Report-for-Local-Plan-Focussed-Changes.pdf

5 Does the PP determine the use N/Y
of small areas at local level, OR is

it a minor modification of a PP

subject to Art. 3.2? (Art. 3.3)

The Neighbourhood Development Plan does not make
allocations to determine the new use of land. Small
areas for ‘separation’ and Local Green Space
designations may be identified however this does not
change the current use of the land.

6 Does the PP set the framework  N/Y
for future development consent

of projects (not just projects in

Annexes to the EIA Directive)?

An NDP is (a framework) to be used in determining

future planning applications, and once ‘made’ will form
part of the statutory development plan. However South
Cerney NDP does not make allocations and so does not

(Art. 3.4) in this sense set a ‘framework for future development
consent’ or beyond those projects listed in the EIA
Directive.

7 Is the PP’s sole purpose to N The purpose of the NDP is not for any of those

serve national defence or civil
emergency, OR is it a financial or
budget PP, OR is it co-financed by
structural funds or EAGGF
programmes 2000 to 2006/7?
(Art. 3.8, 3.9)

categories listed in Art 3.8,3.9.

8" Is it likely to have a significant N
effect on the environment?
(See table 1)

South Cerney NDP does not make any housing or
employment allocations and as such there is no major
level of proposed development in the Plan to impact
upon environmentally sensitive areas.

It is considered there would be little or no impact on
nationally recognised designation of three SSSI’s, and
two Scheduled Monuments, or to the risk of flooding
within the Parish. Although the Neighbourhood Area
does not have any Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty
(AONB) a European Natura 2000 Site (SAC) and National
Nature Reserve also lie in close proximity to the
southern Plan boundary. Policies in the draft NDP
however do not change the use of the land.

'8 Annex Il of the SEA Directive— Criteria for determining the likely significance of effects on the

environment. See table below.

20
Page 26



https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/media/1500069/Updated-HRA-Report-for-Local-Plan-Focussed-Changes.pdf
https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/media/1500069/Updated-HRA-Report-for-Local-Plan-Focussed-Changes.pdf

Stage Y/N Reason

More locally there are identified Key Wildlife Sites, a
strategic nature area (SNA), Priority Habitats, listed
buildings, and a Conservation Area which lies within
South Cerney village. However given the draft plan
policies on design and development in South Cerney, it is
considered the Plan is unlikely to significantly affect
(positively or negatively) the natural or cultural heritage
of the area.

The impact of any potential development (in general
conformity with the Local Plan) is expected to be
localised and minimal and therefore not significant.

Table 2

Conclusion:

2.42  As a result of the assessment, it is considered unlikely that there will be any significant
environmental effects arising from South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan draft as submitted at
the date of this assessment, that were not covered in the Sustainability Appraisal or
Appropriate Assessment of the Local Plan.

2.43  Significant environmental effects have already been considered and dealt with through
sustainability appraisal of the Local Plan for the District, to which the NDP must be in general
conformity to meet its ‘basic conditions’ (Appendix 1). In addition, there are no allocations
proposed in the NDP, and the impact of any potential development (in general conformity
with the Local Plan) is expected to be localised and minimal and therefore not significant;
and given the distance of the nearest SAC from the Neighbourhood Plan area and lack of
activities that could have a potential impact, overall it is not considered necessary to require
either a standalone Strategic Environmental Assessment or Appropriate Assessment for the
NDP.

2.44 It is considered the South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan does not require a full SEA or HRA to
be undertaken.

2.45 The Screening Report was provided to the statutory environmental consultation bodies for
SEA (Historic England, the Environment Agency and Natural England) for their opinion. The 5
week consultation period ended on the 8th November 2018, with no objections being raised
(See their responses, Appendix 2).

2.46 Based on the Screening Report and taking into account responses from the statutory
environmental bodies, it is determined by Cotswold District Council in accordance with SEA
Regulation 9, as the ‘responsible authority’, that the Preston Neighbourhood Plan is unlikely
to have significant environmental effects and is therefore ‘screened out’ i.e. that no Strategic
Environmental Assessment is required.

2.47  In accordance with Regulation 106(1) of the Habitats Regulations, Cotswold District Council,
as the ‘competent authority,” also does not consider that an ‘appropriate assessment’ under
Regulation 105 is required.

2.48 If the issues in the Neighbourhood Plan should change then a new screening may need to be
undertaken. New development proposals in South Cerney will be determined in line with the

21
Page 27




Local and Neighbourhood Plans, and may individually require screening for Environmental
Impact Assessment (EIA) based on their type, scale and location.

2.49 Even if an SEA is not legally required preparation of an SA (not SEA) report could be useful
because it documents how the neighbourhood plan contributes to sustainable development,
which is one of the ‘basic conditions,” a legal requirement, that the plan must meet to
proceed to referendum (Appendix 1)

22
Page 28



Appendix 1

NPPG on Neighbourhood Planning - Paragraph: 065 Reference ID: 41-065-20140306

What are the basic conditions that a draft neighbourhood plan or Order must meet if it is to
proceed to referendum?

Only a draft neighbourhood Plan or Order that meets each of a set of basic conditions can be put to
a referendum and be made. The basic conditions are set out in paragraph 8(2) of Schedule 4B to the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as applied to neighbourhood plans by section 38A of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. The basic conditions are:

a. having regard to national policies and advice contained in guidance issued by the
Secretary of State it is appropriate to make the order (or neighbourhood plan). Read more
details.

b. having special regard to the desirability of preserving any listed building or its setting or
any features of special architectural or historic interest that it possesses, it is appropriate to
make the order. This applies only to Orders. Read more details.

c. having special regard to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or
appearance of any conservation area, it is appropriate to make the order. This applies only
to Orders. Read more details.

d. the making of the order (or neighbourhood plan) contributes to the achievement of
sustainable development. Read more details.

e. the making of the order (or neighbourhood plan) is in general conformity with the
strategic policies contained in the development plan for the area of the authority (or any
part of that area). Read more details.

f. the making of the order (or neighbourhood plan) does not breach, and is otherwise
compatible with, EU obligations. Read more details.

g. prescribed conditions are met in relation to the Order (or plan) and prescribed matters
have been complied with in connection with the proposal for the order (or neighbourhood
plan). Read more details.

23
Page 29


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/schedule/9/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/schedule/9/enacted
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/neighbourhood-planning--2#National-policy-and-advice
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/neighbourhood-planning--2#National-policy-and-advice
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/neighbourhood-planning--2#Listed-buildings-and-conservation-areas
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/neighbourhood-planning--2#Listed-buildings-and-conservation-areas
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/neighbourhood-planning--2#Neighbourhood-Plan-to-sustainable-development
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/neighbourhood-planning--2#General-conformity-with-strategic-policies
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/neighbourhood-planning--2#EU-obligations-neighbourhood-planning
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/neighbourhood-planning--2#Other-basic-conditions-neighbourhood-plan

Appendix 2

Historic England

Wed 07/11/2018 12:14
Dear Jo

Thank you for your consultation on the SEA Screening of the emerging South
Cerney Neighbourhood Plan.

Our only involvement with this Plan to date has been to offer generic advice at the
time of the area’s designation in February 2016. We note from the Plan’s website
that a draft was to have been available for public consumption in September but that
this has been delayed. Consequently we are dependent for our understanding of the
scope and likely content of the Plan on the briefing provided in your Screening
Report.

This is a most helpful Report in its comprehensive setting out of the background to
the Plan and related issues. For the purposes of the current exercise our interest
focuses on whether the Plan intends to allocate sites for development. The Report
indicates that there is no intention for the Plan to do so and on that basis we have no
objection to the view that a full SEA is not required.

Reference is made within the Report that the draft Plan suggests the redevelopment
of Clarks Hay Garage (p5). As what we assume is a brownfield site the principle of
development is probably not an issue and the specific nature of any redevelopment
proposals which emerge can be influenced by any criteria within a dedicated policy,
and complementary and overarching policy, to ensure the protection and
enhancement of relevant heritage assets and thus avoiding significant environmental
effects. But should any policy become specific or prescriptive in itself as far as such
matters as quantum of development are concerned then it is probable that such
provision will trigger the need for a Screening review and possible full SEA as a
consequence.

Kind regards
David
David Stuart | Historic Places Adviser South West

Historic England | 29 Queen Square | Bristol | BS1 4ND
https://historicengland.org.uk/southwest

24
Page 30


https://historicengland.org.uk/southwest

Natural England

Date: 02 November 2018

Dear Ms Corbett,
Draft South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan — SEA/HRA Screening

Thank you for your consultation on the above dated 4th October 2018 which was received by
Natural England on the same date.

Natural England is a non-departmental public body. Our statutory purpose is to ensure that the
natural environment is conserved, enhanced, and managed for the benefit of present and future
generations, thereby contributing to sustainable development.

Screening Request: Strategic Environmental Assessment

It is our advice, on the basis of the material supplied with the consultation, that, in so far as our
strategic environmental interests are concerned (including but not limited to statutory designated
sites, landscapes and protected species, geology and soils) are concerned, that there are unlikely to
be significant environmental effects from the proposed plan.

Neighbourhood Plan

Guidance on the assessment of Neighbourhood Plans in light of the SEA Directive is contained within
the National Planning Practice Guidance. The guidance highlights three triggers that may require the
production of an SEA, for instance where:

e A neighbourhood plan allocates sites for development

e the neighbourhood area contains sensitive natural or heritage assets that may be affected
by the proposals in the plan

e the neighbourhood plan may have significant environmental effects that have not already
been considered and dealt with through a sustainability appraisal of the Local Plan.

We have checked our records and based on the information provided, we can confirm that in our
view the proposals contained within the plan will not have significant effects on sensitive sites that
Natural England has a statutory duty to protect.

We are not aware of significant populations of protected species which are likely to be affected by
the policies / proposals within the plan. It remains the case, however, that the responsible authority
should provide information supporting this screening decision, sufficient to assess whether
protected species are likely to be affected.

Notwithstanding this advice, Natural England does not routinely maintain locally specific data on all
potential environmental assets. As a result the responsible authority should raise environmental
issues that we have not identified on local or national biodiversity action plan species and/or
habitats, local wildlife sites or local landscape character, with its own ecological and/or landscape

25
Page 31



advisers, local record centre, recording society or wildlife body on the local landscape and
biodiversity receptors that may be affected by this plan, before determining whether an SA/SEA is
necessary.

Please note that Natural England reserves the right to provide further comments on the
environmental assessment of the plan beyond this SEA/SA screening stage, should the responsible
authority seek our views on the scoping or environmental report stages. This includes any third party
appeal against any screening decision you may make.

For any new consultations, or to provide further information on this consultation please send your
correspondences to consultations@naturalengland.org.uk.

Yours sincerely
Victoria Kirkham

Consultations Team

Environment Agency

Mon 08/10/2018 16:05
Dear Ms Corbett,

Thank you for consulting the Environment Agency on your SEA screening opinion for the draft South
Cerney Neighbourhood Plan.

We regret that at present, the Thames Area Sustainable Places team is unable to review this
consultation. This is due to resourcing issues within the team, a high development management
workload and an increasing volume of neighbourhood planning consultations. We have had to
prioritise our limited resource, and must focus on influencing plans where the environmental risks and
opportunities are highest. For the purposes of neighbourhood planning, we have assessed those
authorities who have “up to date” local plans (plans adopted since 2012, or which have been
confirmed as being compliant with the National Planning Policy Framework) as being of lower risk. At
this time, therefore, we are unable to make any detailed input on neighbourhood plans being prepared
within this local authority area.

However, together with Natural England, English Heritage and Forestry Commission, we have
published joint guidance on neighbourhood planning, which sets out sources of environmental
information and ideas on incorporating the environment into plans. This is available at:

http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20140328084622/http://cdn.environment-
agency.gov.uk/LIT 6524 7da381.pdf

Thames Sustainable Places Team
Environment Agency | Red Kite House, Wallingford, OX10 8BD

Planning THM@environment-agency.gov.uk

26
Page 32


http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20140328084622/http:/cdn.environment-agency.gov.uk/LIT_6524_7da381.pdf
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20140328084622/http:/cdn.environment-agency.gov.uk/LIT_6524_7da381.pdf
mailto:Planning_THM@environment-agency.gov.uk

South Cerney |
Neighbourhood Plan"
2021-2031 . .

N fesp T
LR 3o e n 2

Neighbourhood Plan Steering®Committee
Submission-version April2021

g \

! i i ) [ v ,\ ‘.;
<L . L;\“.‘i?\" . e -
A A \hﬂ! ’ \




South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan

TABLE OF CONTENTS
TablE OF CONTENTS ...ttt et e e et e e e ettt e s bbb ee e e aee e e s beee s sbbbee e ebbbeeennbeeenanseens 1
Yol [ 1YV =T F= =T o =Y o 2
R [0 1 oo 1¥ T Ao o PP PP PP PTRPUPPRPPIN 3
=T T=d o] oTo T T gl Yoo I od P oY 1o V- 3
The South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021 — 2031 ......cooiiiiiiiiiiieie et e e e e e e e e e e eeees 3
2 Background to the PariSh..........e e i e e e e e e e e 4
2.1 History and CONSErVAtiON ........cooiiiiieiiicc e e e e e ee e et eeeeeeaeesesanenes 4
2.2 1Y Vo Ky or- ] 1RSSR 6
2.3 SOCIO ECONOMIC PrOFilE .ttt e 7
2.4 EMPIOYMENE QNG SEIVICES ...nieeeeeeeee e e e e e et e e e e e e te s eeeeeeaeeeesanenns 9
S 1 o o OO P PPP PP PP 10
N o 1=t =T USRRPRPNE 10
5  Policies to Implement These ObJECHIVES .....uuuiuiieie e e e 11
5.1 Design guidelines for SOUTh CEIMEY ........uuiiuiiiiiiiiiiiieeieeee e ece s b e e e e eaees 12
5.2 Area OF SEPATATION ..ot ee e et e e e e e ee e ee e ettt abr e e et bbb ——rateaarrataaaaaaaaaaaaaaaas 14
5.3 Encouraging Home Working and MiCro BUSINESSES.......uuceieieieeieiieiieiiiiiesieeeeeeeeeeeeevinaeeeeeeaeaeees 16
5.4 Local Employment Opportunities .....eueueeeeiee et e ee s ee et e e e e e ae s 16
5.5 Employment development outside the Development Boundary.......ccccceeeeeveeeiieiiieiiiiiiiiineneees 17
5.6 Holiday Accommodation and Access t0 Lakes..........uuuureieiiiiiiiiieiieeecrce e e e 17
5.7 Non-residential Visitor facilities.........cceueeiiiiieiiiie e 18
5.8 Existing Recreational Open Spaces and AllotmMENtS........cceeeiiiiiiieieiieccc e 19
5.9 Protection of Community and Cultural facilities...........ceeeveeiieiiiiii e 20
LT O B o Yot | I =Yoo Fo =4 Y 1 LRSS 22
5.11 Designation of LOCal GrEEN SPACES ...cccevieeeiiee ettt re e ee e e e e e e e ee e eeaaaea e e e e e e ee e s eaanee 26
5.12  Locally Listed Non-Designated Heritage ASSEtS......cccceieiiiiieiieeiiecceee e ee e 27
5.13 Redevelopment of Clark’s Hay Garage..........ccooeeeieiieciciiiiiiieiieeiiee et e e e et e e e e e e e e ee e 28
5.14  Alleviation Of FIOOMING......uuiiiiiiiiiiiiice et te e ee e e e e e e e ee e e e e e e e e e e e ee e ee e s eannennes 29
5.15 Energy Use and ReNEWabIE ENEIY.....cccoiiiiiiiiieieeie et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeeenes 30
5.16 Sustainable travel and Rights of Way Network ..ottt 31

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 1 of 35

Page 34



5.17 Reduction of LIt POHULION c..ccciiiiiii et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eaneanes 32

(SR @0 0T 0 4 10T o 11 8V Yot o To] o O UPRPRTRTR 33
2 Y oo 1T o [ ol Y3 34
Appendix A: Local Consultation EVENTS .......ccooeeiiiiiiiiieee e e ee e e e e e e e e e e e neeaens 34
Appendix B: Map of the Parish...........iiiiiiiiiiieiieee ettt rr e e e ae e ae e e e e e e e e e e 34
Appendix C: Map of the CONSEIrVatioN Ar€a.........ueuiieiiiiieiieeeeeee ettt te e et e e reeaeeaeaaeaaeaens 34
Appendix D: How Policies Meet ODjJECLIVES .......cceviuiiiieie e ee e e e e e ee e e e e s 34
FAN ] 01T o [t SV 1LY L3S 34
FiN o] o =T Yo [0t Sl Mo Yor= | N =lolo] Lo -4 A | 1 34
FAN o] o 1=T o [ G @ o 1T s Y o = Yol T3 34
Appendix H: LOCAl GIrEEN SPACES .....vvvieiiiiiieieeeeeee et e ee e e e e ee e ee e e te e eeseeeeeeee ataanaeeeeaeesessessesnsnnnns 34
Appendix |: Locally Listed Heritage ASSEES.......coiiiiiiiieieie ettt e e e e e et e e e e e e e ee e e aeeneaaeas 34
Appendix J: Rights of Way IMPrOVEMENTS ........uiiiiiiiiiieiieiieeee ettt ae e e ar e e reeaeeaeaaeaaeaans 35
Appendix K: Groundwater Risk FIOOd Map .......coooiiiiiiiiieie s e e e e e e ee e e 35
Appendix L: EVIdence Base REFEIENCES ........uuiiiiiiiiieiiiieie ettt ae s e re e e e e aeeaeaaeeaeaeaeeans 35
ApPPENiX M: REFEIENCE LiST ... oo ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiie et te e e e eeeee e e e e eeeeee s e st aaraae e re s s aesbeaaessaesaesaeaseaasesaeanes 35
Appendix N: NCA (Neighbourhood Character ASSESSMENt) ........c.coeeeeeiieciiiiiiiiiierie e ee e 35
Figure 1 Age distribution in South Cerney according to Census 2011.......cccceeevieiiiriiiiieiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeens
Figure 2 Employment Levels in SOUth CEIMEY.......coovuiieiiicie e e e e ee e e
Figure 3 Sub Areas in Neighbourhood Character AssesSmMent..........ccoevvvveeiiiiiiniiiie e 12
Figure 4 Map showing Area of SEParatioN...........ccciiiiiii i ee e e ee e e e e e e e ee e e eaaees 15
Figure 5 (o Tor= 1 I Sl ole] Lo =YY = RUPRPPRNt 24
Figure 6 (o or=] W €T ¢ <T=T o Y o T ol RPNt 26
VERSIONS:

First published September 2020 for Pre-Submission Consultation (Regulation 14).
Updated March 2021 for Parish Council Approval
Submission Version April 2021.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Cover photograph by kind permission of Dr Laura Kettley

Planning Consultancy provided by Liz Beth MRTPI Dip Design in the Built Environment, of LB planning,
www.lbplanning.uk

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 2 of 35

Page 35



1 INTRODUCTION

NEIGHBOURHOOD PLANNING

1.1.

1.2

Neighbourhood Planning is a central government initiative introduced by the Localism Act 2011

and recognised in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) in 2012 (as revised in

February 2019). The aim of the legislation is to empower local communities to use the planning
system to promote appropriate and sustainable development in their area. It thereby gives the
community an opportunity to have a real say over local decision making, to achieve its long-
standing goals through the planning system and address the challenges and opportunities

facing the future vitality of the parish.

Once it has obtained the consent of local people via a referendum, a Neighbourhood Plan
forms part of the statutory development plan and sits alongside the Local Plan prepared by the
local planning authority. Decisions on planning applications will be made using both the Local
Plan and the Neighbourhood Plan, and any other material considerations.

THE SOUTH CERNEY NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN 2021 - 2031

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

This South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 (NP) has been produced by a
Neighbourhood Planning Steering Group, under Terms of Reference delegated by the Parish
Council. The Group members are Parish Council members and volunteers resident within the
Parish. It will be used alongside the Local Plan produced by the Cotswold District Council. This
development plan will be used to determine planning applications, alongside whatever other
material considerations are deemed relevant in each individual case by the decision maker.

The NP has been prepared, under the over-arching planning policy set out in the National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), during the finalisation of the CDC 2011-2031 Local Plan
(CDC LP) and relies upon the policies in the CDC LP, which was adopted in August 2018. The
policies in this NP add local detail to the CDC LP. The two plans should be regarded as
complementary, with the NP plan setting out, in more detail and with more local flavour, how
some of the CDC LP policies should be interpreted and applied in the context of the South
Cerney Parish. The CDC LP sets out the development boundary for South Cerney and this NP
continues to use this. The CDC LP has no allocated development sites for South Cerney.

The aims and objectives are developed from local consultation (cf Consultation Table in
Appendix A) and analysis of other publicly available evidence, leading to a set of Policies - some
of which are not in the CDC LP, but are in response to local issues.

A Planning Consultant, Liz Beth, assisted to ensure compliance with the NPPF, the CDC LP and
appropriate translation of local findings and aims into a formal Planning document.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 3 of 35

Page 36



1.7.

1.8.

Some of the important issues identified during consultation, fall outside the scope of the
planning system to deliver, which, by law, must have a focus on responding to proposals for
development and the appropriate use of land. This means that there are a number of
objectives that cannot be delivered through planning policies alone and for which a Community
Action has been developed that the Parish Council will work to deliver with the community and
other partners. See Section 6 for the Community Action.

Note that references to South Cerney refer to the Parish of South Cerney, comprising the village
of South Cerney, the settlement of Cerney Wick and countryside areas outside the two
settlements which lie within the Parish. See Appendix B for a map of the area. Also refer to the
Neighbourhood Character Assessment (NCA Appendix N), which has been prepared by
members of the NP Steering Committee and volunteers from the South Cerney Trust. The NCA
records the style and features of existing buildings, those buildings that are important to the
character of the parish and key views within both the built areas and countryside. To achieve
this, the Parish was split into seven sub-areas that have distinctive and separate characters.

The NCA not only records the existing character of each sub-area it also goes on to incorporate
design guidance for the sub-areas to ensure that new developments should be of a form and
scale that are consistent with the existing local character. The NCA forms part of this NP and is
included in the Evidence Base.

2 BACKGROUND TO THE PARISH

2.1 HiISTORY AND CONSERVATION

2.1.1

2.1.2

2.1.3

Aerial photographs of field marks and the discovery of artefacts such as stone axes, metal tools
and jewelry, suggest that this fertile area has been occupied since before the Saxon founding of
the village, and potentially since pre-historic times: for example, rare palaeological activity was
identified at a gravel extraction site and Bronze Age settlement features have been excavated in
Cerney Wick. The name, South Cerney, is thought to pre-date the Roman period and is derived
from ‘settlement on the Churn’.

The Saxon founders of South Cerney sited the village some way from the Roman road (the
modern Cirencester to Swindon road) down which other armed invaders were likely to pass,
laying the foundations of a distinct, separate settlement, which has been maintained over
subsequent centuries. There is archeological evidence to confirm this.

The Royal Charter of AD999 refers to the “fertile lands of Cerney”, and, remarkably, the modern
Parish reflects these boundaries unchanged. The Domesday survey shows that the land was
already organized under a manorial system and was the Archbishop of Canterbury’s most
valuable Gloucestershire possession, with farming as the principal activity. At the site of South
Cerney Castle, a Scheduled Monument, there is evidence of a high status building dating from
the later medieval or early post-medieval period.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 4 of 35

Page 37



2.1.4

2.15

2.1.6

2.1.7

2.1.8

2.1.9

2.1.10

By the beginning of the 13" century, the Parish was divided into three estates, resulting in the
establishment of three Manors (Chapter Manor, Atkyns Manor and The Manor), and, as each
estate required its own army of workers, this has a profound effect on the growth of South
Cerney’s population. Tax returns show that the parish flourished in the 13 and 14" centuries
with a growing rural industrial economy alongside agriculture. Archeological evidence implies
that, by the 15™ and 16" centuries, the centre of the village was roughly where it is today.

The oldest surviving recognisable structure is the Cross, a Scheduled Monument dating from the
14* century. Along the river Churn are the remains of post medieval water meadows, i.e., areas
of grassland irrigated to produce plentiful crops and rich pasture via precisely engineered
channels. The oldest houses in the village date from the late 16™ and early 17" centuries,
following the dissolution of monasteries and the break up of their estates, leading to the
establishment of farms and small holdings, and setting the pattern of the village until the 20"
century. By the end of the 17™" century, the village was large and thriving, with a mixture of
grand houses and artisan’s cottages. The village would have been reasonably self-sufficient,
with many other activities supporting agricultural needs.

By the beginning of the 20" century, the arrival of the Thames Severn Canal, and, later, the
Midland and South Western Junction Railway, brought change to the architectural character of
the village and enabled the population to seek better wages in nearby towns, thereby reducing
the farming related population to around 10%. The canal struggled for commercial success,
owing to technical challenges from water supply and leakage. The poor state of navigation
further along the river Thames was a significant constraint, which was solved only after the
arrival of the railway. The canal transported the raw materials for the railway which superseded
it and, in its turn, the railway carried the locally extracted gravels for the new motorways and
dual carriageway. The railway closed in the 1960s.

In 1936, an RAF camp opened one mile to the north and the flying school was one of the first to
be bombed by the Luftwaffe. In 1967 it was taken over by the Army, and currently houses the
29th Regiment Royal Logistics Corps, which is an integral part of the parish.

In the years after 1960, new estates doubled and trebled the population to nearly 4000 by 1999.
The ‘Village' is larger than most market towns in Gloucestershire and is home to a range of small
industries on purpose-built estates.

Gravel extraction on a significant scale started in the middle of the 20™" century, and the worked
out gravel pits fill naturally with fresh water. The lakes which are thereby created are used for
recreational activities and have become the major part of an area comprising over 150 lakes
over 40 square miles known as ‘The Cotswold Water Park’. South Cerney lies at the heart of this
area.

Commercial developers have converted some areas into private holiday estates, with restricted
use holiday homes built in a lodge style, and these now constitute around 40% of South Cerney’s
housing. Many of the Lakes are designated as Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs).

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 5 of 35

Page 38



2.1.11 The settlement of Cerney Wick comprises former farm houses, farm workers’ cottages and some

infill, bordered by the remains of the Railway line and Canal. Along the Canal is one of the 5
remaining round houses (known as watch houses or lengthman’s houses) on the Thames Severn
Canal.

2.1.12 The South Cerney Trust was founded in 1963 to encourage interest in the history, character and

environment of South Cerney. In 1999 the South Cerney Millenium Pageant reflected some of
the striking moments of the past millennium and many villagers participated. 1500 people came
to see the two open-air performances held in Chapter Manor parkland.

2.1.13 The Conservation Area, set out in the Conservation Area Statement of December 2002, was first

designated in November 1970, with boundary revisions in 1990, 1993 and 1999 (see Appendix
C). A characteristic feature of this area is the use of light grey Cotswold natural limestone, for
building and for roofing slates, which was quarried locally along with big flat stones for field
boundaries. The impact of the railway is visible in the use of Welsh slate roofing tiles and very
occasional bricks, notably in the fine supporting piers of the railway arches.

2.2 LANDSCAPE

2.2.1

2.2.2

2.2.3

South Cerney lies around four miles to the south east of Cirencester, on the river Churn, set
within the flood plain of the upper Thames Valley, an area dominated by watercourses and
lakes. The village is bisected by a bend in the River Churn, which drains to the Thames from the
Cotswold Hills to the north. The channelled course of the river forms an integral part of the
settlement and a distinctive feature. The small linear settlement of Cerney Wick lies around two
miles to the south-east on the river Churn, although rather isolated by intervening lakes and
fields, after which the Churn joins the river Thames outside Cricklade. There is distinct
separation from Cirencester (4 miles away), Siddington and Preston, and the Wiltshire border 1
mile away.

The Parish lies at the heart of the Cotswold Water Park, which was created by the extraction of
minerals, resulting in the most extensive marl lake system in Britain. The high water table in this
area facilitates the natural infilling of the gravel pits with fresh water following the completion
of mineral extraction. Marl lakes are nationally scarce and support a distinctive range of aquatic
and marginal plant communities along with a rich habitat for breeding and overwintering birds.

The landscape is a mosaic of open fresh water, wetland and farmland habitats, affording long
views across flooded gravel pits. However, the visual influence of these water bodies within the
wider landscape context is sometimes limited by scrub vegetation adjacent to lakes restricting
views from neighbouring settlements and local roads. Many watercourses are fringed with
willow or native black poplar, which, according to the Forestry Commission, is the most
endangered native timber tree in Britain. Ancient field systems are evident as crop marks on
gravel areas and remnants of medieval field systems survive with visible ridge and furrow.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 6 of 35

Page 39



2.2.4

2.2.5

Tranquil meadows surround and penetrate the heart of the village of South Cerney; the field
pattern is strongly defined by mature hedgerows. Tree belts occur along the disused railway
line and canal, otherwise there are few trees in the heart of the village. Wide green verges are a
characteristic feature of the older part of the Parish.

At around 350 feet above sea level, historically, the landscape was irrigated and enriched by the
regular flooding of the river Churn, via a system of ditches and culverts, little weirs and hatches,
whose broken remains are visible when walking in the countryside. In the 19" century, a
leading agriculturalist, Mr Arthur Young, held up the South Cerney meads as “equal, if not
superior to any thing of the kind in the kingdom”. These ceased to be used regularly from
around 1935. The flooding of the Churn is now an unwelcome event; since the year 2000, parts
of the village (including the sewage system) have flooded from the River Churn, the Shire Ditch,
or from high groundwater. Areas of South Cerney are now classified by the Thames Water
Drainage Strategy as being at High Risk of groundwater flooding.

2.3 Soclo EcoNOMIC PROFILE

2.3.1 According to the 2011 Census, the population of South Cerney was 3,465 comprising 1,390
households. This equates to an average of 2.49 persons per household. According to the
Census methodology, some Armed Forces will be included in these figures, but not all. Since the
Census, the population has risen, such that in 2016 it reached 4,100 with 1,743 households (CDC
Council Tax Records 2016).

2.3.2 The age profile of the population is demonstrated by the graph below:

Figure 1 Age distribution in South Cerney according to Census 2011

number of persons

Age group (years)
300 285

250 250
250 T
210 210
195 195 2 e 195
200
150
115
100
50
1) : . .
O’\ [=2]
g v -
wy
o

10-14 lllllllllllllllll
15-19 _
20-24 llllIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
1529 IR
30-3) e
N

59 50 TR =
60-64 B
65 6 R

1KY
7074 I
75-79 N
go-34 I O

85-30 N |
90+ 1M U

40-44
45-49
50-54

2.3.3

It is important to note that the percentage of the population aged under 15 years in South
Cerney is 18.3% compared to 17.9% in Gloucestershire as a whole and 18.9% in England.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 7 of 35

Page 40




2.3.4 The population of South Cerney has grown by 12% over the period from 2001 to 2011 compared
with 7% in Gloucestershire and 5% in England.

2.3.5 Animportant trend is the number of young people moving away from South Cerney compared
with those moving in. The Population Turnover rates (ONS 2009/2010) reveal that, in the age
group 1 to 24 years, 212 people moved out against 159 moving in. Whereas for those aged 25
to 65, 180 people moved out and 168 moved in.

2.3.6 Levels of deprivation in South Cerney are low according to any measure used. The Economic
Deprivation Index for 2009 showed 134 people, 5.4% of the population, living in “income
deprivation” compared with 13.5% in England.

Employment

2.3.7 Employment levels for the population of South Cerney by type of employment are shown by the
following graph. Included in the figures are 140 people working from home. 574 were recorded
as “economically inactive”, i.e., retired, students or home makers. (Source 2011 census). The
number working from home is likely to have risen since 2011, in line with general trends, and
will have spiked during the Covid-19 pandemic, which is likely to lead to a significantly higher
rate in future.

2.3.8 An analysis of the types of employment show that the largest employer is the public
sector/defence followed by retail and then education. 49.6% of those in employment are
managerial or professional positions.

Figure 2 Employment Levels in South Cerney

Employment Levels in South Cerney by Type of Employment
% of total population aged 16-74
Full Time
Part Time
Self
Employed

0 13 25 38 50

South Cerney England

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 8 of 35

Page 41



Housing

2.3.9

2.3.10

2.3.11

2.3.12

2.3.13

2.4

2.4.1

Housing provision in the Parish according to the 2011 census was as follows:

e 543 Detached houses 34.1% (22.3%)

e 575 Semi detached houses 36.1% (30.7%)
e 405 Terraced houses 25.4% (24.5%)

® 65Flats 4.1% (22.1%)

e 5 Temporary accommodation 0.3% (0.4%)
(Brackets England)

Household owner occupation levels in the Parish were 69.2%, in line with the County at 70.3%,
and higher that the national figure of 64.1%. Social and private rented levels were in line with
both the County and England.

The affordability of housing in the Parish, again according to the 2011 census, was illustrated by
an affordability ratio of 18.5 (England average 15.4); house prices are generally above the
national average. The distribution by Council Tax Bands reveals that the Parish has fewer lower
band properties (A to C) at 51.8% of households than the County at 64.4%, and more at the
higher bands (D to H) at 48.1% of households, County 35.4%.

In October 2016, of 1,627 applications on the Council’s Housing Register, 35 indicated a
preference for South Cerney.

A November 2016 report on South Cerney housing stock identified 250 affordable dwellings
(14.3% of the total housing stock — an increase from around 11% in March 2011) and
commented:

‘Affordability is an issue for people on median or lower incomes looking to buy or rent privately
in South Cerney, where house purchase prices and rents are higher than average in England and
incomes are lower.’

EMPLOYMENT AND SERVICES

Over 75% of the Parish’s permanent population (i.e., excluding Holiday Home residents), are
economically active, i.e., either working or unemployed; the Public Sector/Defence is the largest
employer, followed by Retail and Education. The Business Park is the second largest light
industrial area in the Cotswolds, although the results of the NP Business Survey suggest that few
of those employed there live within the Parish. In summary, excluding the service personnel on
the military base, and, therefore, of the ‘regular workforce’, those that live within the Parish do
not work within it, and those that work within the Parish do not live within it.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 9 of 35

Page 42



2.4.2

2.4.3

Commuting further afield is enabled by the A419/A417 Dual Carriageway; around 20 miles away
are links to the M4 Motorway West and East, and the M5 North and South. Less than 5 miles
away, at Kemble, is a railway station with a through service to London Paddington. South
Cerney village is on the bus route connecting Swindon and Cheltenham, although the service is
hourly at best. There is an occasional bus service to a nearby superstore. School buses
transport children to secondary schools. Whilst National cycle route 45 runs along the disused
railway line through Cerney Wick and South Cerney, there is no ‘off-road’ cycling route to
Cirencester, or to Kemble Railway Station. The most direct route is a busy, largely unlit, minor
road, which many residents regard as unsafe, leaving them with no option other than travelling
by car.

Within the village of South Cerney are services such as a primary school, a Doctor’s Surgery, a
pharmacy, a Vet’s practice, a Post Office, general stores, pubs and churches. Community
facilities are good and well used, for example, playing fields, allotments, the village hall,
Fenton’s Community Centre; Bowling, Angling and Sailing Clubs. Cerney Wick has a church and
pub. Many residents, including those in the Holiday Lodges, enjoy walking and cycling in the
surrounding countryside using the Rights of Way network of paths.

3 VISION

3.1

South Cerney will, in the period to 2031, retain a balance of historical buildings and features
alongside sympathetic newer developments. The vibrancy, individuality and community spirit of
the parish will remain an important attribute. Sustainability will be enhanced, by developing a
stronger network of facilities and services, whilst ensuring that the character and landscape is
conserved and enhanced.

4 OBJECTIVES

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Supporting sustainable developments which contribute to the vision for the parish.

Maintaining the physical separation of the village of South Cerney from Cirencester, Siddington
and Preston.

Sustaining and improving local facilities and services.

Strengthening and supporting economic development, particularly for local people and
Businesses.

Improving the Parish’s resilience to flooding, including groundwater flooding.

Ensuring that significant employment development is located within the Lakeside Business Park
area designated in the CDC Local Plan where appropriate.

Improving the traffic environment, including parking, whilst being respectful of the village
environment.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 10 of 35

Page 43



4.8 Seeking on-going improvements to the network of public transport, footpaths and cycle ways.

4.9 Enhancing greenspaces, the landscape and supporting nature conservation and improving access
to lakeside areas.

5 POLICIES TO IMPLEMENT THESE OBJECTIVES

1 Design guidelines for South Cerney

2 Area of separation

3 Encouraging Home Working and Micro Businesses
4  Local employment opportunities

5 Employment development outside the Development Boundary
6 Holiday accommodation and access to Lakes

7 Non-residential visitor facilities

8 Existing Recreational Open Spaces and Allotments
9 Protection of Community and Cultural facilities

10 Local ecology sites

11 Designation of Local Green Spaces

12 Local Heritage Assets

13 Redevelopment of Clarks’ Hay Garage

14 Alleviation of Flooding

15 Development to reduce greenhouse gas emissions
16 Sustainable travel and Rights of Way Network

17 Reduction of Light Pollution

Appendix D shows how these Policies meet the Objectives set out in Section 4.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 11 of 35

Page 44



5.1 DESIGN GUIDELINES FOR SOUTH CERNEY

Rationale for Design Guidelines for South Cerney

5.1.1

Encouraged by the NPPF to respect local distinctiveness, the South Cerney Neighbourhood
Character Assessment (NCA Appendix N) established that the parish contains areas of differing
architecture, landscape and land use. To best reflect these differing characteristics, seven sub-
areas were identified with boundaries between the areas refined on walk-about.

Figure 3 Sub Areas in Neighbourhood Character Assessment

South_Cerney LCAs

Panish©nline Gons: Garowy - Laalty Gharacir Assemsrsent Areas South Cerney CP ‘TF

o . . = Legend
£  — i A ?
Soae Dl ) § \ Locality Charscter
g PN g Azsessment

Camey Wick
Commercial
Laves
Later Comsy
Normen Fringe
Qg Camey

Southem Frnge

0S 25,000 SCR

o R L i / - oo, ‘A 7= N \

5.1.2

5.1.3

Dets Oreatec: 10-3-2017 | Map Centrs (Casting/Northing): 409274 / 197124 | Coale: 1.32039 | © Crown copyrght and dwiabase nght. All rights reserved (10005752€) 2017

The Conservation Area Statement, drawn up by Cotswold District Council (CDC) in 2002, was
used as an important reference document in constructing the NCA and continues to be an
important consideration for future development proposals. Important Views, Important
Approaches, and/or Focal Features are set out in the Conservation Area Character Map
(Appendix C). Additional Views and Vistas from the NCA are detailed in Appendix E.

The village of South Cerney was split into two sub areas, Old Cerney and Later Cerney,
representing the older and historic part of the village, and the different architecture and layout
of 20" century and 21% century developments.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 12 of 35

Page 45



5.1.4 Aseparate sub-area, the Commercial Area, represents the Lakeside Business Area.
5.1.5 A separate sub-area represents the settlement of Cerney Wick.

5.1.6 The areas outside of the settlements divide into three distinct landscapes, the rolling landscape
of the Northern Fringe, the flat aggregate worked/working areas of the Cotswold Water Park
(The Lakes) and the Southern Fringe reflecting the un-spoilt countryside to the south of Cerney
Wick. More detail of the methodology followed is contained in the NCA (Appendix N) report.

5.1.7 The Lakes, The Northern Fringe, Southern Fringe and Cerney Wick, are outside the Development
Boundary (set out in the CDC Local Plan) and are covered by Local Plan Policy DS3 — small-scale
residential development in non-principal settlements.

POLICY SC1
Design Guidelines for South Cerney

Proposals for new developments, including extensions to existing buildings, should harmonise with their
surroundings and follow the lead from the local vernacular in their immediate locality and South Cerney
Neighbourhood Character Assessment (NCA Appendix N) area.

New developments should take account of the Cotswold Design Code (which is Appendix D to the 2011-
2131 CDC Local Plan) and the South Cerney Neighbourhood Character Assessment (NCA) Appendix N.

The proposals should have specific regard to:

® Retaining and, where appropriate, enhancing, key views, vistas and the open green character of
many of the streets within the village (cf Appendix E and the Conservation Area Map in Appendix C)

e Reflecting and respecting local character and features assessed within the NCA (Appendix N) and the
Conservation Area appraisal (Conservation Area Map in Appendix C)

e Addressing the areas for improvement identified in the NCA (Appendix N).

The character of the built environment in large parts of the Lakes area is fundamentally different to the
typical Cotswolds’ vernacular with many lake side holiday home complexes and club house scale
buildings following a New England style of contemporary timber clad lodge design. Here, additions to
these complexes should follow the New England style and be designed to harmonise with the existing
buildings.

Along the Spine Road, in the Lakes NCA area, are some commercial buildings (Cotswold Outdoor Shop
and the Visitor Centre) and a hotel that are of a more traditional Cotswold stone design. Further
buildings of this scale along the Spine Road should follow this style rather than the New England style
which should be reserved for holiday lodge scale developments.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 13 of 35

Page 46




5.2 AREA OF SEPARATION

Rationale for Area of Separation

5.2.1

5.2.2

5.2.3

5.2.4

This policy is to preserve the sense of community in South Cerney and to retain the historic
setting of the village. Protecting the attractive and historic setting of the village, on the edge of
a desirable tourist and leisure destination, promotes the village’s individual identity and the
developing tourist and leisure industry. It reinforces the situation of South Cerney within the
network of Saxon town and medieval villages which characterise this area of the Upper Thames
Vales.

Natural England (cf National Character Area Profile: 108) notes a typical landscape attribute in
the Upper Thames Clay Vales — the area in which South Cerney is situated - is “long and wide
views across open fields”.

Through the Household Survey, Residents made it clear that green space and open countryside
is their top ‘like” about living in South Cerney. The second most common response indicates
that they value the community spirit. A sense of identity as a separate community with its own
self-sufficient facilities and community groups is also highly valued. Therefore this policy
reflects the wish that settlements do not coalesce and are visibly separated.

The sub area described in the Neighbourhood Character Assessment (NCA Appendix N) as the
‘Northern Fringe’ includes the Duke of Gloucester Barracks, which is part of the Ministry of
Defence (MOD) estate. The Barracks consists of the army camp and the airfield. Whilst much of
the ‘Northern Fringe’ is essential to the Area of Separation, the developed part of the Barracks,
the army camp and airfield buildings (hangers and control tower), are excluded from it. The
Neighbourhood Plan does not seek to restrict the operation of the developed facilities for
defence and security purposes.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 14 of 35

Page 47



Figure 4 Map showing Area of Separation

Policy SC2 - Area of Separation South Cemey CP

[ ==
Author === Pansh©nline

Date:  03/02/2021 | plhaplies |

Locality Character Assessment

Development Boundary |
O ‘
Policy SC2 Area of Separation

5

POLICY SC2
Area of Separation

The area shown on figure 4 above is designated as an Area of Separation between South Cerney,
Cirencester, Siddington and Preston. The Area of Separation covers the area to the north of the village
of South Cerney down to the road to the west by Cross Roads Farm and, to the east, the track (public
footpath) that runs by The Sisters Farm. All areas outside of the South Cerney Development Boundary
are included, with the exception of the army camp and airfield buildings at the Duke of Gloucester
Barracks and housing outside the barracks on the Cirencester Road. To avoid the visual and actual
coalescence of settlements, development within this area should be compatible with a rural setting,
should not adversely impact on the perception and visual appearance of open countryside within the
area, and should not reduce the visual and demonstrable separation of settlements.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 15 of 35

Page 48




5.3 ENCOURAGING HOME WORKING AND MICRO BUSINESSES

Rationale for Encouraging Home Working and Micro Businesses

5.3.1 The Cotswold District Council Local Plan Policy EC1 supports “Employment Development ..........
which enables opportunities for more sustainable working practices, including homeworking”,
acknowledging that, within the Cotswold District the level of homeworking is twice the National
Average. It attributes this, partly to the rural nature of the District and a skilled and
entrepreneurial workforce. Tourism is cited as a major, growing part of the local economy, with
the accompanying “Issue” that it needs to be properly managed to provide sustainable and
sustained benefits to the local economy. Hence this Policy aims to encourage suitable
alternative sources of employment.

POLICY SC3
Encouraging Home Working and Micro Businesses

Home working and micro business developments will be supported subject to complying with the South
Cerney Neighbourhood Character Assessment (NCA Appendix N), policies EC1 and EC3 in the Cotswold
District Council Local Plan 2011-31, and, not having:

® significant trafficimpact

e adverse effect on surrounding residential amenity

® adverse impact on the Conservation Area

and

® inrural areas outside the development boundary, being small scale and protecting the
environmental asset essential for a vibrant tourist industry.

5.4 LocAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES

Rationale for Local Employment Opportunities

5.4.1 The Household Survey showed concerns about traffic levels in to and out of South Cerney and
associated parking issues. In common with other rural villages, with limited public transport
available, most commuter journeys are by car. There is a desire to reduce commuting into and
out of the village. While we understand there is no compulsion on employers to look for local
labour, we are keen that there is encouragement in this plan to do that. Hence this Policy
encourages the promotion of greater local employment opportunities.

POLICY SC4
Local Employment Opportunities

Development creating employment opportunities in the parish will be encouraged to demonstrate how
employment opportunities will be offered and promoted to local residents.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 16 of 35

Page 49




5.5 EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT OUTSIDE THE DEVELOPMENT BOUNDARY

Rationale for Employment Development outside the Development Boundary

5.5.1 The Lakeside Business Park is the second largest employment area within the Cotswold District.
As discussed in the South Cerney Neighbourhood Character Assessement (NCA Appendix N),
many of the industrial units have been well designed. Space exists within the Business Park, and
this is the location suited and available for further B Class employment development. The
tourist and leisure industry in the parish are vulnerable should there be inappropriate
employment and other development in the area.

POLICY SC5
Employment Development Outside the Development Boundary
Class B2/B8 Employment development should be located within the Lakeside Business Park.

Employment development outside the Development Boundary will be acceptable only if compatible
with the Cotswold District Council Local Plan 2011-2031 Policy EC3, the rural area, and does not
adversely impact on the residential amenity of existing holiday settlements outside of the development
boundary with regard to noise, visual intrusion and other potential adverse amenity impacts. Any
proposal should also be consistent with guidance in the South Cerney Neighbourhood Character
Assessment (NCA Appendix N).

5.6 HoOLIDAY ACCOMMODATION AND ACCESS TO LAKES

Rationale for Holiday Accommodation and Access to Lakes

5.6.1 Commercial developers of the areas around the lakes have converted some areas into private
holiday estates, with restricted use holiday homes built in a lodge style. Where public rights of
way run alongside these estates, wire fences often enclose paths with notices forbidding access
to areas beyond the paths. Some local residents feel that, having endured the disruption and
unattractive environment during the gravel extraction process, they are denied the benefit of
the improved landscape (and ‘restricted access to lakes/rights of way’ is an issue raised in the
Household Survey as something respondents disliked about living in South Cerney). Car park
charges at some of the few accessible sites have increased the resentment.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 17 of 35

Page 50




5.6.2 The parish now has nearly 1,000 holiday homes and static caravans. These are specifically for
use as holiday homes outside of the Development Boundary, and use of them is monitored to
check they are not being used for primary residence. CDC has produced guidance on how this
will be decided. With the number of households in the Parish at 1,750, further expansion in the
number of holiday homes and caravans will begin to approach a disproportionate,
uncomfortable level. Residents of the Parish feel excluded from access to these developments,
and some of the owners (whose properties are subject to Business Rates rather than Council
Tax) make no contribution to the Parish Council via the precept.

5.6.3 Feedback to the Lakeside holiday home questionnaire, included comment that the area has
developed enough and more hotels are undesirable.

POLICY SC6
Holiday Accommodation and Access to Lakes

Public access to the lakes should be maintained and improved where possible. Where appropriate,
developments at existing and new holiday accommodation sites will be expected to include improved
public access to the lakes and South Cerney village as part of the proposal.

In line with the Cotswold District Council Local Plan Policy EC11, new holiday accommodation outside of
the Development Boundary will not normally be permitted. Redevelopment and improvements of
existing holiday home developments may be acceptable, but wider benefits of improved access to lakes
for all visitors and local residents will be sought from the development proposals.

5.7 NON-RESIDENTIAL VISITOR FACILITIES

Rationale for Non-residential Visitor Facilities

5.7.1 Tourism is an important part of the local economy, and development that enhances leisure and
opportunities for visitors will support the local economy. However, any such development will
need to be in keeping with the local character and of a scale suited to the village and rural
location. Note that the part of the Cotswold Water Park which lies within South Cerney, is all
within The Lakes area of the South Cerney Neighbourhood Character Assessment (see Figure 3
above and NCA Appendix N).

5.7.2 The NPPF 2019 (Paragraph 180b) states that planning policies and decisions should ‘identify and
protect tranquil areas which have remained relatively undisturbed by noise and are prized for
their recreational and amenity value for this reason’.

5.7.3 The CPRE Map of tranquility (2006) shows the greatest areas of tranquility within the Upper
Thames Clay Vales (Natural England Character Area 108), lie around the Cotswold Water Park.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 18 of 35

Page 51




5.7.4

5.7.5

5.7.6

Quiet lakes provide a wildlife haven and offer a different recreational experience for visitors and
local people. In order that some lakes continue to provide the peace and tranquillity that
wildlife and people need, they are not considered suitable for development that introduces
recreational and other uses with significant noise and disturbance impact. The aim is to
encourage non-residential visitors to enjoy the peace and tranquillity of the Cotswold Water
Park.

The CDC Local Plan Policy SP5 permits proposals for “sports, leisure, and/or recreational
development.......... on former mineral extraction sites” within the area known as the Cotswold
Water Park provided “they satisfactorily mitigate ..... potential adverse impacts on residential
amenity and maintain the character of settlements and their settings”. CDC LP Policy EC10
ensures that new tourism development protects the “high quality” natural environment and
considers that any “large scale visitor development will be ......... unacceptable if it would harm
the landscape.” This Policy, SC7, supports the Local Plan Policy SP5 in strengthening the
“landscape character” and reinforcing “the Cotswold Water Park’s sense of place.”

It also supports Natural England’s objective (cf National Character Area Profile: 108 Upper
Thames Clay Vales Statement of Environmental Opportunity SEO1) to promote rivers and lakes
as places to experience tranquillity. Natural England note that recreation activities should be
“appropriately managed ...... in order to avoid disturbance of breeding birds, poor experiences of
tranquillity and potential conflict between user groups. Securing sustainable recreation is
particularly important on ecologically fragile sites or where the negative impact would be
significant.”

POLICY SC7

Non-residential Visitor Facilities

Visitor facilities that enhance the leisure and recreational offer of the Cotswold Water Park while

respecting the residential, rural and sensitive landscape location will be supported.

Development that significantly harms the tranquility of lakes predominantly used for quiet recreational
pursuits (for example, fishing, naturally powered sailing, walking) will not normally be permitted.

5.8 EXISTING RECREATIONAL OPEN SPACES AND ALLOTMENTS

Rationale for Existing Recreational Open Spaces and Allotments

5.8.1

The parish enjoys some good facilities and open spaces which are strongly valued by residents
who wish to see these provisions protected, and where possible and practical, improved.
Recreational and community facilities on open land and water include; allotments, play areas,
Upper Up playing fields, the bowls green, fishing lakes, sailing clubs and water sport areas.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 19 of 35

Page 52




POLICY SC8
Existing Recreational Open Spaces and Allotments

Any development on the areas of Open Space and allotments listed below, and shown in Appendix G,
will be acceptable only if it enhances and protects that use, or offers, as a replacement, a similar facility
of equal or better value in terms of recreational value and accessibility and, in the case of allotments,
horticultural quality.

Developments on open spaces should enhance the use of that open space and not introduce noisy or
other activities not suited to a residential area. Open spaces and allotments will be expected to be
maintained as such, unless equivalent provision is provided that is at least equally acceptable. Any
development on these should not significantly adversely impact on residential amenity or the character
of the locality.

e Cerney Wick Playground

e Cerney on the Water: Play Area

e Cerney on the Water: Woodland

e Cerney on the Water: Lakeside

e Cerney on the Water: Fenton’s Play Area
e QOpen area by Scout Hut

e Village Hall Green

® The Piece, Station Road (Common Land)
e Bowling Green

e Berkeley Close open space

® School Lane Allotments

e Playground at Robert Franklin Way

e Ann Edwards’ School Playground and Sports Field
e South Cerney Golf Course

5.9 PROTECTION OF COMMUNITY AND CULTURAL FACILITIES

Rationale for Protection of Community and Cultural Facilities

5.9.1 The retention and enhancement of facilities and services that meet the needs of the people of
the parish will reduce the need for residents to travel further afield. It will also enable South
Cerney to maintain and enhance its independence and healthy community.

5.9.2 These are potential Assets of Community Value (ACVs) as envisaged by the Localism Act 2011.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 20 of 35

Page 53




POLICY SC9
Protection of Community and Cultural Facilities

In order to promote a thriving village for all ages, the community and cultural facilities listed below and
their existing use will be protected:

e Village Hall, South Cerney

® Fenton’s Community Centre

e Scout Hut

e Site of Cerney Wick Village Hall (the current dilapidated building is not fit for purpose, although the
site could be used to develop a replacement Village Hall)

®  Church of Holy Trinity, Cerney Wick, with adjoining graveyard

e All Hallows Church with adjoining graveyard

e Post Office

®  Pharmacy

® Doctors' Surgery

e South Cerney United Church

e Ann Edwards' Church of England Primary School

e Public house: The Royal Oak, High Street, South Cerney

® Public house: The Old George, Clarks Hay, South Cerney

e Public house: Eliot Arms, Clarks Hay, South Cerney

e Public house: The Crown, Cerney Wick

Development proposals to sustain or extend the viable use of any existing community and cultural
facilities, and the development of new facilities, will be supported only if they comply with other policies
in the Development Plan.

Development proposals that will result in the loss, or significant reduction in the scale and value of any
community and cultural facility, will be resisted unless:

® alternative facilities of equal or better accessibility, size and suitability are provided;
or

e jtcan be clearly demonstrated that the operation of the asset, or the ongoing delivery of the
community and cultural value of the asset, is no longer economically viable.

An asset will no longer be economically viable typically because the site has been marketed at a
reasonable price for at least a year (for that and any other suitable employment or service trade use)
and no interest in acquisition has been expressed.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 21 of 35

Page 54




5.10 LOCAL ECOLOGY SITES

Rationale for Local Ecology Sites

5.10.1 Ecology within the Cotswold Water Park

5.10.1.1

5.10.1.2

5.10.1.3

5.10.1.4

5.10.1.5

5.10.1.6

South Cerney is at the heart of the Cotswold Water Park which supports a rich biodiversity,
partly as a result of the intrinsic physical attributes of the area, plus land management
activities over many centuries. The area supports a wide variety of notable species, some of
which are targets of the Cotswold Water Park Biodiversity Action Plan, including wintering and
breeding birds such as pochard and gadwell, as well as water vole, otter, bittern, freshwater
white clawed crayfish and the lesser bearded stonewort. However, this is under pressure from
the 500,000 annual visitors to the Cotswold Water Park, and, therefore, is a resource which
requires protection.

In January 2021, Natural England gave notice that “it has reviewed the notification Cotswold
Water Park SSSI and has enlarged the SSSI boundary to include more land of special interest.
The boundary of Cotswold Water Park SSSI has been enlarged under section 28C of the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, to include more land that is considered to be of special
interest..... The enlarged notification under section 28C takes effect immediately.” This
Neighbourhood Plan welcomes and supports this enhanced protection for the substantial
areas of the Parish within the Cotswold Water Park. Some of the justification gathered during
the preparation of the Neighbourhood Plan (before the Natural England notification) is
documented below. Note that the Pre Submission Consultation phase (Regulation 14) for this
draft Plan was completed in November 2020 before Natural England’s notification.

As part of the consultation process, a Cotswold Water Park Ranger observed that, the lakes
surrounded by holiday homes have become of little ecological value due to human
intervention, and the same can be said of those stocked by fishing clubs. The Cotswold Water
Park Integrated Landscape Character Assessment notes that some “lakes appear to have been
constructed specifically for recreational purposes and although some attempts have been
made to naturalise these lakes through lakeside planting, many of the water bodies tend to be
poorly integrated into the wider landscape.”

Natural England (cf National Character Area Profile: 108 Upper Thames Clay Vales) note that
poor water quality and non-native species are negatively impacting the Cotswold Water Park
SSSI. They classify the condition of this SSSI as ‘Unfavourable — Declining’.

Within the Cotswold Water Park, the clonal genetic diversity of black poplars is studied along
with an active propagation and conservation programme, and Natural England recommend it
as a site from which to draw ‘best practice’ around black poplar. However, they note that
native black poplars are ageing and there are few successors. According to the Forestry
Commission, black poplar is the most endangered native timber tree in Britain.

The Cotswold Water Park Bio-Diversity Action Plan (BAP) 2007-2016, emphasises that “an
increase in the bio-diversity of an area is a crucial measure of sustainable development and a
lasting legacy for future generations.”

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 22 of 35

Page 55



5.10.2 Important Ecology Sites outside the Cotswold Water Park

5.10.2.1 The areas of the Parish which lie outside the Cotswold Water Park include sites identified by
other recognised authorities as of ecological importance and which do not have the protection
of the SSSI status. These are appreciated and enjoyed by residents and visitors alike, including
those with specialist interests. In order to conserve, and, where possible, increase
biodiversity, protection from development and remedial actions during development are
required.

5.10.2.2 The remains of the Thames Severn Canal, those of the Midland and South Western Junction
Railway and the meandering River Churn, bordered by ditches, woodland, former water
meadows and open fields, all provide habitats and corridors for a variety of flora and fauna.

5.10.2.3 Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust have identified two ‘Local Wildlife Sites’ meeting their criteria as
“areas with a rich diversity of habitats that provide refuges and corridors for wildlife across
Gloucestershire. They are found on both public and private land and include a great variety of
valuable semi-natural habitats such as ancient woodland, species-rich grasslands, river valleys,
heathland and hedgerows. These sites have no legal protection, yet they still deserve
recognition as the most important places for wildlife outside of legally protected land such as
Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI).” The Local Wildlife sites are shown on Figure 5 below:

5.10.2.3.1 LWS 1 —River Churn. This is the area of historic former water meadow (see Policy SC12)
which continues to flood periodically, thereby providing varied habitats along the River
Churn.

5.10.2.3.2 LWS 3 —Cerney Wick Meadow. The area around the Weir between the River Churn and the
Thames and Severn Canal, also subject to seasonal flooding.

5.10.2.4 Gloucestershire Geological Trust have identified a ‘Regionally Important Geological /
Geomorphological Site (RIGS)’ shown on Figure 5 as number 2 ‘Railway Cutting RIGS’ at GPS
location SU045 980. The Railway cutting near Hill View Farm has rich ammonite fauna and is
one of the few permanently exposed examples within Gloucestershire of a Jurassic period rock
known as the “Kellaways Formation” (both clay and sand members). The cutting exposes the
thickest development of “Kellaways Rock” (sand member) in the south west of England. Also
exposed above the Kellaways beds is the contact with the lower part of the Oxford Clay
Formation (a Jurassic marine sedimentary rock). This contact is not known to be exposed
anywhere else in the county.

5.10.2.5 This Policy supports the Cotswold District Council Local Plan Policies EN7, EN8 and EN9 for sites
located within South Cerney. These policies aim to ensure the long term resilience of
biodiversity, such that any development results in no net loss whilst seeking net gains via
habitat creation and land management.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 23 of 35

Page 56



5.10.2.6 This Policy adheres to Natural England’s objective (cf National Character Area Profile: 108
Upper Thames Clay Vales Statement of Environmental Opportunity SEO1) to “Ensure that the
long-term, sustainable management of habitats is secured along with recreational benefits
engaging the public in learning about local geodiversity and biodiversity.” SEOQ1 further aspires
to “conserve and restore historic flood meadows, locks and ditches so that water levels can be
managed for the benefit of water flow, sense of history and biodiversity”.

5.10.2.7 Note that Figure 5 below is reproduced on a larger scale in Appendix F. It also displays areas
within the Parish included on the National Forest Inventory (NFI). These are not specified
within this Neighbourhood Plan Policy as they correspond to areas under the protection of
Natural England as Priority Habitats and/or Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs).

Figure 5 Local Ecology Sites

SOUTH CERNEY
WILDLIFE
- 2021

Legend

4 Omrmtes Rabeny &1

i the Parin E1 Not in e Partsh 8

[

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 24 of 35

Page 57



POLICY SC10
Local Ecology Sites

The following Local Ecology Sites, listed below and shown on Figure 5 (and in Appendix F), are to be
conserved so that the wildlife and ecological value of the sites is protected and, where possible,
enhanced.

1 — River Churn Local Wildlife Site (LWS)
2 — Railway Cutting Regionally Important Geological/Geomorphological Site (RIGS)
3 — Cerney Wick Meadow Local Wildlife Site (LWS)

Where the benefits of development are so great that it is considered harm to these sites is justified,
then adequate mitigation and conservation measures will need to be drawn up and included in any
planning application. These measures and future maintenance of biodiversity value are required to be a
condition of any planning. All developments are normally expected to achieve an overall biodiversity
net gain which at least matches that required by legislation and national or other local plan policy.

Proposals will be supported that comply with other policies in the Development Plan and:

e Conserve and enhance the biodiversity of the area, particularly any designated Local Wildlife Sites
and Regionally Important Geological/Geomorphological Sites, any protected species, any priority
species and habitats.

® Enhance the connectivity between existing biodiversity sites and habitats.

® Increase the potential for the public to enjoy and better understand ecology and biodiversity.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 25 of 35

Page 58




5.11 DESIGNATION OF LOCAL GREEN SPACES

Rationale for Designation of Local Green Spaces

5.11.1 The NPPF makes provision for ‘Local Green Spaces’, which are of particular importance to
communities and where development will not be permitted except in very special
circumstances, to be designated through the Local Plan and through Neighbourhood Plans. In
South Cerney, the Cotswold District Council Local Plan Policy EN3 designates LGS 11 Church Lane
Allotments and LGS 12 Upper Up Playing Fields as such.

5.11.2 This NP adds two further areas, within the Conservation Area, which reflect the historic heart of
South Cerney village and were identified by many respondents of the Household Survey as being
of the highest value: LGS1 Boxbush Farm Fields and LGS2 Chapter Manor — Edwards’ College
Parkland. The Conservation Area Statement describes LGS1 Boxbush Farm Fields as “the most
important” open space in the village of South Cerney and LGS2 Chapter Manor — Edwards’
College Parkland as “a very important open space within the Conservation Area.” See Appendix

H for further information.

Figure 6 Local Green Spaces
. [\ N
%\ /SOUTH CERNEY NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN —
Local Green Space(LGS1)
Box Bush Farm Fields
]

e = { \Vé\g
AV__:_}'; f - p— T
A= ) 1
A

SE
{

Seme 12000 @ Ad
€ Srowe capyrgnt ana -—-u-.—xu{
Srmpnce 16004408

\

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 26 of 35

SOUTH CERNEY NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

Local Green Space (LGS2)
Chapter Manor - Edwards’ College

if

i

Ol Soale: 1:2600 @ A4
© Crown copyrnt and datadase rghts 2013
Oranance Survey,100057526

Page 59

\

A

K




POLICY SC11
Designation of Local Green Spaces

LGS1 Boxbush Farm Fields (part of Land Registry Title GR303035) and LGS2 Chapter Manor — Edwards’
College Parkland (Land Registry Title GR269360) are designated as Local Green Space, as shown in the
mapsin 5.11.3.

Development on Local Green Space will be supported only in very special circumstances including
development that preserves and enhances the attributes for which it was designated.

5.12 LocALLY LISTED NON-DESIGNATED HERITAGE ASSETS

Rationale for Locally Listed Non-Designated Heritage Assets

5.12.1 Designated heritage assets are protected through policy EN10 of the Cotswold District Council
Local Plan, and designated heritage assets/conservation areas are protected through policy
EN11. The Conservation Area statement, community consultation, members of the South
Cerney Trust, and the NCA (Appendix N) have identified a number of non-designated heritage
‘locally listed’ assets (NDHAs) that comply with Table 6 of Local Plan policy EN12 and these are
detailed in Appendix Ib.

5.12.2 Natural England’s objective (cf National Character Area Profile: 108 Upper Thames Clay Vales
Statement of Environmental Opportunity SEO3) includes “managing canals to conserve
important heritage features.......providing corridors and habitat for wildlife.” They also cite an
opportunity to “Conserve and restore historic flood meadows, locks and ditches so that water
levels can be managed for the benefit of water flow, sense of history and biodiversity." Ridge
and furrow dating from medieval times survives within the Parish and, Natural England note
that this requires protection from potential destruction and damage resulting from farming
activities.

5.12.3 Historical accounts, for example Samuel Rudder’s 1779 “A New History of Gloucestershire” and
the leading 18" — 19" century agriculturalist Arthur Young, record the success with which the
farmers of South Cerney managed water meadows along the River Churn. Arthur Young
considered the South Cerney “meads” as “equal, if not superior to any thing of the kind in the
kingdom.” The practice, sometimes known as “drowning the meadows”, involved digging
ditches across fields bordering the river, allowing water to flood across the fields in winter
controlled by hatches. The resultant deposit of silt fertilized the soil and raised its temperature,
increasing grazing and hay harvests. By the middle of the 20" century, this method had fallen
out of use, and the practitioners are no longer alive to share their knowledge and expertise.
Many remains are lost either through development of the land or by dilapidation. Given the skill
and fame of past farmers, the best preserved surviving remains deserve protection.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 27 of 35

Page 60




POLICY SC12
Local Heritage Assets

The historic characteristics of the non-designated ‘locally listed” Heritage Assets (NDHAs) detailed in
Appendix | are to be conserved and where possible enhanced in any development proposal.

Appendix I(a) lists structures and buildings already recognised as Non Designated Heritage Assets
including those identified as ‘Buildings of Special Character’ in the South Cerney Conservation Area
Statement of 2002.

Appendix I(b) lists Locally Listed Heritage Assets meeting the criteria in Table 6 of the Cotswold District
Council Local Plan 2011-2031 as follows:

e Airfield White Control Tower

e Talland House

e Bus Shelter, High Street

® Pennant kerbstones along Silver Street

e Three Stone slab stiles

e Three Railway Bridges from the former Midland and South Western Junction Railway
® Lock Keeper’s Cottage at South Cerney Upper Lock

e Seven locks on Thames Severn Canal

e Round house at Cerney Wick

®  Milepost on Thames Severn Canal

e |SIS Lakes Holiday Homes

e Evidence of Ridge and Furrow

® Two sites with characteristic remains of post-medieval water meadows

This is not an exhaustive list and further NDHAs may be identified in the future that meet the criteria
provided in the Cotswold District Council Local Plan 2011-2031.

5.13 REDEVELOPMENT OF CLARK’S HAY GARAGE

Rationale for Redevelopment of Clark’s Hay Garage

5.13.1 The garage on Clark’s Hay is located within the Conservation Area. Originally this garage was
the village petrol service station. Over time, the petrol pumps have been removed and the use
has changed to become a vehicle recovery and repair operation, which does not serve the
village. This operation is now incongruous and unattractive, situated in the centre of the village.
The barrage of comments from the Household Survey and public consultation meetings indicate
the strong feelings of the residents. South Cerney has an area within the Lakeside Business Park
that would be suitable for this operation if relocated.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 28 of 35

Page 61




POLICY SC13

Redevelopment of Clark’s Hay Garage

Redevelopment of this site for residential use and/or commercial use is encouraged, in order that the
visual appearance and use of the site becomes better suited to the Conservation Area location. New
development will be required to conserve and enhance the setting of adjacent heritage assets and the
Conservation Area, and comply with guidance in the South Cerney Neighbourhood Character
Assessment and the Cotswold Design Code 2018.

5.14 ALLEVIATION OF FLOODING

Rationale for Alleviation of Flooding

5.14.1

5.14.2

5.14.3

5.14.4

5.14.5

South Cerney has a history of flooding from multiple sources and, in the opinion of specialist
consultants ‘JBA Consulting’, is probably the most complex settlement, from a flood risk point of
view, within Cotswold District.

Since the year 2000, parts of the village (including the sewage system) have flooded from the
River Churn, the Shire Ditch (the sole outflow for the Thames Water Sewage works at Shorncote,
which takes all the sewage from Cirencester, Siddington, Preston and South Cerney, plus storm-
water and groundwater surcharge in times of high rainfall), or from high groundwater. Areas of
South Cerney are now classified by the Thames Water Drainage Strategy as being at High Risk of
groundwater flooding. Since all the outflow from the sewage works at Shorncote discharges
into the Shire Ditch, it is believed that this risk will increase with any additional developments in
Cirencester, for example the Chesterton development of more than 2300 residential dwellings.

As a result of increasing levels of rainfall, evidenced in the winter of 2019-2020, the storm water
entering the sewage works at Shorncote has caused the discharge of untreated sewage. This
has led to a pervasive, unpleasant smell in the village.

The winter of 2019-2020 saw flooding in Cerney Wick, the causes of which are under
investigation. On 27 December 2020, stretches of School Lane, Clark’s Hay, Station Road and
the High Street were flooded, overwhelming the storm water drains and sewers leaving roads
closed, houses flooded and raw sewage in the streets. The River Churn broke its banks and large
tracts of water meadows were deep under water. The Evidence Base includes photographs of
this event.

The second most mentioned issue in the Household Questionnaire and most vociferously raised
at the public consultation meeting was inadequate drainage and flooding in the village. Over
two-thirds of responses to the Household Survey were either very or moderately concerned
about flood-risk. 38% of respondents have been personally affected by flooding in their
property. Comments asserted that we should be using water/flood meadows, managing silt
levels and clearing drain ditches.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 29 of 35

Page 62




POLICY SC14
Alleviation of Flooding

A Flood Risk Assessment will be required for any development within areas identified as at high risk of
groundwater flooding in the JBA Consultancy ‘Groundwater Risk Flood Map’ in Appendix K. Monitoring
of groundwater levels will be required for at least one year on all such sites. The Flood Risk Assessment
is be based on an accurate assessment of fluvial, surface water and groundwater flooding potential and
cumulative impact from other development and from Climate Change. Developers will need to
demonstrate that flooding will not be exacerbated by the development, including any adverse impact on
groundwater, either within the development or the surrounding area. Developers will also need to
ensure the incorporation of sustainable drainage techniques where possible.

5.15 ENERGY USE AND RENEWABLE ENERGY

Rationale for Energy Use and Renewable Energy

5.15.1 The cost and use of energy, and the impact of energy use on climate change, were issues raised
during the Household Survey. This is partly attributable to raised awareness of energy issues
and costs, and partly a reflection that there are many older properties in South Cerney, where
energy performance falls well below current building standards. Cold damp buildings and fuel
poverty are issues that need to be addressed. South Cerney is not unique in facing these
problems (cf ‘Warmer Bath’ by The Bath Preservation Trust and the Centre for Sustainable
Energy June 2011).

5.15.2 There has been some retrofitting of photo-voltaic and thermal solar panels on roofs in South
Cerney, and a few properties have deployed renewable technologies such as heat pumps. There
are no larger scale renewable energy facilities in the parish.

5.15.3 There are conflicts between energy policy issues, and the conservation and enhancement of
designated and non-designated historical buildings and their settings. In striking the planning
balance between benefits and impacts, full weight should be given to the benefits.

POLICY SC15
Energy Use and Renewable Energy

Energy Efficiency measures and the deployment of renewable energy technologies in new and existing
buildings will be supported, as long as there is no unacceptable visual or amenity impact, when the
energy and environmental benefits of the scheme outweigh any visual or other impacts.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 30 of 35

Page 63




5.16 SUSTAINABLE TRAVEL AND RIGHTS OF WAY NETWORK

Rationale for Sustainable Travel and Rights of Way Network

5.16.1 This policy provides local detail for the implementation of the Cotswold District Council Local
Plan 2011-2031 Policy INF3 and Policy S8 for South Cerney.

5.16.2 The level nature of the parish makes it particularly suited to cycling as well as walking.
Promotion of sustainable travel within the village will reduce car use for short local journeys.
This will require facilities to be safe and continuous. At present there are missing links and
severance issues, as shown on the footpaths plan in Appendix J.

5.16.3 The improvement of safe walking and cycling facilities within South Cerney village and parish are
important for both local residents and visitors, and could be a tourism asset. Respondents to
the Household Survey support these proposed improvements.

5.16.4 Although South Cerney is quite well served with footpaths, this amenity can be made better and
safer through a small number of enhancements. The Parish Council has new footpaths pending
planning approval with GCC Commons and Rights of Way Committee. Not least to meet the
identified tourist need, new ones are identified and two sections of new footpaths needed to
improve pedestrian safety. (See Appendix J).

5.16.5 CDC LP Policy S8 for South Cerney recognises that, within the wider parish, links between
recreational facilities and other locations need providing or in some cases improving. In
particular, an off-road link to Cirencester is needed to promote sustainable journeys between
home and work, tourism and trips by local visitors. The disused railway line to Siddington
provides an obvious opportunity.

POLICY SC16
Sustainable Travel and Rights of Way Network

Development proposals (including tourism and leisure) will be expected to retain the rights of way
network, and where appropriate, contribute to improve and extend it.

The following infrastructure projects are priorities for improvements:

® Repair of Sustrans Route 45 though the parish

® Redevelopment of a new off-road cycle link towards Cirencester and a cycle path to the Duke of
Gloucester Barracks and the Cotswold Water Park

e Conservation and maintenance of the public footpath along the Thames and Severn Canal towpath

e Better provision of recreational routes for wheelchair users

e Completion of the Footpath network detailed in Appendix J.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 31 of 35

Page 64




5.17 REDUCTION OF LIGHT POLLUTION

Rationale for Reduction of Light Pollution

5.17.1 An asset is that the majority of the Parish area is not lit at night, which reduces overall light
pollution and contributes to the visibility of the night skies.

5.17.2 The NPPF (Paragraph 180c) states that planning policies and decisions should ‘limit the impact of
light pollution from artificial light on local amenity, intrinsically dark landscapes and nature
conservation.’

5.17.3 The International Dark Sky Association (Lighting Public Policy) states that ‘the preponderance of
available scientific data suggests that exposure to artificial light at night presents significant risks
to human health.” Also, that ‘Poorly designed and/or installed outdoor lighting is a known
hazard to motorists, bicyclists and pedestrians in transit at night’.

5.17.4 Skies which are not polluted by light are important for nocturnal wildlife such as bats and owls.

5.17.5 Skies which are clear of light pollution enable local residents to enjoy clear views of stars,
constellations and other features of night skies.

POLICY SC17
Reduction of Light Pollution

Developments should be designed to reduce the occurrence of light pollution and, where appropriate,
are required to demonstrate how they will contribute towards minimizing light pollution. Information
on these measures must be submitted with applications.

Any lighting scheme that would normally require planning permission (eg floodlighting, lighting on poles
etc) or development that includes such a scheme will not be supported unless accompanied by a
Lighting Assessment.

The Lighting Assessment should:

¢ Demonstrate that all available and feasible mitigation solutions would be implemented to reduce
light pollution to a minimum so as to avoid loss of visual amenity to those residing within or visiting
the Parish and to reduce impact on nocturnal wildlife.

¢ Demonstrate that the proposed lighting scheme is unavoidable to ensure road and personal safety
of the development and that the benefits significantly outweigh the negative impact including any
impact on nocturnal wildlife

And

e Set out the operating hours of the light impact and demonstrate that these have been reduced to a
minimum.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 32 of 35

Page 65




6 COMMUNITY ACTION

6.1

We cannot ignore the feedback from our household questionnaire in which over 80% of
respondents were concerned about parking issues and over 81% concerned about traffic.

Parking, congestion and speeding featured highly in the things respondents disliked about living in
South Cerney. ltis intended therefore that, along with community groups, the Parish Council will
pursue the delivery of a transport management plan with the County and District Council, with
the intention of producing a coordinated and comprehensive document to include such solutions
as: better parking and parking restrictions, speed limits and non-invasive traffic calming measures.
Innovative funding arrangements will be investigated alongside expecting contributions from
development activity in the village.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 33 of 35

Page 66



7 APPENDICES

APPENDIX A: LOCAL CONSULTATION EVENTS

Table of Local Consultation Events

APPENDIX B: MAP OF THE PARISH

Map of the Parish

APPENDIX C: MAP OF THE CONSERVATION AREA

Map of the Conservation Area

APPENDIX D: How PoLIcles MEET OBJECTIVES

Matrix of how Policies meet Objectives

APPENDIX E: VIEWS

Description and Map of Views

APPENDIX F: LOCAL ECOLOGY SITES

Local Ecology Sites

APPENDIX G: OPEN SPACES

Existing Recreational Open Spaces and Allotments

APPENDIX H: LOCAL GREEN SPACES

Local Green Spaces

APPENDIX |: LOCALLY LISTED HERITAGE ASSETS

Local Heritage Assets

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 34 of 35

Page 67



APPENDIX J: RIGHTS OF WAY IMPROVEMENTS

Rights of Way Network: Missing Links and Improvements

APPENDIX K: GROUNDWATER RISK FLOOD MAP

Groundwater Risk Flood Map provided by JBA Consultancy

APPENDIX L: EVIDENCE BASE REFERENCES

Documents referred to above which are in the Evidence Base

APPENDIX M: REFERENCE LIST

Documents referred to above which are publicly available and not in the Evidence Base

APPENDIX N: NCA (NEIGHBOURHOOD CHARACTER ASSESSMENT)

Neighbourhood Character Assessment

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Submission Version: Page 35 of 35

Page 68



South Cerney Parish Council

Neighbourhood Plan
Consultation Statement

Submission Version

March 2021

Page 69



Introduction

This Consultation Statement has been prepared to fulfill the legal obligations of the
Neighbourhood Planning Regulations 2012. Section15(2). Part 5 of the Regulations sets
out what a Consultation Statement should contain:

(a) contains details of the persons and bodies that were consulted about the proposed
neighbourhood development plan;

(b) explains how they were consulted;
(c) summarises the main issues and concerns raised by the persons consulted;

(d) describes how these issues and concerns have been considered and, where relevant,
addressed in the proposed neighbourhood development plan.

Aims of Consultation

* To draw out, from the household and business community; local issues, concerns
and priorities which could enable the drafting and agreement of a Vision and
Obijectives for the Plan.

* To broaden understanding by explaining the purpose of Neighbourhood Planning;
how the Plan conformed with and gave a local flavour to the District Council Local
Plan, and positioning the Plan within the National Planning Framework.

* To explain that the Plan was not about preventing development rather detailing
how future development could take account of local character and needs.

* To ensure that consultation events took place at critical points in the process
where decisions needed to be taken.

Background to Consultation

In October 2015 the Parish Council discussed the possibility of producing a
Neighbourhood Plan for the Parish. Other local Parishes were beginning the process and
it was agreed that a Steering Committee involving Parish Councillors and others from the
community with relevant skills should be established.

The Parish had produced a Parish Plan in 2013 but that Plan did not address the effect of
development on the character of the Parish.

Page 70



The Parish Council agreed the terms and reference of the Neighbourhood Plan Steering
Group, these appear as Appendix 1.

At the first meeting of the Steering Committee in January 2016 it was agreed that a Plan
would take advantage of the provisions of the Localism Act in relation to future planning
applications in South Cerney.

The assistance of Gloucestershire Rural Community Council (GRCC) was considered and
agreed. They had expertise in the development of Plans and could help both in
questionnaire development and analysis. They would also be prepared to attend public
sessions to give a broader input to the attendees.

In order to meet the aims the consultation was to take place in stages:
* Ahousehold survey covering all homes within the Parish.
* Abusiness survey for all employers in the Parish.

* A survey specifically for the owners of second homes situated around the lakes in
the Parish. These owners are visitors to the Parish for holiday purposes and their
views were considered to be important in respect of tourism and local facilities.

* Drop in presentations to enable the sharing of the results of the surveys and to
share and confirm the draft and final Vision and objectives.

There is a well established Parish Magazine, South Cerney News, which provided the
ideal vehicle for the distribution of the household survey, it is hand delivered on a monthly
basis.

Business surveys were also separately hand delivered and the Lakeside homes survey
distributed to owners by email through the lakeside management companies.

As part of the process of producing the Plan it was identified that a comprehensive
neighbourhood character assessment report should be produced. This task was
performed by members of the steering group and representatives of the South Cerney
Trust. This was a very valuable example of community engagement and ensured that all
aspects of the settlement and its position in the area were well documented.

Those Consulted

In addition to those identified in the previous paragraph guidance was sought from
Cotswold District Council in respect of Statutory Bodies to be consulted at the Reg 14
stage and to this list was added the names of local landowners and of those whose
property was specifically mentioned in the Draft Plan.

The Ministry of Defence was included due to the presence of the Duke of Gloucester
Military Base and Barracks in the Parish.

The list appears in Appendix 2.

Page 71



Stages of Consultation

The Parish Council concluded that the area for the Plan should be the boundaries of the
Parish. This was proposed and agreed with the District Council.

The programme of consultation events held during 2017 and 2018 was as follows:
Household Questionnaire

The questionnaire was distributed for completion by 16th January 2017. It is included as
Appendix 3.

Analysis of the responses was completed by GRCC.
In summary the response priorities were:
Top 4 likes:

* Green space/Countryside,

*  Community/Community spirit,

* Peaceful/quiet/secure,

* Amenities, Shops inc Post Office
Top 4 dislikes:

* Parking Issues,

* Congestion,

* Development,

* Speeding
Public Open Day

The analysis of the results of the questionnaire was presented to the public through an
open day held on 25th March 2017.

In excess of 150 people attended the consultation to view the summary output of the
questionnaire. Members of the Committee listened to comments and GRCC staff

Page 72



explained the wider context of Neighbourhood Planning. The stages to be followed were
explained.

A display of photographs of South Cerney “then and now” encouraged visitors to follow a
thought process of how we can plan for the next 20 years. A “post it “ note exercise
collected feedback.

The feedback can be summarised as follows:

Road maintenance, white lining and drainage and lighting
Integration of Watermark developments into South Cerney
Expanded and clearer access to open spaces and lakes
More village shops

Pavement and cycle/footpath maintenance and establishment in Broadway Lane,
Spine Road and village

Removal of garage
Parking problems, including a suggestion of using the pub car parks

No more large developments

Business Survey

A survey was sent to the business community for return by the 28th February 2017. It is
included as Appendix 4.

In Summary the responses were as follows:

Main business was retail distribution with a wide variety of others
300 employees in total, with 77 living more than 10 miles from South Cerney
Premises and employment were the main attraction to South Cerney

With 88% of employees travelling to work by car, traffic congestion and parking
were the main issues

Business Open Day

An open day was held for the business community on 20th April 2017 to share their
survey results.

Page 73



Feedback focused upon the problem of traffic congestion, lack of double yellow lines and
parking. Better communication with Kemble railway station was mentioned and a call for
more eating places for staff.

Vision and objectives feedback open day

An open day for all was held on 16th September 2017 to consider and confirm that the
draft Vision and Objectives met their priorities as presented in March and April 2017.

The event was supported by 20 residents, publicity before the event included an article in
Cerney News, Parish Council and Plan websites and circulation to the various social club
members.

Positive and supportive feedback was received using a “post it” note process. The vision
and objectives were satisfactory and comments provided in finer detail helped frame
policies.

Examples of comments were:

« “New owners should be encouraged to engage with the village”

+ “Maintain the separation but improve the links”

« «New developments to have high proportion of affordable housing”

« “Bowling green to be protected”

« “Ensure businesses are appropriate to village setting”

* “Campaign to purchase the garage and create a delightful village centre”
Lakeside Homes Questionnaire

A gquestionnaire was distributed to the owners of lakeside homes on 20th June 2018. It is
included as Appendix 5.

22 questionnaires were returned, a disappointing response but the owners of the lodges
do not live permanently in the Parish, visiting for weekends and holidays. Some of the
properties are let on a business basis.

The responses can be summarised as follows:

* |mportant aspects of South Cerney; countryside, peaceful and safe
neighbourhood, local shops and services, community spirit, facilities for leisure and
sport.

*  Walks and rural paths were very highly rated.

« The Water Park was valued for its’ tranquility and access for walking and cycling.

* Reducing traffic speed limits attracted support.

Page 74



The correlation with the priorities of residents provided confirmation that we were
identifying the main issues.

Regulation 14 Consultation

The statutory consultation in accordance with Regulation 14 ran from 14 September 2020
until 68 November 2020.

The process for the completion of Regulation 14 consultation was discussed with
Cotswold District Council in light of the COVID19 situation. The recommendations of the
Council were followed which incorporated extending the time available for submitting
responses and having copies of the plan available upon request from the Clerk of the
Council.

Summary of issues raised during Regulation 14 Consultation

The issues have been tabulated with the responses documented in each case and appear
in a spreadsheet at the end of the Appendices.

Conclusion

At the start of the process the Parish Council had no preconceived ideas about what
should be in the Plan. It was feedback from the public and businesses in the Plan area
which informed and directed the Vision, Objectives and Policies.

The Parish has seen considerable growth in the numbers of properties over the last five
years. In addition there has been continued development of holiday homes around the
lakes. The consequent increase in traffic volumes and related parking problems was
reflected in the feedback. This issue, whilst not one that can be directly dealt with by
planning policies has been tackled with a Community Action policy included in the Plan.

The Vision that was adopted for the Plan articulates the balance of new development with
historical buildings alongside the preservation of the landscape and separation of the
Parish. It specifically mentions the individuality and strength of the Community. Finally, it
records the need to build stronger connectivity and services.

The feedback from all of the surveys link to the nine Plan objectives (objective numbers in
brackets);

Green space/Countryside (2,8 and 9),
Community (2 and 4),
Peaceful/quiet/secure (1,5,7 and 9),
Amenities and shops (3,4 and 7),
Attraction to business (4 and 6),

Traffic congestion and speeding (7 and 8).

Page 75



Page 76



Appendices Pages

1. Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group Terms of Reference 9-12

2. List of Consultees 13-15
3. Household Questionnaire 16-22
4. Business Questionnaire 23-26
5. Lakeside Homes Questionnaire 27-31

6. Regulation 14 Consultation spreadsheet and actions taken

Page 77



Terms of Reference for the Neighbourhood Plan steering group

Purpose of the steering group: To oversee and co-ordinate the production of a sound
Neighbourhood Plan (NP) covering the parished area of South Cerney in the Cotswold
District, as identified in the designated neighbourhood area, working with members of the
community and the parish council to achieve this aim. The NP will make use of GRCC's
framework template for best practice and refer to previously successful neighbourhood
plans. The NP will define the spatial planning policy priorities identified by the community
taking into account material representations made during the plan-making process and
having regard to all relevant existing plans and evidence. The Plan will include or be
supported by appropriate evidence and, where relevant, a delivery plan setting out the
means by which these policy priorities may be implemented.

Membership
The steering group will have a minimum membership of 5 with members from the Parish
Council, the South Cerney Trust, and other local residents.

The quorum will be set at 60% with a minimum of two parish councillors.

The Neighbourhood Plan steering group will elect a chair and define how secretariat and
publicity roles will be carried out. The role of the Chair will be to oversee and chair
meetings defining agenda and ensuring actions are followed up as necessary. The chair
will also ensure that members’ potential conflicts of interest are recognised and measures
taken to address them, especially during meetings. :

In order to carry out this purpose, the steering group will have the power to:

a) Develop a timetable and strategy for undertaking the NP

b) Make recommendations regarding use of the NP budget, for approval at full parish
council meetings.

c) Co-ordinate community consultation activities.

d) Gather additional evidence about the geographical area covered by the NP and
evidence to test proposed solutions and policies.

e) Use evidence collected, including that from consultations, to prioritise and develop a
comprehensive NP.

f) Oversee the drafting and finalising of the NP.

Please note that South Cerney Parish Council will approve the Submission Draft of the
NP prior to publication for consultation and submission to the local authority, Cotswold
District Council, for independent examination.

10
Page 78



Governing principles

All members of the group recognise that, while they may represent a particular group in
the community, their role is to move forward the NP in a way that benefits the whole
community. Members of the group will recognise and declare any potential conflicts of
interest.

The group accepts the following principles:
a) A steering group which is open and transparent
b) An inclusive consultation and plan making process
c) Active participation by members
d) Robust evidence gathering
e) Evidence-based recommendations
f) The NP must have regard for the National Planning Policy Framework and the
strategic policies of the emerging/adopted Cotswold District Council Local Plan

Group members also accept the following principles in conducting their role (known as
the Nolan Principles as recommended by the Committee of Standards in Public Life 1995)

Selflessness: Holders of public office should take decisions solely in terms of the public
interest. They should not do so in order to gain financial or other material benefits for
themselves, their family, or their friends.

Integrity: Holders of public office should not place themselves under any financial or
other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might influence them in the
performance of their official duties.

Obijectivity: In carrying out public business, including making public appointments,
awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards and benefits, holders of
public office should make choices on merit.

Accountability: Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and actions to
the public and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate to their office.
Openness: Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all the decisions
and actions that they take. They should give reasons for their decisions and restrict
information only when the wider public interest clearly demands.

Honesty: Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests relating to
their public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that protects
the public interest.

Leadership: Holders of public office should promote and support these principles by
leadership and example.

Other aspects
11
Page 79



a)

b)

People who wish to be involved in the Neighbourhood Plan but do not wish to
become steering group members will be welcome to observe at steering group
meetings. They will effectively form a means of communicating with others in the
parished area. The communications plan will detail means of involving and
communicating with residents and other stakeholders. At NP steering group meetings
non steering group members will have the opportunity to speak at the invitation of the
Chairman.

The steering group will review its membership from time to time and those wishing to
cease their membership of the steering group will notify the chair in writing.

Conduct of meetings

a)

Notes will be kept of meetings and made available to steering group members within 7
days of the meeting, then made available to the parish council and other interested
parties

An ongoing record of consultation and other evidence gathering work will be kept.

If members of the steering group have a conflict of interest they will declare it by;
completion of a declaration of interest form and during meetings as appropriate.

The steering group may form sub groups or theme groups to undertake specific tasks,
made up of interested residents and representatives of local organisations. Each
theme group should include a member of the steering group. Terms of reference will
be drawn up for the theme groups and membership will be open.

Members will aim to make steering group decisions by consensus. However should a
vote be required each member will have one vote and a simple majority will be
required to support any motion. The Chair (or in their absence, Acting Chair) will have
one casting vote. Show of hands will suffice for voting but names can be recorded if
required by any steering group member present.

12
Page 80



Agency

Contact

Comment

Cotswold Joseph.walker@cotswold.gov.uk

District

Council

Wiltshire neighbourhood.planning@wiltshir

Council e.gov.uk

Swindon smith@swindon.gov.uk

Police Mark.Murphy@agloucestershire.pn | Gloucestershire

n.police.uk

Glos Richard. GRAY @gloucestershire.g | Local Highways Manager

Highways ov.uk See map for relevant one at
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/
highways/communities-and-parishes/parish-
and-member-services/

Natural consultations@naturalengland.or

England q.uk

Historic David.Stuart@HistoricEngland.or

England g.uk

Glos County Rob.niblett@aloucestershire.gov.

Council uk

Environment | planning-

Agency wallingford@environment-

agency.gov.uk

LEP info@agfirst.co.uk

Local Nature | info@gloucestershirewildlifetrust.c

Partnership o.uk

AONB john.mills@cotswoldsaonb.org.uk

Water Park

Matthew.Millett@waterpark.org

Page 81

13




Thames townplanningpolicy@thameswater
Water .co.uk

Clinical | GLCCG.enquiries@nhs.net
Commissionin

g Group

MOD =

All surrounding
Gloucestershire

parish councils, including outside

Siddington siddingtonclerk@gmail.com
Parish

Preston clerk@prestonpc.org.uk
parish

Somerford K | skpcclerk@gamail.com

eynes

Driffield dhparishclerk@googlemail.co

m

Latton parish

clerk@lattonparishcouncil.org.
uk

Cricklade admin@crickladetowncouncil.g
ov.uk

Leigh Parish | LeighParishCouncil@yahoo.co
m

Ashton clerk@akpc.orq.uk

Keynes

Parish

Elected

members:

Shaun Shaun.parsons@aloucestershire.

Parsons gov.uk

Mike Evemy | Mike.evemy@cotswold.gov.uk

Juliet Layton

Juliet.layton@cotswold.qov.uk

National Grid

n.grid@amecfw.com

CPRE

lisa.belfield@cpreaglos.org.uk

South Cerney
Trust

chairman@southcerneytrust.org.u

k

Page 82

14



South Cerney
Neighbourhood Plan
Household Survey

Introduction

Local communities can make a Neighbourhood Plan to influence what tfpe of development takes place in the area.
This survey will be part of the evidence for South Cerney's Neighbourhood Plan, which will apply until 2031. The area
covered is the Parish of South Cerney, which includes Cerney Wick and the Duke of Gloucester barracks.

The information you supply will be treated as confidential, and will only be used for the Neighbourhood Plan.
Comments made will be anonymous in the analysis. Your replies will be processed by Gloucestershire Rural
Community Council, on behalf of South Cerney Parish Council.

If you do not have a view on a particular question, you don't have to answer it and please leave it blank (do not cross
thraugh).

To return completed forms, see details on the last page.

Please provide the following

Street Name: [

Please complete your postcode: GL7 ‘

1 2 3 4 5+
0-18 years old I:' D D [:l I::I
19-40 years old D D I___] D I:l
41-59 years old D D D D D
Aged 60+ D D D D D

A2  How many bedrooms are there in your home?
[]1 []:2 []3 []a [] s+

A3 How many people of each group live in your home? Please include students living away during term time.
5+
Employed/self-employed

Main homemaker or full-time carer

Student

L]

Unemployed
Retired

Other, please state below

L ]

UHoooO-
0
I
LHOoOoa -

L.

16
Page 83



Ann Edwards
School

head@annedwardsgrimagg.co.uk

Chapter
Manor

Boxbush Farm

Coop

Canals Trust

mail@cotswoldcanals.com

Lakes
Management
Company

FWAG

Holborne and
Owners

Watercraft and
Owners

Lock keepers
Cottage Spine
Road/
Gateway

Cerney Wick
Round House

Linden
Homes

Blue Cedar
Homes

Talland House

Lock House

Sustrans

www.sustrans.org.uk

Page 84

15



A4 How many in your household work or are studying at the following?

At home

Elsewhere in South Cerney
Cirencester

Swindon

Gloucester or Cheltenham

Elsewhere in Gloucestershire or Wiltshire

I |
I I
0 I B
I
DDOOOOds

Further away

A5 How many in your household regularly use the following as transport to work or study?

Own car/van/motorcycle
Bus

Train

Bicycle

Walking
Car-share/lift-share

| T
[
| [
0o -
[ A

B1 How important to you are the following aspects of South Cerney and Cerney Wick?

Very important Important Not important No opinion
The surrounding countryside
Facilities for leisure and sport
Community spirit
Peaceful and safe neighbourhood
Local shops and services
Lots of things going on e.g. events, clubs
Good public transport

Appropriate housing available

LOO0OO0o0oOoad
L0000
LUOOOOO0O0O
DOUOOOOOoOd

Local employment opportunities

B2 What top three things does your household like most about living in the Parish of South Cerney?

| ]
{ .

B3  What top three things does your household most dislike about living in the Parish of South Cerney?

‘E |
| ]

17
Page 85



B4 How important to you are the following facilities within the Parish?

Very important Important

Allotments

Churches

Local health services

Post Office

Playgrounds

Pubs

Shops

Schoal or Playgroup

Sports facilities

Village Hall and Fenton's

I
I

Walks and rural paths

B85 What additional facilities are needed?

Not important

O [ A

No opinion

I

B6 What improvements could be made to existing facilities?

Roads, pavements and paths

B7 Are you concerned about parking issues?

l:l Yes I:l No D Yes

DNO

B8 If yes, in which areas? B10 If yes, in which areas?

B9 Are you concerned about other traffic issues?

B11 What parking or traffic improvements would you like to see? Tick all that apply

D Yellow lines D Off-street parking
|:| Reducing speed limits D Traffic calming measures
D Other, please specify;

D New car parks

D None

|

B12 What changes for pedestrians or cyclists would you like to see, and where?

Page 86

18



Housing

813 Which types of new homes are needed in the Parish? Tick all that apply
D Affordable homes for sale or rent

l:l Bungalows

D Private semi-detached/terraced houses (2 or 3 bedrooms)
D Private detached houses (3 or mare bedrooms)
D Sheltered accommodation for older people

B14 What scale of housing development schemes should be given priority? Tick one only

D Less than 5 dwellings D 5 to 10 dwellings L__l 11 to 50 dwellings
l:' Schemes of over 50 dwellings D No opinion

B15 If new homes are built, which locations would you prefer? Tick all that apply

D Greenfield sites outside the village boundaries
D Infill sites within South Cerney village

D Redevelopment of existing housing areas

D Green spaces within South Cerney village

D No opinion

Natural and historic heritage

B16 Which buildings or places in South Cerney and Cerney Wick are most important to your household?

B17 Which views in and around South Cerney and Cerney Wick are most important to your household?

B18 Which green spaces in or around the Parish are the most important to your household?

Flooding and Sewerage

B19 Has your home been affected by any of the following? Tick all that apply

D Flooding of your drains or sewers D Flooding of your buildings or garden
D Flooding of the public road by your property

19
Page 87



B20 How concerned are you about flood risk in your area? Tick one only

D Very D Moderately D Not at all D No opinion

B21 Which of the following flood measures would you like to see? Tick all that apply
D Effective use of flood meadows
D Monitoring and managing silt levels in the River Churn
D Embankments along the river
D Better use and maintenance of field drainage ditches

|___| No opinion

B22 What other flood risk improvements would you like to see?

Duke of Gloucester Barracks - the Army Camp

If you are a resident at the Duke of Gloucester Barracks, please answer questions B23 and B24.

Otherwise, please go to question B25.

B23 How important to you are the following?

Very important Important Not important

Use of village facilities D D D
Being part of the village community D I____] D
Being independent of the village D [:l D

B24 As aresident at the camp, how could it be better integrated into the village?

No opinion

O
[
]

=

—

Holiday Homes

B25 What are your views on the lakeside holiday homes in the Parish of South Cerney? Tick all that apply

D Too many already

D About the right number now

D More would be appropriate

I___I Holiday occupancy restrictions should be fully enforced

D No opinion

Page 88

20



Cotswold Water Park

B26 How important to you are the following aspects of the Water Park around the Parish of South Cerney?

Very important Important
Tranquillity
Sport and leisure facilities
Access for walking
Access for cycling
Fishing
Wildlife and biodiversity

OO
N

Employment

Not important

| |

B27 Which types of employment do you think are important for the future of our Parish?

Very important Important
Agriculture
Businesses on industrial estates
People working from home
Retail/Service companies
Tourism
Gravel and aggregates
HM Forces

I O ¢
N

B28 How important to you are the following in our Neighbourhood Plan?
Very important Important

Small office spaces
Small industrial units
Large office buildings
Large industrial units

Shared work spaces for home workers

HE
.

Identifying further employment sites

Climate Change

B29 How important to you are the following for the Parish of South Cerney?
Very important Important

Home renewable energy generation
Reduction in energy use
Better insulation of existing homes
Conversion to LED street lighting
Greater recycling of waste
Install electric vehicle charging points

Improved public transport

| [
|

Increase walking and cycling

Page 89

Not important

OO

Not important

NN

Not important

N | |

No opinion

HNE N

No apinion

|

No opinion

LUOodt

No opinion

HENNEEEN

21



Learning from the past

B30 What aspects from past development or changes in land-use do you think should be taken into account when
considering the future of South Cerney?

Vision for the Future

B31 What other planning issues would you like to be addressed for the future of South Cerney?

Return of forms

Please return completed forms by Monday, 16th January 2017, to any of these addresses:

Atkyns Manor; Bakers Farm House, Cerney Wick; 4 Brambling Mews; 35 Broadway Lane; The Stables, High Street; 1
Lakeside; 1 The Old School, School Lane; Cherry Orchard, The Langet; The Cottage, High Street; Rivendell, Meadow
Way; 1 Kingfisher Place; Laburnum, Silver Street; 6 The Lennards; the Post Office.

If you need further copies of this form, please download fram www.southcerneyplan.org.uk or collect from the Post
office.

More information

On 25th March 2017 there will be a public event in South Cerney so that everyone can come and discuss our
Neighbourhood Plan. This will be a further opportunity for you and other members of your househald to provide
your evidence to shape and support the policies in our Neighbourhood Plan.

More details can be found at: www.southcerneyplan.org.uk

Thank you.
South Cerney Parish Council - Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group

December 2016

Page 90

22



South Cerney
Neighbourhood Plan
Business Survey 2017

The Future of South Cerney
We would like your opinion

Dear Business Owner/Manager

We are currently putting together the content for our Neighbourhood Plan that will steer the development
of the Parish of South Cerney, which includes Cerney Wick and the Duke of Gloucester Barracks, for the
period up to 2031. We have already recently sent out a Household questionnaire,

As a local business, your opinion really does count and by providing us with it, the plan can take account of
your needs, hopes and aspirations for the future,

The information you supply will be treated as confidential, and will only be used for the Neighbourhood
Plan. Comments made will be anonymous in the analysis.

What is a Neighbourhood Plan?

The Neighbourhood Plan is a document that informs the way in which the future face of the Parish of South
Cerney, Cerney Wick and their environs will develop over the forthcoming years. It is vitally important for
the future development of the area that an evidence based plan is constructed that reflects the views and
aspirations of its residents and businesses.

Businesses are essential to the vitality and sustainability of our community; therefore we want to
understand your needs. We have already been working to establish residents’ views by a separate
questionnaire. The next step is to obtain further evidence and statistics specifically from business owners
within the parish through this questionnaire. This will help us to gather information regarding business
issues which should be included within the plan.

PLEASE COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE BY 28 FEBRUARY 2017 AND RETURN IN THE SAE PROVIDED.

Al What is the street name and Postcode of your business?

Street:

Postcode: GL7

A2 Which of the following best describes the nature of your business? (Tick all that apply)

‘:' Building, Construction & Property Maintenance D Business Support e.g. call centres, IT
. ) ) consultancy etc.
D Engineering/Manufacturing

Health & Beaut
|:| Agriculture/Horticulture D ea eauty

Pubs, Lei i
I:l Education D ubs, Leisure, Tourism
D Retail/Distribution

|:| Repair, Servicing, Restoration
D Other, please specify;

I:, Creative/Artistic
I:‘ Care Services

23
Page 91



A3 How many people are currently employed by A5 Where is your business carried out from?
your South Cerney based business?

Full time equivalent I:I
Part time |:|

An office

Retail Premises
Hotel/Inn
Restaurant/Cafe
Your home

Industrial Premises
Agricultural Premises

Nursing Home
A4 How many of these employees live within South

Other, please specify;
Cerney or elsewhere? (If known) P pectly

L O

South Cerney

A6  In which area of the parish is your business
Cirencester located? e.g. Village Centre, Industrial Estate
Swindon

Within 10 miles of South Cerney
{excl. Cirencester above) A7 For how long has your business operated within
the parish?

Further than 10 miles of South
Cerney (excl.Swindon above) l

A8  What attracted your business to locate and remain in South Cerney? (Tick all that apply)

D Close proximity to M4, M5 D Availability of staff

D Rail links to London D Environment

D Availability of employment/industrial/office D Live in the parish
premises

D The attraction of being located in a Cotswold
village

l:l Historically the business was already
I:l Other, please specify;

established within the parish

A9  What improvements in facilities and infrastructure would you like to see?

A10 Is your location in the parish important to the success of your business?

D Yes D No

All If 'yes’, why?

_

Page 92




Al2

Al3

Al4

Al5

Al6

What developments in the village would enable you to reduce your environmental impacts?

How are your business activities in the parish expected to change over the next;
Increase Stay about the same Reduce

5 years? D D D
10 years? [:I D D
15 years? D D D

What factors (such as infrastructure, connections, availability of staff and land etc.) will influence your
decisions to expand or contract your business in South Cerney?

Are there any areas of the parish where more land should be available for business activities?

D Yes [:l No

If 'yes', where?

B2

B3

How strongly do you agree that the following changes are needed in South Cerney?

Strongly
Strongly Agree Agree Disagree Disagree Don't Know

More parking spaces D D L__I D D
More frequent bus services D D D D D

Better network of cycle
pathi ar:'nd footpaths D D D [:l D

Do you feel that traffic congestion in South B4  Does your Business implement a car share
Cerney is a problem? policy?

[] ves [] no [ ] ves [ ] no

If 'ves’, what would you implement to reduce
traffic congestion?

B5 How many car parking spaces does your
business have?

Page 93



B6 Approximately what % of your workforce travel B7 Do you have adequate spaces for you needs?
t rk by the followlng methods of transport?
0 WO Y owling me p D Ves D No

Car
Bus
Taxi
Motorcycle/Scooter

Bicycle

il

Walk

B8 Please use the space below to add any further comments you would like to make.

On Saturday, 25th March 2017 there will be a public event for residents in South Cerney so that everyone can come
and discuss our Neighbourhood Plan.

On Thursday, 20th April 2017 between 12 and 3pm, we would like to invite you to Fenton’s Community Centre in
Teal Way to discuss the findings of this business questionnaire.

More details on both events can be found at: www.southcerneyplan.org.uk

Thank you for taking the time to fill in this questionnaire.

South Cerney Parish Council - Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group
February 2017

Page 94

26



South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan

Important - Household Questionnaire

Dear Owner,

Local communities can make a Neighbourhood Plan to influence what
type of development takes place in the area. This survey will be part of
the evidence for South Cerney’s Neighbourhood Plan, which will apply
until 2038.

The area covered is the Parish of South Cerney, which includes Cerney
Wick and the Duke of Gloucester barracks.

The information you supply will be treated as confidential, and will only
be used for the Neighbourhood Plan. Comments made will be anonym-
ous in the analysis.

As an owner of a holiday home in the Parish we would like to collect
your views on a number of questions and have constructed a simple
questionnaire.

We hope that you would be prepared to contribute your views to this
process and thank you in advance for taking time during your holiday
to take part.

We will be arranging a public consultation to share the first draft of the
plan in due course.

Could you complete the form and return by email to:
clerk@southcerney.org.uk

by Friday 29th June
Thank you.

Page 95

27



How important to you are the following aspects of the Parish of South Cerney?

Very important Important Not Important No opinion

The surrounding countryside ] [] [] L]
Facilities for leisure and sport ] |:| [] |:|
Community spirit [] ] ] ]
Peaceful and safe neighbourhood [] [] [] []
Local shops and services [] [] [] []
Lots of things going on eg events, clubs [ [] [] []
Good public transport [] [] [] []

What top three things do you like most about coming to the Parish of South Cerney?
1.
2.

3.

What top three things do you most dislike about coming to the Parish of South Cerney?
1.
2.
3.
How important to you are the following facilities?
Very important Important Not Important No opinion
Churches
Local health services
Playgrounds
Pubs
Shops
Sports facilities
Village Hall and Fentons

Walks and rural paths

oo oooon
OauoOonoQd
Oodoodod
HOodooood

Page 96



What additional facilities are needed?

What improvements could be made to existing facilities?

Are you concerned about parking issues? Yes D

NOD

If yes, in which areas?

Are you concerned about other traffic issues? Yes ,:’

NOD

If yes, in which areas ?

Page 97

29



What parking or traffic improvements would you like to see? Tick all that apply

Yellow Lines D Off street parking D
New car parks D Reducing speed limits D
Traffic calming measures D None [:l

Other, please specify;

What changes for pedestrians or cyclists would you like to see, and where?

Which buildings or places in the Parish of South Cerney are most important to you?

Which views in and around the Parish of South Cerney are most important to you?

Which green spaces in and around the Parish of South Cerney are most important to you?

30
Page 98



How important to you are the following aspects of the Water Park?

Very important Important Not Important No opinion

Tranquillity

Sport and leisure facilities
Access for walking
Access for cycling

Fishing

OOooddn
OoOooood
Oooooad
oo d

Wildlife and biodiversity

Page 99

31



Page 100



"SHJOM JUsWIeal]
28emas Suiaiadal pue s1amas [noy Sugdsye uopelijyul
131eMpuUnoJs o3 3ousj|isal aiow apiaoid [|Im Jeyl WalsAs
19MIS MBU B 0] pa1ISUU0D pue PaUBAIP 94 |[IM J21SddUdl)
ul 98emas FUnSIXD Y} JO Hed "WIISAs Jamas Fuysixa ayl
1o} @suBijisaJ Suipooy aroiduwl [|Im YdIym patanisp Suieq
S| uoIN|os 01993e13S B pue JUIWAO|3ASP UOMISAYD Y}

paloN|  Joy JadojaAap 3y1 ylim Supyom AjJualind s| Jalep sawey] ¥12S 1918 Sssweyy 0Z-AON-Z|
'sysanbau uonelnsuod
01 puodsal 10 sue|d Juawdojaaag pooyinoqysisN
Yelp maInal 03 Audeded aney AjpJed am 1ey) sueaw
s1y1 ‘Ajpes "A1ISI9AIpOIq Ul SDUIIDP SPIMAIUNOI 3SI9ARI 01|
BujAuy pue saAIDS3I 21Nnjeu Ino Jaye Sunjoo| peopjiom asie|
e 9ABY pUB $92IN0S3J pallwl| asey am ‘Alteyd e sy S, daN
_, paion | 03 31NQLIIU0D PUB M3IA3] O] S15anbal J0 10| B BA19331 B 15nJ) 3LIP[LAA 191592N0(9 0Z-3nv-8¢
_‘_ "uondy |
| AlUNWWOY 0} UMBIP UCLUANY "Ue|d pooyJnoqysisN _ _
B Ul paA|OSal 9q U eyl 193lgns e 1ou i SIY) 18Y3 PasiApy | swa|goid pue sonssi Je] 0] UOFe|ad Ul JUIWIWOD = 1 oz-das-/ |
| |
|
| |
Juawalinbai siyl sian0d Aj3ienbape ueld
|e207 pjomsiod) ay3 Ji Adijod e apnjaul 03 Alessadau aq jou _ _
pINOM 31 49ASMOH ‘4ddN 943 Yum aulj ul paldde ale s3s3| [ |
[ uondadx3 pue [equanbag Y3 aunsua 0] paau ayl Sud3Yal
13pI5u0d 01 Ysim Aew noA Inqg Suipooyy Js1empunold _
juawaJdinbai ay3 s19A02 FTNI Adlj0od ueld [I07 01 uone|as Ul Ajulew Ing s Pooyy 0] s1ajaJ uetd INOR | F1°S eded | AouaBy Juawuoiinug 3yl 0z-d9s-87 |
m;umauoouﬁ_ _ o gl _
___p=1oN 10 Bupjui pue Ja1535ualt) 01 Aem 3243 10y uoddng| syledijoo4 Jaysi4 uely | 0z7-10-8 _
i T [
ue|d Aluno) _
9y3 uo yiediooy psuysap e si yiedioo4 ‘aoueinsseas apiaold ‘wJeq ysngxog 7
| pue sieay Aejje 01 JapJo Ul Juapisal 03 papinoad uoneueldx3 | yiedioo; pue sdeds uaalo) 307 Se uojeusisap 0} uolIsIqo _ ZIDS 1S/ ‘a@ny) ueupy pue piuj ‘pireq | 0Z-190-¥T1 |
_ {esauan | _ |
_ asuodsay judWwwo) jo Atewwns | 1o esed/Ad1jod 1woly JUAWWo) ajeq 7

Page 101



‘AjBuipiodoe papuawe
705 Ad1jod ‘parnwiiad aqg sAemie |im sasodind 33uayap Joy
| 1USWdO|3A3P BI3YM SyIBLIEG 4I1YSI31SIN0|D JO ANQ Y1

5@ Adnjod ueid [edoq
[19UN0) 19141S1Q P{OMS10D YHIM uoned|dnp 3yl pue uoisnjoxa
J0 eaJe 3yl ul 9900 8Y3 40 UoISN|IU! 3y] 03 53[0 |

20S |

03 Ajdde jou op 73S Adijod Jo sluawalinbas ay) 18y} pasiApy

‘810w ou pue
ysiied ajoym ays Joj SulAjdde si |1ounod ysiied e uaym sniels

"Ba1Y Ueld paleusisap Y uiyum (950Q)

UN6 ETNS ‘SHIM
‘Weysio) ‘ weysio) A0 0y |

|
0Z-NON-£ |

eale pooyinoqysiau pajuess Ajjeonewonne si ysued y $)yae.leg 211Ysia1sadno|9 40 NA QO 341 01 193(qQ | ealy 4dN | Buipjing ‘(D03) 90T Wooy A0
paloN | SIUBWWOI 2Y[93ds oN | | pue|du3 |esniey | 0Z-AON-£ |
patop | JUBWWO? 0} paulag | [12UnNo) UMO] SpPEeYILD 0Z-3120-¢T |
.Salepunoq
Juswdo|anap apisino papiwiad aie jey] sueaeled _ m_
‘apew juswpuawe Adjjod 10} pue| JO 3sn 3y] 0] J0U pue uolepowodIe Juiaaies | —
ON ‘AWoU0I3 15LN0Y [B20] DY) U] SSAUEaM payruap] ue J19s pue uogepowodde Aepijoy ‘s|910Y 1ing 0} d3e)a1 Jied AepljoH pjomsion (]
sassalppe U 1ey] papiaoid syJed Aepijoy pue ueaeled Jnels Ajuo pinoys gos Asijod ay1 ue|d [e207 19143SIQ SPIOMSI0) 3UJOqOH 40 Jjeyaq uQ ONZ w
1e uoyepowodde unsixe Jo Juswdojsaapal 1o Suipesddn 943 4o TTD3 Adjjod yum aduepiodde uj Jey} uogedsyiield A3 ‘Uopuol ‘129415 Weysalo o
‘uoisuedxa ay} sywirad 113 Adjod ueld (8307 3Y L B puawwodal am,, 905 ‘voddns 9T1Is pue /IS ‘vIS |BJ3U39 | 69 ‘Bunoj UOSIAY ‘SUlj|OT) JAAIIQ oz-dag-£T

paiopn

"0} P3jUBM | JI UBAD OS Op O} Way1 |

9210} 03 AyJoyIne Y3 3Aey JouU Op | *321042 131 Si 3 U3y}

1 doe|da1 10 3|1s BuUD3S e dasy 0] Juem A3yl 18y} SAPIDBP BYs
Jo 3y I pue s1sumopue| ayj jo Ayjiqisuodsal ay3 si ainyuiny
Yied ‘aiowsayung -apisAizunod au0lsIY 3Y3 jo Led ale Aay)
"3jeno3au 0} sBulyl 1s3ises ay) shemje Jou ale Aayy ey

9y} a1dsap ‘95in03 40 JoNew e se sa1ed BuIssiy Yum sajus
9uo3s 3Je|das pue Al) 01 33S 10U OP IM IAABMOH 'S3US 0§
paoe|das am uaym oSe si1eah QT 1N0ge JdIS pPue dmd Yyum
13(0id 819 e p1p am 108} u| "s31e8 Buissly 1o sa3e8 ueiysapad
Yum a2e|dal pue $a|us SAOWII 0] SISUMOPUE| YIMm

ydom o3 A1z am pue ainjiuany yred ssadoe Jaises ajowold

01 Alj op ‘weal MOYd 3Yl Ul ‘om mouy Ajgeqo.d noA sy

|12Uno)
Aunoj Ja3sa0n0|9 ‘Uoueg ayIN

0z-das-1T




Ul [eUB3 3pNjoxXa 10U s30p Adljog “asImIayI0 Joy 2DU3PIAS Ou 38Ny vjew 03 3NuPUOD jjIm pue saop Jeued ay3 jeyy
41931 |eued ayy 10u ‘uoynguiuoo ay sayew yiedjooy m_._.r_ MAU 3\ "U0RI3S SIY3 Ui PAIBPISUOT UAaG Jou Sey [eued ay|

_ Jaypny

U3A3 AWouoda JoysiA 3y} 1yauaq |jIm pue paJueApe alow

_ Y2NW 3q ||1m UOHLI0ISAI [BURD BY) JAN SIY3 JO PUB Y3 Ag
'SSBusAndeIRe [eI3UIT pue UOIBAIISUOD ‘A)p|IM ‘afejlay

343 01 asuodsal ui S10)SIA SMeIp 1ey) 13sse [e30) e se
‘Aem Aue | papnjoui aq pjnoys pue Awouosa Jo1Is1A 3Y3 01 suoyNqLIIUoD _

LG 91 adey

[BUED 10U s3] 01 513431 9IS "JUBWpUIWE o | SB9.e Bpisaye| pueTEUE3 0] ss922e Juinosduw), ppy

_
6% TT 28e4|

[eUed 10U sa)e| 01 sJ3fa 9IS “JUBWpUIWE Op | 9oua3uas 0} szedmoy [eued ppy

8% TT 28eq |

Medmoy [eue) utanss
nm_ucuEi_ PUE sowey) jo soueuajuiely 1§ UONEI0)Sa, - Aiep ppy

€ 139Jinq 9108

_ ‘s}9sse agejsay |eue) usanag

108

J3pJo vy s 35 | Pue sawey| |le dnousd o3 351) Jo Japio Suipuswe 15888ng
|

"S096T Y1 Ul paso|d Aemyies ay|
"AemaBellled [enp pue sAemiolow mau
343 104 s]ane.d pa3oe.Ixa Ajledo) ayy palied Aemjies ayy ‘wm

SH Ul 3112 snoidia e Sugeaa snyz [eued ay Jo Algeyjal
943 padnpal winy ui Jey) pue pajesousiap mu_._m.._mu_.__mE_
Y3 |I3) 3woaul s feURD B AduQ “djay jou pip Ajuienas |

shem|(es ay) jo [eaie ay] pue S0%8T ay3 Ut shemjiel
1BI0] 83 4oy sjetis1ew poduwi 03 pasn sem jeued |yl
_ 'Pasod jeued ay3 Jaye pue Aumuad _
Y107 3y1 U1 pa13jdwod Ajuo asiam Siy) 03 sjuswanolduw)

__ "P40JXQ pue ape|yaa] usamiaq uonedineu sawey|

m 13A1Y 3y3 Jo s1e1s Jood Auan ay) sem ssadons pauteisns

01 uwi| 3598819 3y -afexea| pue Ajddns sazem 1o sadud|eyd

7 [B31uyI31 33 Swoduano Aj9Sie) Suiney uswageuew _

3Y1 'sapedsp Aueuwl 10} |nyss93ons aunb sem [eued ayy,

umn_._mEq_ P84 01 ,55300NS B I19A3U Sem jEUe) By, wou Suipiomay q

9'TZS mmmn__

_
|
Isnd] s|eue) pjomsiod |

0Z-NON-S |

Page 103



-u01Sald pue uoiBuUIppIS 19153dUIIID
wouy Adula) YyInos 4o 3Fe(|ia 3Y1 o uopeJedas [ea1sAyd

dnoig
Ju11291S ue|d pooyinogysieN

P210N 3y} UIEJUIBW O 3JISap 3y} s9sI0pUa Ajguouis 95 dND 3YL {elaus9 133523UaJ1]) ‘UosSpnyY ueug 0Z-"ON-9|
-21n1ny 3yY3 Ui )1 |4 03 B|qe 3q 0} SJUEM 1nNq 320] , 7
3Y1 JO UORUBIAI BY] YUM SI313Y WOy Ajlwey siy st 3eyl _
pue uon|jowap 104 p3|NPaYISs Buiaqg aouis Ajjeulaixe pue
-uoljeusisap Ajle|d 01 papuswe udaq sey Ajjeusaiu pajeaouds usaq sey U 1elfd ‘wiy Yyum passnasip NHS £19 _
ZT JS Ad1j0d “uawAofus siy 1ou3sal 01 UORUINUI OU S| BIBY] uaaq jou sey U ieyl ‘Spunios ay1 uo 13ssy EXEATBETS s1assY | ‘ASula) Yinos ‘peoy 133sadusli) |
7| 1eu3 painsseay "ssaooud siy1 Aq paiell|1oey uoue}nNsuUo) [e207 B SE 35N0H 4307 2y 4O UOISN|IUL 313 03 spalqo| =28ejuay |E207 2135 ‘asnol }ao7 ‘sayAs uaA31s | 07-AON-9 |
|
spJepueis AJisnpul Yim 35UepI0dIe Ul 1o 3IIApE _
| ‘N Joy [euoissajoad e Aojdwa 01 pasu ON jeuoissajoid yum dn umelp Ua3q 10U sey 3| 1By} spuajuo]y YON _ |
_ ‘papiomal IS Aayjod uoneledas jo eale _ 7 <
pue 1x3) Ul papnjpu| ueyd ‘papusuie uoyesedas jo ealy | 3y Uj Wwied SPeOISSCI]) 18 pue| jO uoisnjaul Ay o1uoudalqo | 20S | ] m_
_ 7 Iob)
_ ‘Anagisod moys sjuswanoldull dnoig w
Ayjoe) Apunwwiod 3uiSeinodua 62S Adjod pue €105 a8esed AISIA 941 30 Jjeyaq uo Jve 1S9 o
a3 Jo wawdojaAlpal 3yl ‘£JS S8} ISUN0Y ‘GTOS AB1aud sjuawalinbal 5ddN/4ddN Yim soueplodde ‘|01s14g ‘193115 puog ‘wnionp |
a|qemaual ‘€3S juswAojdwa ‘se yans sa191j0d YISO 1 suonua3u] s} ul 3Agisod Jou si uejd 3yl ey UoLIBSSY | [l2I9A0 4aN!  ®Ul ‘SpIBYYILT I9J)ID YeuueH _ 07-AON-¥
_ ssaippe J}Isgam PalRallo) 21ISqom ISNI| S[EUBD P[OMSIO] 0} 33UBISJ31 PPY 1€ a8ed _
_ ssaippe ajsgem pajpalo) diD) apisSuce 3)sqam sjeUe) Pjomsio] 03 19)9Y /7 99ed |1_

papuawy |

Jjeued uJaas pue sawey|, pess 03 9T B ST pUsSWy

g 9geq saoipuaddy

-paaige 10 PassNosIP Af{eULI0) USIQ J0U SBY UOKEIOISal [BUED

Bl pue juasasd Je Ysiied U3 ul SISIXa Jopliiod uaa18 oN

‘|eued UJAARS pue SaWey) Y1 Jo
uoyel01sal 3y1 Aq pauoddns ag pjnod ules 13U Ausianlpolg
10y 90T 40 1981e) JUaWUIBA0E 3Y] 193U 0} uejd ayl
-SUOIIAUS J19Y] PUE S|BUED WO} PIALISP S1eliqey jeineu pue
JUBLILIOIIAURD JO SJUBWAdUeYUS pUe sjuawianoldwi spiemol
sjeued Jo aoueniodull 9y} 310U S3[EA Ae|) sauley] pue
Asuua? YINOS Y30q JO (UOKeINSUOI SIY} 03 UONEIUSWNI0P

Juiuoddns se papiaoid) sa|yosd wIN 3Y)-siysuaq |euen

DTS 07 2ded




"(6T0T Al4e3 JO SB) S3US 341|p _>>_

‘uUaNIIMaL U3aq sey Adljod {eJ07 Paj|ea MOU Je SIS P A) 1eY) 310U 35e3jd __ [19uno) Aluno) 131532N0|9 | o~->oz.@_
paloN jew 03 sjUSWWOI ou ‘Yoddng pue[3u3 JLJ0ISIH _ ow.>oz-w_
1 |
__ |
"sa1o1j0d JO SWIe JNO YIM 1D11JU0d Ou S| 313y} ‘ue|d |e207 3y ul
pue pamalAal Udaq Sey AJeWwWNS [BIIUYIS-UOU YL YIIym| pauopuaw si i ‘200 ue|d uoneluswa|dul] pue uoisiA Jed 1SnJ] yJed J91eM
10 Ue|4 uoieiuawa|dw pue uojsiA MO Yl uoddns ap | J9ieA PjOMSIO] SY1 0F 90UB.13}38] 3L 10U S0P UE|d Y| ploms107) “13[IIN Mayne 0Z-AON-9 |

__

‘sjuswidojaASp |eQUIPISDI 3Y] Ul SAYE| 3Y1 01

a

palof | SS3J2e noge passaidx@ uJaouod ayj s1ioddns DS dND YL
ue|d pOOYINOqySISN J31580USIID Y3} JO JUIWIJD Ue 3q ||!IM| _ _
juawalinbal 1y Ja3s3duI[D) pue A3UIa) Yinos ussmiaq |
paloN yaed 9j2A2 e 1o} paau By} S3SIOPUS AjBuoa1s 95 dNDJ 3YL |

ASa1e11S YImouo 21wou0d3 uaaln QD yelp
ayj poddns /IS pUB 535 ‘DS $3101j0d 184 pauiyuod st 3|

Sunnyoeinuew

ASojouyd3} y3iy 10} suOLREDIO| 3|qens se ABUIS)

YINOS pue J31S3IUIID SAYLRUSP! YIIYM AS91ens Yimolio
21WOU033 U3 5,707 Y] 03 DIUII3JJ S3EW J0U S0P
INQ e SS2UISNg SPISAE] DY} SUOUSW JUSWNIOP BY |

paicnN

28emas

pajeaiun jo 951eydsip Sy} PIOAR SNY} pUe suawWalInbal |
|20 ||N} BY3 Yyum adod 01 d|qe a4 ||iMm 3100U0yS

je Jued ay3 Jaylaym Jejnapied ug ‘pue JayHIny ale3usaul
01 SN paLIdje sey JuaWNI0p INOA Ing s|ielap 3y3 jo

aleMme 10U S| DS 3y1 "wajshs 98emas 3yl jo apeiddn (|I9A0
ue aJinbay [jim wawdo|ansp (uoua3sayD exe) saulpesls

Jofew 3y} 1eY3 DS dND Y1 40 SUIPUEISIPUN 3Y] S1 3]

Page 105



HHUL

415 £19 ‘Asusz)
YINogS 193115 JaA|IS ‘983|109

0z-das-z 7

pai1onN voddns uj Ajguous Adap splemp3 £ ‘Ag|syo0D uesng | _
7 AHS £19

‘ASu13] y1nos ‘Aep mopeay _

pajoN sabjjod woddns| €135 pue /s ‘93s| ‘jlapuany ‘o 1280y pue |19 0Z-das-gz|

pa1oN sjualo) oN | |13Unecy) ysed uope 0Z-AON-G |

1

‘uopesynou Isss
Mau BUIMO||0) USJILMEI Udaq Sey uoyeauisn| pue Aaijog

T T o o I e O prore uo e Sy e oy premnio e

1BY3 saydiew 1seaj 1e Jeyy uled 1au AJISIBAIPOI] |[e42A0

ue aA31yoe 03 pa1adxa Afjewsou a.e spuswdojanap |y
"pajues3 uorssiwiad Suluued Aue yo uogipuod e |

9 03 paJinba. aJe ‘anjea A}sIaApoIq 40 SdueUIUIEW BIN1Ny
pue sainseaw asay] "uonedidde Sujuue|d Aue uj papnjoul
pue dn umeip g 01 PaaU ||IM SBINSEIW UOLIEAIDSUDI

pue uonedniw aenbape uayi ‘paynsn( s «So10ads

Jo s1eqiqey A11011d 1o S3YS 9SAY) O3 WIIRY PRIIPISUOD
S1 31381 18813 0S B1e JuaWdOo[aA3P JO SIYaUaq Y]
3I3YM "padueyua ‘3|qissod asaym ‘pue pardaoid ase mwu_m_
943 Jo aN|eA 341|pjIM BY1 1BY} OS PIAIRSUOD 3q 01 ase ‘A30jooT |
18307 :4 xipuaddy U1 umoys sauss Aysianipolg uepodw) ‘
Ausianipoig
-8uipiomal paysad8ns 0TIS ADI10d

iSM0J|0} se SuipJom dAgeusa) (e Yyum pancldul

9q pIno3 OT2s Adljod pasodold jeyy papuswiwodas

s1 ) *{020Z/0T/60 1€ se) Juawuianog AQ pawuyuod usaq 134
1ou sey uted 3au Als1saIpolq %0T & aASIYyIe 0] uswdojanap
Jojuswannbal ay) 181 910U Os|e 3sedld ‘0T’

uonI3s 18 1X33 3Y1 Ul Ipew ag pINOyYs SiYj 0] 3dUSI3)BI BWIOS
| ©0s pue puejdu3 [einjeN Aq uonesyRouU-a1/M3lAal Japun ase
ISSS 34ed J31EM P|OMSIO) BY1 JO SBLIBPUNOQ BU] 1Y) Bleme
8u13q yu1om osje si 3 (/4n"031328 mmm//:sdny) Y370 yum
Pa%23Y2-31 3q p|noys sgpn 4o 3duasald pue sauepunoq
jua.nd 4aAamoH “podal uiuasuds y3s ays 4o T a8ed uo |
umoys Apealje a1e (SSANT Mou) S3S ay11p|IM ASY 40 suoyedo|
941 'SSHS SY|P|!IM |B207 Jo 33u3said syl Moys 03 papuedxa
s 4 xipuaddy 1ey pspuswwiodal si 3 “uodas 8ujusanng y3s
Y3 03 }5BJ3UO0J U] UMOYS 31 SJYS PUE S|SSS Ajuo Inq (saus)

AZo|033 |e207 :4 x1ipuaddy o1 13131 0TS Adljod pasodoly

0TS |

Page 106



éAllesauad synpe Jo ‘a8e Supyiom jo synpe 4o a3ejusdsad
3Y1 sy si - seaugad pue sjdoad 3unoA jo siaquinu 7
wPaAojdwaun Jo Bupiom Jayua ‘st 1ey: ‘eagoe UaAI3 Y81y 003 swaas siy| - ,Supjom aze - uone|ndod
Alle3jwouods ase uoieindod a3 4o sgcy 43A0, 01 papuauly | juauew.ad s ysiied 3yl 40 %G/ JaAQ, 531e15 esed siy) 1t'Z 6 98ed _ |

_ _ i

7 ‘aininy ay3 uj ales 1aysiy Ajpueayiusis e

‘ 01 pea| 03 Ajayjl| ‘umopIo] T-PIA0) 3y Suunp Allenuelsqns _

| Pjids 3ney jim pue ‘spuasi |e43UsE YIIM BUl| Ul USSL anBy

o3 Ajyi| st 4aquunu siy1 1eyy ydesSesed siyy uo uoisayal

| 48Y3In} e Y110M 3q p|NOD 3| "SNSUID TTOZ SY3 JO dwy _

papuawe ydesSeled pasidy| syl ie awoy wouy Bunyiom ajdoad jo saquinu ayy 53JUaJajal £'€'2 8 93ed

_ {
| |
_ 'dMD 343 Jo 2oueoyiudis

941 1IN0 ([2ds pjnom Jejiwis Jo ,adeaspue| uado ue sapinold 7

Yd1ym “yied Ja1eM PIOMSIOD) Y1 JO LBy 3y3 18 53| ASUID)

4INos, "s1uapisal 03 asueayusis sy 1o adedspue| yieq Ja1ep

| 843 40 souedyugls ay3 Aejdiapun o] Jou sy sy “sajiw “bs

7 O 3WOS 3ULIBA0D ‘YD B2 JO JUBIXS |INy 3Y) USAIS ‘Aswn)o

mcc_umu__aE_mc_ccm_aoz H_nmm?a?um:._:otmgmmgm_mmm__cwtmamﬁ c_E:___? N.N.m

'sjuresisuod adeaspue) [eguajod 7

pue saiunuioddo 3y8)y8iy ose pue 1a)deleyd adeaspue| [

S} pue eaJe 3y3 yo suondudsap [nyasn apiaoid asay ) _ 7
Jpdluswssasse-saroeleyd-adesspue|-yied-razem

-plomsios/zeyuixg feipaw n'aod pjomsicammm//isdny 7

4pd €/915-9007 %81 S3jBA 1ayI0T Ul anas jodas 2|8

_ \oowm\m_umE\v_:.>om.m.__cm‘_mummuzo_mé\ss\\”matz

0£T£85=A10321e3,9E€TS6E0/ £ 4555985

\co_pmu__aza\v_:.mho._ucm_mcm_E:Hm:.mcormu__n:a\\a“uc 7

i - B3Je S1y1 Jo udenapun 7 [

ua3q aAey 1eyj sjuawssasse 1a13eleyd adesspue] snotiea ‘

VON ayi ui pa3siy|  ayj o1 4ajal 03 uondas adedspue| ayj uj 1nydisy ag 8w :_ Z'zeded g adey| [12UNo) 1911SIQ plomsio] | 0Z-NON-§

Page 107



-Juawnaop ajeledas e o1 Jaja1 0} Suiney ajdoad _
¥ON Ul £7°y dew 235 | uey) Jayjel dew e uo seale 3sayy Moys 0 1aisea aq s 1|

S'T'G-C'T°S eled

-sdew SMalA 3y JO 151 241 UO S13quInu

ay} 99s 03 YN2LyIP 3N 13 '3 xipuaddy Ut p3)ieIsp ale YON

3yl WolJ SEISIA pUe SMBIA [BUOLIPPY ‘(D xipuaddy) dey |
JI319e1RY) BalY UOLEAISSUOD 8y} Ul IN0 135 3Je saunjea

xipuadde ue se papn|aul S1 YON jeooq so/pue ‘saydreoiddy juepiodul| SMalA juepodwi!

Y mth

"sjesodoud Juawdo|aAap 31NNy 40} UOREISPISUOD eyoduwi _
ue aq 01 SaNULUOI pue YIN 3yl Supiedaud uy Juawnoop
aduaJayal Juepodull UB SB PAsN SeM ‘PIIep 1BYMIWOs
_ y3noyie ‘200z Ul Dad Aq dn umelp ‘sdew SuiAuedwodde
s Suipn(aul ‘quawalels ealy UoleAsssuo) 3yl
uonedo] apisaxe| sU yum Buidady ul sl ealy
J1a19eley) s Ay} Ul JUSWdOPASp M3U Aue eyl Bupunsuy -
“YIN @Y1 Ul paquIsap Se salis pue sainjesy
‘sanssi aanedau 3uissalppe - syuswdojanap
| mau ul punoigiapun pajjeisu; s Buiqed 1eyi Sunsud o0} pue
S3JIM PEIYIaA0 SunsIxa aAowal 01 sapqunpoddo Sunyel -
s311epUNOQ 10§ S||em dUOISAIp JO UOISNIUI BY] -
ysied ayy
uyM punoy sieudlew Juipjing (eao| jo anajed ayl auisn -
shemajaAd pue syjedjooy mau BujuBisap uaym ysued
3U1 Ul SAUR| JOMOIIBU BY} JO SWIOS WO} S3NPD u8isap dunye] -
_ ASu19) yInos uiyum
5192115 9Y1 40 Auew Jo Ja)deIRYd UdDI3 uado ay31 Sunda|yay -
— Jepnorued ul pue yON Y3 Uiyiim 3ouepind udisap 3yl Il
SJUSWISSASSE JSIDBIEYD [eI0] JAYl0 pue |esieidde
£2Jy UOLJRAIDSUOD JUBASDS 3Y3 ‘YIN dY1 UlyHMm passasse
se ‘saunjeay pue J31aeleyd [edo] Sugaadsal pue Sunoayey Il
¥ dew uo paunuspl se elsia pue |
smala Ay Bupueyus ‘@elsdoidde aym ‘pue Sujuie1ay |
:03 pJedau ay1oads
aney pinoys sjesodoid 3y "S}U3WNI0P JOSS3IONS A9}
10 9p0) uBisaq plomsiod 3yl Bulpn|oul ‘ue|d |07 PlOMSIO)
ay1 Jo sapi|od JUBASjI 3Y1 Y1M dIUEPIOIIR Ul ‘SPIEPUELS
uSisap 159y31y ayi Jo aq pinoys ‘sBulpjing Suysixe
0] su0ISU3IXa Suipnjoul JUSWdO[BASP M3U 104 s|esodoud
‘papuawe 1Js AJjod | Aaula) yanos Joj sauyaping udisag-suipiom 31 pasodoid |

50

Page 108



_‘ papuswe :nEmEmn__

|

"Adijod paseq eusiud Jo duiqeus ue :m:EE.

40 uopedsojje ue ysnouyy Jayus — paJinbal s uoissiwsad
3J3Ym sasiwaud ssaulsng 3(eas |jews o Ewan_w>m_u_
3y3 uo Aatjod ay3 snaoj oy 90 p|nod aAewIa}je uy |

'S35se[d asn mmr_m:u_
pue s1ysu juswdojaasp papiwad dueyus 0} sjesodoud
Ua1nd ase asay) se os siow - luswdoransp pajiwiad
29 | Auanoe yans poddns Aews 1843 JuswdojaAap 350/

|
‘sasiwa1d ssauisng Jo [eguapisal 7
434313 39 p|nod ssaulsnqoudiw seasaym [enuapisal aq pjnom
luawdojsnsp Suppomawoy - juawdolanap 4o ssep e jou ale
sjuswdojanap ssaursnqooiw pue Bupomswoy 'sjesodosd
juawdojanap ojuf sarejsues) poddns Syl moy 1es)d Ajjeal _

_

“1ey1 1) Buiylowos
40 eaJe siy1 u) usisap Aresodwsjuos uo siseydwa paseanu |
241 Jo sauy| ay3 Buoje Sulylawos pajels ydesSeued siyy y
13139 3q pjnom 1y *9|A3s Juasayp e ui st Yaym 310y a1sp aq
241 U0 sJusWIWoD sy ur aamsod si ysnouyye sjhis ,puejsug
M3N,, &40 35N panuyuod ay; sajeoApe JJuepind aul "9 3y

_umuoz_

"uonndadxa ou st ease saye] 3yl pue L1sIg 2y
c_ucman_m>wt__m0u Em?.u._m‘_m_wnoucm_mmo_uﬂogﬂou m_._L

|
papuswe yop |

«Hoda1 yIN siy1 pue (uejq jeao] _
202 TETZ-TT0Z 243 01 @ xipuaddy si yaiym) spoy usisag
Ploms103 ay1 Jo Junodoe axel pjnoys sjuawdolanap mau
‘ease-gns saye) ay) Sulpnpxa sease-gns 3yl lo ey, z'g|

£'9 pue z°g eseq|

Aajjod ) a8ueys ou INg pajou sjusWGC) | 10u 513 ‘Avyjod siyy jo uoyedidse ay] suw03EM am 3IYm | £35S | |

— P . -
payLep ¥ | _

| Uone.tedas Jo ease ay] pue Papustue usag sey zJs Aajog SNan|uadns siy Japisues 9¢ | 208

Page 109



ot

.E:ouumo“:_cwv_mpw\_mmucwEm_tmm
Aepijoy uo syoedull] ISIAAPE 18y} 3INSUd pinoys yaym \mmmui
Aue U1 ,uoleIo| Y1 YUM UolduNy pue IS ‘31e95 JO SWI}

ul Suidaay, ul 3q Isnw sjesodoud 1€Y1 1IN0 S13S ¥'€°6 eied {1
-Aa1j0d Y] Ul padUSIajal Pa3PUL SE - Asepunoq juawido|daaq

-papuatue Suipiom Adjjod

a3 40 apISIND s3sn BU gessuad-quawiojduia s19A0d mum;

|

-ayis WwawAojdwa ue se paralold Apeaije si w_o_mwv_ﬁ_
“Suip1oMm JUAJSHIP UM Ing ‘€T saipijod D3 Ueld [2I07 Y3 e
swes a1 saaaiyde Ajadie| Aoijod siyi1eyl pauladuod 3le 3

S2S

,"sa1n0J BulaAd pue Bupiiem anosdwi /apiaoid 03 sainseawl
apnjau| pue “juswAojdwa |edo] poddns yoym siesodold,

‘podsuel] sjgqeulelsns 913S
Aa1j0d 01 p3ul| 29 PIN03 1 1BY1 39 p|noM 1ySnoy3 Ay v

" S]USpISal [eI0| 0},
yiom j0woid ueyl Jayiel ‘eale syl Ul ,Ajjeao) uswhoduwa,
o} poddns ajowold uayo saaijod sjgeiedwio)

papusiue a3 Adljod

‘lesodoid ajenbapeul Ajjoym e Aq ,pajelisuowap, aq pinod
1yEnos uonde 3yl SNyl - PAABIYIE 3 SNl 1yl piepueis

e 135 Jou saop Suipsom Adijod Ayl Jey} pajou ag os|e pinoys
11 *Aoyjod Suuued e se Janaq 1y B yaym ‘pagesnodua
uey Jayjel ‘paiinbal g pjno3 uoRae ue ‘Asoayl

u| "Adtjod Suiuueld e ueyy uode AJUNWWOD e Se JIRA( SHS
‘papiom.se pue - painseaw aq ||Im sjesodoud uawdo|anap
yotym 3surede 153} e ysl|qelsa Jou s30p Suipiom

JU4IN3 By JBUILIEXD 3Y) WOJj uoyedIYIpow € 1dwosd Aew
ya1yM - JUSJUOI [EN1IE BY] O} ||oM 31e|34 10U S30p Aaljod

3y} JO 2J141 BY] SA0QE 7S U0 JuaWLL0D Su|SO[2 N0 YUM SY

#2s |

Page 110



L

papuswe Suipiom Adljod

'GdS Ad1jod uejd (ea07 ay) mainsl 03 NOA 38e1nodua p,ap |

106 J0 @duanbasuod e se YN 3yl
0} pseSal aney 0} pajoadxa Apeadje st jesodoid uawdojsnap
Aue - Atessadauun st YN @Y1 Suioualajel ssnep |euy ay
| ‘ue|d |ed07 ay3 o1 sadueyd ay3 isuiede jooud |
a.niny 0} ‘uopeayusn( pauoseas ayl Ul paduasayal Adljod
auads ay3 ym sanjjod ue|d |B207, Y3 01 51 2IuUdlajal
ueld [e207 ay3 15983ns pjnom am ‘quiod |essuald e sv|
| -uoissiwiad Suiuue|d Joj pasu a8yl INOYUM _
| pamojje aq |;im J SSB|D UIYNM 3SN J9Yyjoue 03 asn Jo adueyd |
‘89 pue zg 03 siayal Ajuo g sse|D, sseayd ay3 os "3 sse|d
UIYHM pIWNSQNS MoU S| {SSaUISNQ) Tg ‘2Ul| puodas ayi uj -
*SSE|D 9SN UMO J12Y3 Ulewal gg pue g4 -
*S3sSe|2 95N 01 sa8ueyd
U331 103|431 01 M3IABI BWOS pasu Aew 1 “Adjjod e ulelas
031 ysim noA pinoys-sade||ia Aepijoy Sunsixe ay3 uo 1pedw
p|no> sauepunoq 3u3wdo|3Aap 3y JO apISINO Judwdojansp
1843 s1y311ysty 1eyl pue ‘,inoaey |ed0o), sapiroid
1eyi Adijod e Joj wioos awos aq Aews a19y) ‘pies Suiaq jeyt

‘Asojeadnp aq jou
pinoys Asy3 1eys sSeyy pue ‘pasedaud aq pinoys saiijod moy

40 uoyeldadxa ay3 Ino s13s (gd ypd-pasiAal” 6T0C 924 4ddN
/£6T0T8/3u/e1ep Wawydene/speoidn/walsAs
/speoidn/iuawiuianod/n'aogd-adia1as 3ulysiignd-siasse

//:sd1Y) 4ddN 2y3 40 9T yde.Beled |

Page 111



¢l

_ "3piacad pinoys sals Yans 1eyl ssaoae ay 1oy |
| suopeladxa s13s 154y 3Y3 seasdym ‘paniwiad aq Ajjewsou
| 10U |Im S1u2wWdO[2A3P YINSs 1BY] SIJ0U ASNED PUOIIS

ay3 - Aiojoipesyuod Jayles wass Adjjod siyy jo sasned omi |

3y} Ul uorepowwodde Aepijoy Mau, 0] S90UIIB] OM] Y|

[ ‘uoledynsni pauoseal 9yl 0} paAow JO papIwo
3q p[nod H 3sed Yarym ui ‘TTI3 Supualsgal Aildwis st jeyl
s1s983ns ydesSeaed siyy jo aul| Axoyanpoaiul ay; ‘pies 1ey| |

"YHo4 0s pue ‘Uoreuiwieluod ANsISAIPoIq dYje

uo 1oedwi pjnod JuswdolsAaq ¢, pINWI|, ISI3APE SIY] SI
moy pue 3|qissod 3oedw; as13ape Ajuo ayi 1edwi [ensia e s
's1yauaqg d1ignd 4ay30 Jo s8uel e Suliayo aq pjnod sjesodoid
3Y3 SB $53208 94 0] SJuawWaAoldwl| 3yl Jo auo ainbal

[ 10U p[NoJ ap\ "s3MdIjod Jo aduel e 01 Atesjuod ag pjnom
— s1oeduwi [ensia 3siaApe Joulw 01 p3| Asyl i stuawanosdwi

| pue Juswdojanapad 3uimalie — Adijod ay3 Jo 1ed puodas ay|

'9|qelA Ajjeidueuy pue 3iejsdoidde |

S| UOLIRIIPISUOI B YINS I9Ym 3|eds e Jo syuawdo|anap

03 Aajjod S|y ul JaYIpow 3WOS aq 0} SPIJU 3IdY} -

a8ueyd e yans 103y4° 0] 3|qe 3q 10U pjnom 1ng ‘Juswdojanap
Se passe|d aq p|nod satuadoud 01 saBueyd 3|eas jjews
*ade|[IA A9ula) YInos pue saye| 3y} 03 ssadde diqnd anosdwi |
|03 - 3|e3s Aue jo - Juawdojanap s192dx2 payelp se Adjjod ay |

Page 112



el

‘papnjaul 9 xipuaddy pue pspuawe Adlj0d

1511 3y3 wosy |

panowsal aq 0} paau Aay) A|SulIp10ddy ‘saieald Adtjod sy
uey3 julelisuod JaSuoJls e 0] 1alqns snyi pue ‘aceds usalnH

[e207 pajeusisop e jo Led ale dn 1addn 1e spuswiioje m;.r”

83S

|

saty|10.) yJed J9IBAA JO 3SN BY] UO UOLDI3|Jal J3naq e |

se 1xa3 pue 933 Aaijod 3y3 ul ,JOUSIA, plom 9yl Buisn 35283ns |
P.3M "S13UMO SWOY PUOISS pue SIuSPISaL Aq sagijoey

10 95N JO BAISN|OUL 10U SI 1SNOL PIOM B3 J8Y3 35983NS S

papusawe 3j13 Adljod

'sease Sunoqysiau Jo 101151Q P|OMS10D JO (SpisAiiunod
ay3 Jo Ayjinbuely ay3 Suipnoul) adedspue| 2110351y
pue |einjeu 3y} uo Joedwl [ejuawlap Juedyiusis e aaey
10U S90P H 3Jaym pajiwiad 3¢ ||Im Juawdo|daaq - ¥N3I d1
1e ue|d |220| BY1 Ul PAI3A0I dJe sanss| AYljjinbuesy ‘uogippe |
U] ‘401’6 d1 @95 - ,Auuyje [edads, “Adijod JnoA Ul pasualajal
Ajtjiinbuesy ayy apnpoul pinoys Anugle [erads 3yl jeys
pa1y31ySy uayl pue Q13 paroddns uejd 1noA i jnydiay
3q pnom 3| ‘Wnwiuiw e 03 3day s3uUIp|ing mau Jo 3|eds pue
Jaquinu ayl yum ‘apisAiaunod ayl ui s3uip|ing [eanynouge |
Aejnonsed ‘s3uipjing Sunsixs Jo spew si 9sn ‘a|gissod |
se Jej se 'p - pue ‘sanjoey Sugsixe Aq 39w Jou si jey}|
Allunpuoddo paynuapl Ue S| 3 - {S91N0J 1S1IN03 ulew ay] o1 |
palE|al [[aMm SI °q - e3Je 3y} 4o aSe3lIaY [eINIRU PUE JLIOISIY |
3y1 yum Ayuyge jeiaads pue diysuone[al jeuogouny e sey ‘e
- :|lesodoud ay1 papiaoad paniwiad aq |Im (uonepowwode
Suipn|axa) suonIeIIe JOLISIA PUE SBYI(1DB) 1SLINOY PBPUIXD
10 M3N "3s() J9YY UONDRIIX] |BIBUIW-1SOd HJed J31B/M
P|OMSI0) - §dS PUE SUONJBINY JOLISIA PUB S313i{1oe Is1noL
10 awdojanaq - 0TI d1 40 SuipJom ay) 01 uiyrAue sppe
Adrjod s1y3 aaa12q 1,Uuop 9 “IUBWdO|IAIP 3jqeuUlIRISNS u_o_
aApoddns se paJapisuod aq Jou Aew pue ‘eAndISal Ajdwis
st Adijod sjy3 9s1m13410 — JuswdolaAap siyl 3|geus ySiw
1eY3 dJe S|ewJouqe, 3yl Jeym aels 0} [nyasn aq pinom -
anSea s| AjjewJou 10N, ‘paniwiad aq Ajjeuriou jou (1m ()
syinsind jeuonealdal 3ainb so) pasn saxe| jo Ayjjinbuesy ayy |
swey Apuesyiuis 3eyl Juawdo|aAap ey saiels Adtjod ay] |

£3S

Page 113



14"

"ue|ld |e207 ay3 ul usyel yoeoidde ay) —
_h_wﬂ_ 1x31 Adjjod ay3 ueys Jayied ny ay1 ul Ind aq pjnod 3|qelA |
Aj1e2iwou09a jo uogeuedxa 3yl - asne|d [euy 3yl Suipsegay

_
_

[édA@N 243 Joy uonesapisuod e uopedo) s| J¢eale dgN
ay1 ul AgJeau ayis aaneusdl|e ue je {papiaoid ase Ayjiqenns
pue azis ‘AyjIqIssadae J3uaq Jo |enba jo sanijide) arneusaye

{éAmtond
40 J3pJo ur)-asaym pauoddns aq Ajuo :ssdjun paisisal aq
Jliw “Ajj1oey [IN3IND pue AJUNWWIOD e JO 3n|eA pue 3|eds 3y

ur uondnpal Juedyiudis 1o uipnpu ¢ JuswdosAapal 40 ‘asn

40 @8ueyd sso| ay3 Ul 3 nsal [jim 1ey) sjesodoud Juawdojaas( |

:papiom Appanisod si Adjjod ay) aunsua
01 ‘saul| Suimo|joy 3y3 Suoje ‘Sutpsomal swos 15388ns ap

‘uoissiwiad Juiuueld aiinbal Jou op sasse|d asayy uIyPM
asn jo saduey) 233 sjood Butwwims pue s|jey AHunwwod
| ‘sdoys jlews "33 — s3sn AJuNWwod [e30|, M3U SI 7'{ SSe|D)

'3 sse[d 43pun ||y 03 Aj2x1] 51 Aiadins Aeulalan ayy
‘AjJeIUlIS *[1e1al JO SWI0) 1310 W01} SASSEI 3SN 3ARdULSIP
1ou aue 3o 3s0d pue Areunteyd sy - Juswdojansp

10} paasu Aue 1noynm pausyje Ajjuesyiusis aq pjnod

3sN 3y} 343y 1si] 9Y] U0 SIN[IIR} JO JSqWINU € DJe dI3Y ]

papuawe u3aq sey Adljod

"OALEDIPUL JO BALSNRYXS SI 1S1| SIY] JOY19ym Sas|Ape _
Adljod siy jo aun) Aseuiwnjaud ayy 1 [ngasn aq pinom 3 |

62S

saoeds 9says Jo ||

10U 1nq ‘awos sdew o xipuaddy "sjuapisai-uou o} juasedde
34 j0u AW SUOLEIO| AU} SE - S13SSE ISBY] JO UOLLIO| 3Y]
91e4isn|[i 03 papiroad sem dew e i [ngasn 9q Os|e pinom 3y} |

Page 114



St

5,1SSS 40 uoyedynou "Buisnjuod Auan s) 3 pue (ueld _

3uImoj|o) uaIIMBI U33q Sey Adljod pue kun_wuu<._ 1E20] 3Y3 40) 4ddN 3Y1 yIIm ANwIopuod |esauss ul jou sisiy] |

012s 7

| auo A30j02a ue ueyy anssi ASojoaeyaie adedspue|
N._Umc_vm_u:_u:_ _ mm._oEm_cu_cg\sotetcmwmvtoumucohm*whw;._.

¥OT'S)

1e2A mau ayj ur uoyeynsuod 2igqnd 1oy 3no of Ajjnjadoy
pinoys pue uoyesedasd u Ajua.und sy ASazea1s AlsiaAIpolg
dMD M3U Y "JUBA3[aJ ||3S 51 JUSUOI 3Y3 JO Yonul Jeyy

‘ples 1ey) "910Z-£00z 40} uejd uoyae ue sem 3 se , 3iep Aq

3JUSPIAD JUeAD|I SUIBWSJ Ueld | I35, SU passed mou sey Ueld UONDY AlISIDAIPOIG A 341

.Emv::on_

1SSS mau [enualod ayj Ul papnjoul d1e way jo Aue

41 995 01 Sunsalalul 3q [{Im 11 - IN|EA UOLRAIDSUOD Ul Yaiy

Jlus 31e sBWoy Aepijoy aJe 313yl YIIym Uo sayej ay3 JO SWog

luens|ad si Juawwod Jogduey | ¢JaBuel B WoJ) yJewsal [propdaue ue Jo) d2eid 3yl daN Ue S|

|
m.o._”.m"

zors)

‘G'0T’G eJed 23s - "21a s92130eud |

Buiwuey (jeao| Asaa 3q pjnod woym Jo Auew) si13xjem
gop Aq sauequnisip {(juiw *§-8) saads saiseaul ‘uonn|jod
apn[aul sainssaud 18yl *(yiedialep ayl ulym wody
paapul Jo U91532Ual1) PUB UOPUIMS WO} ,SI0NISIA, Aep Jo
SAISN[DUI SI J1 13Y18YMm 10 ,51S14N01, IsN{ s1 21n3y siy3 Jay1aym
MOUW) 0} pa1salalul 3q p,2m) s10usiA 1snf 10u pue ease

9y3 Jo Alis1aAIpoIq 3Y] U0 saunssald Jo aduel e ale 313y

- »S401ISIA JeNUUE 00000S @Y1 WUy 3unssaud Japun, so1e1s|

1°0T'S 0Ze3ed

Page 115



9l

é4ddN 4o uejd |eao| 3yl ul papnoul Apeasje 10U

s1 1ey3 Aes 03 SuiAul NOA aJe jeym - Jed|d Jou SI ,"aS SYIP|IM
|E20] BY3 UO 10944 AsIaApe yum uoissiwiad Suiuueld Aue jo
uonIpuoad e 2q 0} palinbal aJe ‘uoyeddde pue asueudjuiew
aininy pue ‘sjesodoud asayl pue ‘uonedidde dujuueld

Aue ul papnjoul pue dn umelp 3q 01 pasau [{IM SJNseaw

uoLeAISSUOD

pue uone8niw alenbape uayl ‘payusn( si $3USs 959y}
0] Wiey palapisuod st 1 1ey) 1eald os ase Juawdojanap
10 SI3Udq 3yl 3JIYM,, - Adjjod ay3 ul uoydas 3y

4 xipuadde ui pajsi| saMs 01 pa1d14Isal 3q Jou pjnoys Adxjjod
SIy} os ss9301d uonesynou-al |SSS Y3 jo Hed se ‘aininy
2y} ul pa1eudisap S|SSS MU aq 03 ARvji| a.e 343y1 uowppe u|

uespun
Adjjod ay3 sayew yaiym ‘uo 131e| ONg 01 S1ajal usyy Adjjod
ay] "31qissod 313ym ‘ssoj 1au ou isnf 1ou - (DNg) uies 19u
Ausiantpolq sasinbalt 4ddN 9yl *,paaueyua ‘s|qissod ataym
pue:* says ajl|p|im A3y, 1Byl S31e1S 1l 3dUIS 4ddN Y1 pue
ue|d |e20| 3Y31 Y10q Yum Aljuiopuod |esauasd uj aq 01 payesp |
| -84 P32 |[IM U ‘SISSS Inoge i 0TIS Adiod 1eyl Bulwnssy |

(‘Anaunod

2y1 jo sHed Juasagip ul s8ulyl UBIa4Ip SNOLIBA p3||ed

uaaq Ajjeslio1sty sey uoneudisap o 3dAs siy3 se duepind
Juswuidnog uj AjpenonJed - | s9Is [0, SE 0] palid)al
sawnawWos os|e ale Aayl) aj|p|im Jo) aduepodun Alunod

40 S91Is aJe pue uoneudisap a11Ys4a1530N0[9 |BI0] B 348 SAI
*,SUS I |PIIM A, 01 suafaJ Uyl 1xa1 Adljod By "pasn aq
10U p|NoyYs ,|e20|, WIa1 SY3 0s ‘@d2uepiodwi [euoneu JO aie
Y21YyMm S|SSS Smoys / xipuadde 1e dew ayl Jaaamoy ‘,saNs

AS0]023 |edo] Juevodwi, 03 s13ya4 a1 Adijod syl Ajsai4

Page 116



YA

Papuawe Juipiom Adijog

“(lwy 6521/0202
\>_u\<u>>m\mmmmu§sw\m_o.____mn.333\\“3#5 |eaddy jo
HNoJ 3y Aq 1no yanuis uasq Apuadal sey yoeoudde Jejiwis
€ - suonipuo) diseg ayj 393W 10U S0P YIIYM Isa] uataylp
€ 8anpo.ju| 01 sye3s Adljod iy jo ydeiSesed puodas

2YL "dqissiw.ad st adeds usain [eso] uo uawdojanap
SI8YM S20UBISWINDIID BY] Sauiwisiap Adjjod jeuoney |

‘SI9yBW-uoIsIap 1oy Buisnjuod aunb aq p|noa |

SISSS 8ulian0d Adljod ue|d |edo) 3yl pue Adjjod siy3 yyoq 7
BuiaeH -uoneusisap ays Jo S|2A3] J12Y30 J9A02 J0U S30p 1
uoytppe ui ‘Asjjod ueyd jeso) ayy puoAaq sa08 1eyy sapinoid

Adijod 5141 324M JBBPUN B1E BM utod DNg ay3 ueyy 43410 |

‘uied
13U 3piaoud pinoys juswdolaasp je Jey) Aes Sa0p 4ddN
2y Sunou ‘axel o) Juem Aayy Yoeousdde jeym apiaap o1

|PR3U M YsLied By ¢SISSS Bunaaye 1o uiyum ﬂcwan_va_

03 13431 Ajuo %0T ay1 sa0Q ¢1214151G 3yl u1 Jo ysued ay;
ui ‘os JI pue ‘a)s-o Jo ayls uswdojaaap ayj uo papinoid
99 %0T 941 P|NOYS ¢ Uojsua]xa [[ews e 1o} uonesidde
13pjoyasnoy e si 4 yi suaddey Jeym ésiuawdojanap

lIe UBSW am oq "suousanb jo sauas ajoym e sasie. Syl

u9lEAINb3 4o Ju3aW ules jau wy43Q
23ep-01-dn 3sow ayy Suisn painseatw ‘uied 1au Alsianipoiq
9|geinsesw %07 apircsd pjnoys sjuswdolanap ||y

“Buipiom Adrjod |ngaied aJinbal [im 3 1nq Pisig mE_

10} 3514 € 99 p[nom dgN ay3 uj winjuenb e 9pN|dul 0] %01
9115 530p |1 JuswuolAL] SuiSiawa ay ysnoyyje En_n.zi
841 530p Jou) (ONg) uied 1au Auisiaaipoig 10} wnjuenb
e 3Aey Aj1ua.1und j0u saop ueyd |ea0) ay __.mU_._m.E_._m_
HUSWUISA0H yum auyj ut ‘pasinbal aq im Ansianipoiq
Ul 9SE310UI 90T E ‘||eJanQ ,, 1BY] 31215 0] UO 5903 Aayod ayy |

Page 117



8l

Jpd'gT0Z uonIa[Rs jo sajdidutid pasiAsy
JpS0LSL/21y/e3ep JuSWYdERL/SP eojdn/waishs/speojdn
JIuaWuIaA08 /Y n'aog-a1Asas duiysijgnd-siasse//:sdny

- 1e puno} q ued ssulp|Ing paist|
104 @2uepind JUBWUIBACY ‘ssanoud (3)jesed e se Juysi| Bulel

Sugsi) (20| B Se wayl apnaui o} 1aja.1d pInom

‘Anenb

jeanioamydIe Ysiy Auaioyyns e Jo Jou ale pue p|o sieah

0€ uey1 ss3| 3Je Aay] se ‘Jasse 93elIdy e se pajunod aq o1
Pio AjuaidLyns 10u aie Aay3 1ey3 15983ns pjnom am ‘sYHAN
40 151] 3Y1 Ul PIpPN|aU| US3q dNAeY SIUIOY Aepijoy aye] sis|

“YHAN € 30U S 1eYyM pue s| Jeym Je3|d

21E 219 SIayew UoISIP ‘sisumo-pue| a11gnd ay3 1ey3 aJnsu3 |
I SIyL ~“PaLRuU3p] 3 0] SPIU SULBWA [BURD B0 pTEN ]
In} 3yl pue soioyd wodj Sa|Us Se SINIINIS Yans 21e00|

01 Ynaygip 2q Aew 3 3jdwexa Joj “uaxa uayy Suipnpul

- dews e uo umoys aq pjnod A3yl §i |nyd|ay ag os|e pjnoMm
311nq {(esieadde v Y3 Uj O Sy AILHE Ul PIDUIIRYDI I0U

aJe 1ey3) SYHAN |euoutppe ay3 4o sojoyd Jo 195 e 3Je 1By

Page 118

¢, suopoalp 7 ajpue 01 333[gns, 3q SIy1 pinoys - Lsuohaald
t 2204y J0 Sulaias, 01 1943l noA asaym | xipuadde
u} Suisnjuod Ayss st ing 12248 51 SYHAN [220] 40 35| 3yl

payuep Suipiom Adljod

Aonjod s1y1 jo Buipiom pue uopualul ay3 poddns am

1S

sooueIswNaD [e1aads Asan up pauoddns 2q Ajuo jjim sadeds

uaa.0) |e207 PaleusIsap OMm] Y} UlyUMm juawdojanap 1oy
sjesodold, ||| Bulyi3Wos 03 pagdueyp si s1y13s338ns pAM




6}

#9113q/us9du03 JUBpISal JO WBWaIe)s & se papnpui _
| 3q pjnos ysnoyye ‘1084 Jo Juawaess e se ued 3Y1 ul us jou |
PInoys os paseq auapias jou pue ‘aAne|ndads si Suipooy !

40 js11 1318343 € 0] PR3 |lIM Juawdo|ansp uopuaysay) Jo|
_ 4IN0S 3y1 1eyy uowuasse ay) 15383ns pjnom 2M ZFT'S eed|

payle)d Suipsom Adijod pue papusie uolesyusny

_ "@244ns pinom Juswidolanap, se ﬁ:wan_w>wv_

| 48430 Jo |eyuapisal, Ajiaads 0] Auessasauun 13|
_ |

_ uonae adesnodua Aew Apadosd
9431 uo uonisod payreq Auunwwos e nq Adxjod siy3

Aq 1y3nos juawdojanapay 341 jo Aem ay3 u; spuess Adyjod
Bujuueid Sugsixa ey Aiiun sty ‘uswapas |edpuid
€ J0 Alepunog uswdojansg 3Y3 ulyum sys Apadoud _

_ U1 USAID "8IS S1Y3 JO asn aun3ny syy uo 1aags e Bulpinosd
Pa1oN | ‘Adjod jeuonesidse ue se ajqelrdasnae Ajgeqouid 5 Adjjod sy

_ ‘[eued ayy |

YHM payjul) s3asse asoy) 03 apew aq pinoa ERIEIETEY Lw_mw_u_

| eases Yarym ui ‘afejuay ay3 Suiasasaid uo uordapas ey si

ydesSesed ayj u sieadde 5330 eued 01 aauaiasay| - jeued ayj uo esed SI43 JO BIUBAB|31 3y UO aINS Jou aue I _

€2T°S eied

| |
| |
| "US04q 351y sem punoas ay3 yarym le uc_on_
_ Y3 wouy Butpjing e yo age ayy s91e|nJjed a1eis Jo Emuwbmm_
941 (41 40 | Spesn 03 jus|eainba Bulaq se pajaidiaqui |

\ Alesaus8) Ayjenb Suipuessino dlelisuowap Asy) i \w_ameL
404 — UoudNIIsU0 Juadal AjsApe|al Jisyy audsap suipjing

_ Ul3pou swos 1s1 03 azeudousdde aq SS9[@aYUaAdU Aew _
31 "3WA J0 1531 Y3 puess 01 394 aney Asy) 9s5ne23q 153.133u)

_ JHO3sIY Jo |eanpayydse jepads o aq 0y paJapisuod Ajjewsou
| j0uase s8uIp|ing yYans :pjo sieah OE UeYj ss3 s8uip|ing “61 |

|

Page 119



0¢

asuepind vcm_
saiiod [EUOUEU pUE [BIO] JUBAS|3 || 1UNGJJE ojur 2veL e |

-sanbiuyaal wmmc_m_v_
ajqeulelsns Jo uotielodiodul ay3 INsus ‘3jqissod aiaym e _

gale SUIpUN0LINS 10 JUSWOJAAIP Y3 UIYUM

‘[s324n0s 13y30 10] awigal sa1empunold 12edw| asiaApe

Aue Suipn|aul quawdojaAsp 34} Aq pajeqJadexa ag 10u
{{1m Buipooy) Jey) a1ellsuowap 03 paau siadojanap jeyl e |

‘ppe os|e pjnoa Adijed ayy |

i ¢5904N0s 13410 Woij 10 (uipooy
193eMpunold Yum paxyul| uayo s yaIym) Su1pooy|} Jarem |
278405 4O UCHUALW OU §i 3134} pasudins ajni| e aJe am |

7 .Gco_,...mu__anm,w_.__:_._m_a.E*.EaEmmmmmm.u_m_._-noa_t,mucmn_:m.
/08 mmm//:sdny) asuepind jeucueu 1ad se) \wu_.:_am_
Aouagy JuawuolIALg 335, 0} siadojanap asiApe pjnod |

10 quawdojanap jo ajeas /adA1 uo paseq |euoguodosd Buiag
JUaWSSasse ay] InN0ge JullIaWos uoguaW PINed [y AUl

‘Odd dY3 Ul SuswWRIINbAL Y4 Ul Adosindwod

10U SI U2IYM UOLIEPUBWILIONDDI YH4S Y1 UO paseq 1] mmi
1e3)7 3¢ 03} SPadU SIYL “(rg sy ut paionb/paute|dxe ag p|nod
Y2Iym — WY 4S Y3 Ul papusIWOoIal se) s|an3| Ja1empunois
jo ujJoyjuow 3pnjaul pINoYs, 3 ‘paunbal st yyd B 3184M

-aouepind y3/9ddN 1ueAdidl 3yl Suimoljoy
palinbas aq Aew yyd Ue uayl eale sy ySiy e ul punoj st 31s
ay1 4| "4 pa|teIap 59| € p3au AW YaIym ‘UoIsSuIX Joulw

e 1o} yyd ue sjuaWalINbal JO S|PA] BULIBYIP YUM ‘Buipooy}
[RIANY YHM € pUe 7 74 Ul 10 ‘(J31eMpUNo.d se Yons) s32IN0s
1330 Woly SuIpooy Yyum (TZ4) T SU0Z poold Ul SEINIE]

- s151%a Apeauje 55930.d (yy4) UBUISSASSY SiY poold 3yL

Page 120



4

| |
¢3|qe1dadse ag pjnom 1eym Ing ‘pazedmiw Jo vwv_o>J
Bq pInoys soedwi 13430 pue adeaspue 3|qeidasoeun |

! _

_ "eale Asuia) yinos ay; o) palejaus Ajsejnoued _
| Wass j0u saop 1nq ‘@Auoddns Ajjesauag aynb s >u__oa_
SY1 ¢e1ep SNO ¢éAanins ployasnoy ay3 ur 1no swos U pip

— Aaljod ay1 10) pasu 243 Yoddns o3 35Uapias aj0u p|noo ry|

_ ‘3lenndoudde
#1 A815ua |euonippe Sunessuag usyl pue siy AS1aua
_ Suiniasuoa punoue pasinbay st yseoudde paouenu v ‘sso _
A319u3 Jusnaid 0 P31e[nsui usaq Ajjenyoe Jou sey Auadoud
_ 9Y3 pue Audrdsa s Iesauad Aew Aay1 uonisod
419Y1 USAIS pue palwigns aie suoyedyjdde sjpued Jejos
| sawgawos "8'9 ¢painsesus aq pjnoys S1oedw Jo s1ysuaq
25343 Moy 0} se suaysassns Aue aney Ysiled auy saog

's}asse
a8e11ay pareusisap 40 uogeniasuod 93 01 1ySram ymmcmi
| 313 o1 s1ayew uoisioap salinbay Adijod jeuopeu E>m>>oc_
| 8ugusiam |enba ue sandwi 515 Aayod sy uonippe u)|

papJoms. Adjjod | Pa10jdxa 39 ||1m 3ey) anss| ue si sigy 1eY] 3jou asealy

‘2dueleq |

Buiuueyd jo uogiugoss. swos Yyum Juniadway spasu
3115983ns ap “Jupped Jeussixa Jo - s3ulp|inq afeyay
_ U0 dadn Bupmoyje se payasdiaul 39 pinod s1y] ‘siysuaq
__ dn y81am 01 moy ute|dxa jou saop Ing ‘suofelspisuod Jayjo
ysiamino pnoys sjuswanosdwi [ejuswuoniaug Jeyy sazeys

\ Adjod siyy “Asjjod uejg 18307 mau e Aq papasiadns aq pjnoa
Ajjod Aue sny; pue ‘ue|d |2207 By3 o 31epdn 3y1 y3nouyy

_ "awnRyl| uelq ay1|
_ Suunp a8ueys Aew U se ‘Adijod uym oy ERITEYETEY uuwhj
PIOAE p.am yolym - 3oueping w4 1B21UY331 40 30/ e s asay] |

Page 121



[44

- aeudoidde w‘_w;\si

sanys dea pue Supysy ‘Aujpinbue; 03 33ua1343) apnjoul
pInoys (VIA1) Juswssasse peduwi jensia pue adedsspue)
Y, SpuUaWwWod1 pue ‘03 pie8al aney 03 JUIPIAD uo_

sanunos pue ,Sanys yep, pue Ajinbues suojusw d1IT ¢ 0T

/4ddN 341 510921 A|n4 51 3UNSUI 87

Aaijod 3yz ui dn paxdid aq 03 SpPasU Siy} 15988ns 9N\ T'LT'S
1e JUW=a1e1s 4ddN 3Yl se Jej se 08 10U S0P JUAX3 umﬁ_

01 sny3 pue ‘aoueleadde pue Jadeleyd adedspue| yjoq uo
Sunygi| 1o syoeduil adedspuej ayj JSA0D 10U saop Adijod aﬁ_

| |

18U UBY1 J3PIM S1 1O dd 3.IND3J S3AIRSWAYY
Ul yo1ym sawayas Sugysj asoy3 Joj Ajuo 1 st - pasnbal aq _
M awayas Sunysi| B uaym a3 se Jeajd JBL3 10U SI Aatjod ayL |

7 ‘uopew.oju) Suiddew sapjs 3Jep {BUOHQEU 3Y] O3 siaal Yaiym
| 1110t esed pue Adjjod ue|d |20| 01 92UJa343) OU S1 343Y |

pauuep uoygesyysnf pue pspuawe Buipiom Adljod

ueaw Ajjeal sy} 530p - swawdoaaap, 01 s1233J L1305 Aanjod

_
isyuawdo|aAap Japjoyasnoy Suipnput sjuswdojansp __m)
[

_
/7 isuawaA0sdwl Jo) saguoud aJe s1aafosd E:B:L_ﬁm_u:.:_
Suimo||oy 3y YJomiau yied 3joAd pue yjedjooy

Sunsixa 2yl puayxs pue anoiduw ‘uielal eyl (1nsi9) _

pue wsno} Bulpn|aul) sjesodoud 03 uanif 3q |(im Uoddns,

papuawe Asjjod

- ule1al, 15938ns p,am pealsu]
- doaydn ay3 woddns, ui se ,uiejulew, se peas aq p|nod |
- pasejdai 8q 03 sPIBU UIBJUIEW, PIOM ay3 1243 15383ns 3

- eale ay1 uy BuiA|dde saoljod JueAd|as 13410
pue Adijod Suiuueld jeuoyeu 03 3JUB13J3J YUM pIsSIsse
ag pjnoys s1oedwi 3y, )| Buiyjawos ppe pjnod sdeytad |




€e

"(8uiy31) umop se yans) a8ey m._
Y3y ssiwiujw o1 $9150]0UY2] ARDAYD pue asn Sunysy |
[ 30 Sunug 343 Jo uofesapISUO3 3pnjaul pjnoys sty Ajinaas |
[euossad 104 Bunys Jo [ans| pasinbas 3Y3 3uipinoad 1spym
_ J4a1deteyd adesspue| uo peduw; sy asiwiulur o3 pausisap aq
|__3snw quswidojansp mau yum pajeidosse ‘Sugyd _mEmeu__

__ ‘asnejo _ur_N_q

"I371 Adnjod — dan uonsAQ pue sed|epy a8s ‘uosuedwon J04|

"I%83U02 1E30| 33 Ul Apeajd asour 11q e Adijod

ﬁ 841 81nal pjnom siuiod asayy ‘Jayyadol ¢dunysy _m_.._._myxw_
I UM Juawdolaaap jo ajos pue (é1upwssassy
Ia13eieys adesspuey Isuapine 3yl 93ualajai) [epads eale
243 s3xew yo1ym saroeleyd adedspue) ayy 1noqe 3uiyiswos
_ 313y3 51 3x21 A1o1onposyul 3y ul Ino $1Y3 Jutod 03 pue -
|_Aonjod siy1 Joy snyadiuy 241 PUBISIapUN 0] |njasn 3q pinom u;

Page 123



Page 124



South Cerney Neighbourhood Development Plan

BASIC CONDITIONS STATEMENT

April 2021 @Dlanmng

Page 125



Contents

O =Y oY I = To [U =T g 1T o PR S
2. Introduction and BacCKEIrOUNG..........oiiiciiieiiiiiiieceiiee ettt e st e s s see e s s sabee e e et ee e s esabeeeeesnbaeesenabeeesennnees
3. Conformity with National Planning POIICY .......uuiiiiiiiii ettt e e s s atee e s st e e e snraeeeeans
4. General conformity with the strategic Policies of the development plan ........cccceciieieiiiieecciiiee e,
5. Contribution to Achieving Sustainable DevelopmMENT .........occviii it e e
6. Compatibility with EU Obligations and 1€giSIation ........ccceeiiciiiiicciiie e

R (= (=T =T 1 [T

Abbreviations used in this Report

Cotswold District Council is abbreviated to ‘Cotswold DC’
Cotswold District Local Plan 2011-31 is abbreviated to ‘CDLP’
Habitats Regulations Assessment is abbreviated to ‘HRA’
Local Green Space is abbreviated to ‘LGS’

Strategic Environmental Assessment is abbreviated to ‘SEA’

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan is abbreviated to ‘the Plan’ or ‘SCNP’

1
Page 126



1. Legal Requirements

1.1 This Statement has been commissioned from LB Planning by South Cerney Parish Council, to accompany
its submission of the South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan (SCNP) to Cotswold DC, the local planning authority
(LPA). This Statement meets the requirements of submission of a neighbourhood plan as set out in Regulation
15 of the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (“the Regulations”). No other neighbourhood

plan has been submitted for the neighbourhood area.

1.2 The Neighbourhood Plan has been prepared by a steering group on behalf of the South Cerney Parish
Council, the qualifying body for the Neighbourhood Area covering the Parish of South Cerney Neighbourhood
area, as designated by Cotswold DC on the 10™" March 2016.

1.3 The policies described in the Neighbourhood Plan relate to the development and use of land in the
designated Neighbourhood Area only. The plan period of the Neighbourhood Plan extends from until the end
of 2031 and it does not contain policies relating to excluded development in accordance with the Regulations.
Thus the SCNP meets the general legislative requirements of paragraph 8 (1) of Schedule 4B to the Town and

Country Planning Act 1990.

1.4 This Statement addresses each of the four ‘Basic Conditions’ relevant for neighbourhood plans, as defined
in paragraph 8 (2) of Schedule 4B to the 1990 Town & Country Planning Act, and explains how the
Neighbourhood Plan complies with these Basic Conditions. An additional proscribed Basic Condition was
introduced by the Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 and is also now relevant for neighbourhood plans.
Any consequences of this for the SCNP are discussed in Section 6 below. Exit from the EU has not altered the

requirement to comply with EU obligations.

1.5 The legislation states that a Neighbourhood Plan will be considered to have met the basic conditions if:

e Having regard to national policies and advice contained in guidance issued by the Secretary of State, it
is appropriate to make the neighbourhood development plan;

e The making of the neighbourhood development plan contributes to the achievement of sustainable
development;

o The making of the neighbourhood development plan is in general conformity with the strategic policies
contained in the development plan for the area of the authority (or any part of that area);

e The making of the neighbourhood development plan does not breach, and is otherwise compatible
with, EU obligations.

e Not breach the requirements of Chapter 8 of Part 6 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations 2017

2
Page 127



2. Introduction and Background

2.1 The Parish council began working on a Neighbourhood Plan in 2016. Working with the local community,
a pre-submission draft Plan was produced for the formal the six week consultation, as required by Regl4 of
the Neighbourhood Plan Regulations 2012 (NP Regs 2012). This consultation ran from the 14" September to

6™ November 2020, including an extra week due to the ongoing pandemic.

2.2 Responses from this consultation have been considered, and some changes made to the policies in the
Neighbourhood Plan as a result: detailed in the Consultation Statement. The Plan is now ready to be submitted
to Cotswold DC, the Local Planning Authority. As required by the Regulations; the submission of the
Neighbourhood Plan to the Local Planning Authority is accompanied by this Basic Conditions Statement, a
Consultation Statement, a plan showing the neighbourhood area and the results of the Strategic Environmental

Assessment and Habitats Regulations Assessment Screening Opinion.

3. Conformity with National Planning Policy

3.1 The SCNP has been prepared with regard to national policies as set out in the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF 2019). Itis also mindful of the National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) published by the

Government in April 2014 and updated thereafter in respect of formulating neighbourhood plans.

3.2 Set out in Table 1 below, is a brief summary of how each policy conforms to the NPPF. The particular
paragraphs referred to in the table are those considered the most relevant to each policy but are not intended

to be an exhaustive list of all possible relevant paragraphs.

Table 1: Conformity of the Neighbourhood Plan (SCNP) policies to the NPPF

SCNP Policy NPPF Comment on conformity
paragraph
Policy SC1: Design Guidelines 124,125 The NPPF states that neighbourhood plans have an

important role in identifying an area’s special qualities.

Policy SC2: Areas of Separation | 125, 127 Maintaining the separate setting and character of South
Cerney is supported by the NPPF.

Policy SC3: Home Working 81,83 Encouraging flexible working practices and appropriate
rural tourism are the subject of these NPPF policies.

Policy SC4: Local Employment | 84, 103 The NPPF promotes development that limits the need
to travel and rural employment.

3
Page 128



SCNP Policy NPPF Comment on conformity
paragraph

Policy SC5: Employment 83c Employment development is required to respect the

development outside DB character of the countryside in rural areas.

Policy SC6: Holiday 91,98 The NPPF promotes improving access and rights of way

Accommodation networks for the health and well-being of communities.
A network of paths is a sustainable tourist attraction.

Policy SC7: Non-residential 83, 100 Tourism is an important part of the South Cerney

Tourist Facilities economy. However part of the attraction of many of
the lakes is their tranquillity. The NPPF recognises
tranquillity as a planning issue (for example as a reason
for designating Local Green Space), and Policy SC7
protects where appropriate tranquillity.

Policy SC8: Open Spaces 91, 96, 97 Maintaining good recreational facilities is important for
community health and social cohesion.

Policy SC9: Community 92 The NPPF states that communities should protect their

Facilities facilities and guard against unnecessary loss.

Policy SC10: Local Ecology Sites | 170-1, 174 | The NPPF recognises the importance of local sites for
biodiversity, and need to identify local sites in plans.

Policy SC11: Local Green Spaces | 99 - 101 Neighbourhood plans may designate LGS.

Policy SC12: Local Heritage 184-5. The NPPF recognises the importance of local heritage

Assets assets, and Historic England provides guidance on how
neighbourhood plans may designate non-listed assets.

Policy SC13: Clark’s Hay Garage | 124-5,201 | Good design is promoted, and identifying opportunities
for improvement are encouraged, including in
conservation areas.

Policy SC14: Flooding 149, 150 South Cerney is a sensitive location for flood risk, and
climate change is likely to increase the risk. The NPPF
recognises the need to manage risk carefully.

Policy SC15: Renewable Energy | 148 Support for low carbon technologies is promoted.

Policy SC16: Sustainable Travel | 91, 98,102 | The NPPF promotes improving access and rights of way
networks for the health and well-being of communities.
A network of paths is a sustainable tourist attraction
and encourages walking and cycling as a travel mode.

Policy SC17: Light Pollution 180c The NPPF recognises the need to limit light pollution

particularly in sensitive rural locations.

4

Page 129




4. General conformity with the strategic Policies of the development plan

4.1 Neighbourhood planning is not permitted to deal with issues to do with waste, mineral and
strategic infrastructure planning, so-called excluded development. The development plan for
Cotswold District, not including policy documents dealing with excluded development is the Cotswold
District Local Plan 2011-31 (CDLP), adopted August 2018. The Neighbourhood Plan has therefore been

prepared to ensure its general conformity with the CDLP as it relates to South Cerney.

4.2 Table 2 below sets out how each policy is in general conformity with policies in the CDLP.

Table 2: Conformity of Neighbourhood Plan policies with the strategic development plan policies

. CDLP
NDP Policy policy Comment on conformity
Policy SC1: Design Guidelines Appendix | The policy references the design guidance included

D, EN2 within the CDLP and adds the requirement that
attention is paid to the local Character Assessment.
Policy SC2: Area of Separation EN4 South Cerney is an historic village, and its setting is
vulnerable to gradual coalescence with Siddington
and Cirencester in the north of the parish. Policy
EN4 of the CDLP recognises the importance of
protecting the setting of settlements.

Policy SC3: Home Working EC1, EC3 | Policy SC3 follows policy in the CDLP and adds local
detail specifically for the rural areas of the Parish.
Policy SC4: Local Employment Vision & | The CDLP vision aims to create more sustainable
INF3 communities and Policy SC4 aims to promote the

reduction of unsustainable travel.

Policy SC5: Employment EC3 Policy SC5 follows policy in the CDLP and adds local
development outside DB detail that has particular regard to the rural
environment and economic importance of the
residential tourist development in the Parish.

Policy SC6: Holiday EC11, S8 | The need for better sustainable travel routes is
Accommodation recognised in policy S8 as enhancing tourism
opportunities as well as promoting sustainable
travel in South Cerney.

Policy SC7: Tourist Facilities SP5, EN4, | Policy SC7 adds detail to the requirement in SP5
EC10 that the Water Park’s ‘sense of place’ be
reinforced. Policy EN4 in the CDLP requires
development not to have a detrimental impact on
the tranquillity of the countryside.

Policy SC8: Open Spaces INF2 Policy SC8 details the open space community
infrastructure in the Parish giving local detail to the
CDLP policy INF2. Besides supporting the
protection of the CDLP, it introduces the need to
consider impact on residential amenity.

Policy SC9: Community Facilities INF2 Policy SC9 lists the built community infrastructure,
similarly providing local detail to policy INF2.

5
Page 130



NDP Policy

cbLpP
policy

Comment on conformity

Policy SC10: Local Ecology Sites

EN7-9

The CDLP recognises the need to protect where
possible local biodiversity and other valuable
natural assets. Policy SC10 provides details of local
sites requiring protection and specific mention.
Sites of national and higher importance are
protected adequately in the CDLP already.

Policy SC11: Local Green Spaces

EN3

The CDLP has designated two sites for LGS status;
the local view is that these should be
supplemented by a further two sites equally
worthy of designation. They are important areas of
open space within the Conservation Area and part
of the historic landscape of the village.

Policy SC12: Local Heritage Assets

EN12

Policy EN12 and the linked Table 6 sets out criteria
for local listing of heritage assets, and Policy SC12
sets out the buildings and features that the SCNP
considers worthy of designation as locally listed
heritage assets.

Policy SC13: Clark’s Hay Garage

EN11a

It is considered that appropriate re-development of
this site would enhance the Conservation Area, as
supported by Policy EN11 of the CDLP.

Policy SC14: Flooding

EN14

Policy SC14 provides the local detail for policy EN14
with links to the evidence base detailing the
particular vulnerability of South Cerney to flooding.
Where appropriate, further measures and controls
will be needed to alleviate flood risk in the village.

Policy SC15: Renewable Energy

INF10

Policy SC15 adds local detail to policy INF10 and
has general local support.

Policy SC16: Sustainable Travel

INF3

Policy INF3 promotes active travel improvements
including links to the Public Rights of Way network.
Policy SC16 gives details on potential active travel
projects that are priorities for the local community.

Policy SC17: Light Pollution

EN2, EN4

The Cotswold DC does not mention light pollution,
but in line with the NPPF, Policy SC17 requires
development to keep light pollution to a minimum.
This preserves a view of the night sky and
maintains the village character of South Cerney in
line with Policy EN2 and EN4.

6

Page 131




5. Contribution to Achieving Sustainable Development

5.1 A Sustainability Appraisal has not been undertaken as this is not a requirement for a Neighbourhood Plan.
However, the Neighbourhood Plan has taken account of the need to contribute to the achievement of

sustainable development.

5.2 The vision of the Neighbourhood Plan includes a commitment to enhance sustainability “by developing a
stronger network of facilities and services, whilst ensuring that the character and landscape is conserved and

enhanced”.

5.3 Table 3 below has assessed our plan’s policies in terms of how it will deliver sustainable development in
the economic, social and environmental aspects of sustainability. It shows that the plan’s policies are normally
positive or neutral in impact on all three aspects. Where they are not, a decision has been taken about the

greater benefit of the proposal in terms of another aspect of sustainability.

7
Page 132



Table 3: Assessment of sustainability of Neighbourhood Plan policies

Policy no. and title Economic | Social | Envirnmntl Comments
factors factors factors

Policy SC1: Design Guidelines % % _ Good design can boost economic
attractiveness of assets

Policy SC2: Areas of Separation X "% "% There is a slight adverse impact on
development but social and
environmental gain.

Policy SC3: Home Working "% % _

Policy SC4: Local Employment _ "% % Working locally reduces
commuting traffic

Policy SC5: Employment X % "%

development outside DB

Policy SC6: Holiday _ "% % Potential new links to the lakes is a

Accommodation social advantage.

Policy SC7: Tourist Facilities % % _ Local visitors would benefit.

Policy SC8: Open Spaces _ % %

Policy SC9: Community Facilities _ o _

Policy SC10: Local Ecology Sites _ % "%

Policy SC11: Local Green Spaces _ "% "%

Policy SC12: Local Heritage Assets % % " Protecting the heritage of South
Cerney makes the village more
attractive to tourists

Policy SC13: Clark’s Hay Garage % % % This policy encourages greater
economic use of the site as well as
visual improvement.

Policy SC14: Flooding _ o %

Policy SC15: Renewable Energy _ % "k

Policy SC16: Sustainable Travel "% "% Better Active travel routes are a
health and social benefit as well as
an environmental benefit.

Policy SC17: Light Pollution _ . .

Scale used: ** very positive ¥ positive - neutral X negative  xx very negative
8

Page 133




6. Compatibility with EU Obligations and legislation

6.1 The Neighbourhood Plan has regard to the fundamental rights and freedoms guaranteed under the

European Convention on Human Rights and complies with the Human Rights Act.

6.2 A screening decision was issued by Cotswold DC in November 2018, following consultation on a Screening
Opinion with the relevant national bodies. This advised that:

“2.44 |t is considered the South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan does not require a full SEA or HRA

to be undertaken.”
The Plan has not significantly altered since this determination was made and so it is still current and an accurate

statement of environmental impact.

6.3 The Screening Report also states:
“2.47 Inaccordance with Regulation 106(1) of the Habitats Regulations, Cotswold District Council,
as the ‘competent authority,” also does not consider that an ‘appropriate assessment’ under
Regulation 105 is required.”

Thus the proscribed Basic Condition introduced by the Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended)

has also been met.

7. References

National Planning Policy Framework 2019

National Planning Policy Guidance (2014 and updated)
Neighbourhood Planning Regulations 2012 as amended
Cotswold District Local Plan 2011-31, Adopted August 2018

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan Submission Version dated April 2021

9
Page 134



South Cerney Neighbourhood
Character Assessment Report

1 Summary

1.1 This Neighbourhood Character Assessment report is a record of the built and natural
environment in 2017 produced as a part of the Neighbourhood Plan process. The report aims to
highlight the important features of each part of the parish as well as defining some key
characteristics, street scenes and viewpoints that the Neighbourhood Plan should help to conserve
and enhance. It also identifies parts and features of the parish that could be improved as a part of
Neighbourhood Plan process and policies.

1.2 The parish of South Cerney has a proud and long history dating back over a millennium. The
old parts of the village of South Cerney date from the 16" to 19" century and the basic layout of the
village has remained unaltered since that time. The old centre of the village is characterised by its
mix of properties from grand manor houses to former farm workers/artisan cottages and
workshops. Properties have Cotswold stone elevations and Cotswold stone or slate roofs, dry stone
walling, wide verges that give a sense of space and there are a number of important green spaces.

1.3 Over the past 60 years there have been numerous developments off the old road layout of
the village allowing the centre of the village to retain its historic character. In general, as time has
moved on through from the 1960s to the 2010s, the quality of the build of developments has
improved with newer properties built in a more traditional Cotswold style with traditional style
materials, although the sense of space has not always been retained.

1.4 The transition from village to countryside is remarkably rapid, partly due to the former
railway line and canal routes and partly due to the local topography. There are many footpaths that
make the countryside accessible and, in the main, tranquil. There are some stunning views,
particularly to the north and west of the village. There is distinct separation from Cirencester,
Siddington and Preston.

1.5 To the south of the village the landscape is dominated by former gravel pits. Some have
been redeveloped as holiday and tourist facilities with a ‘New England’ style architecture that is very
different to the traditional Cotswold vernacular.

1.6 Cerney Wick lies around 2 miles to the east, separated by the Water Park, and is an historic
hamlet of former farm houses, farm workers cottages and some infill developments. Most are built
in the traditional Cotswold style connected by narrow lanes with limited views.

1
Page 135



South Cerney Neighbourhood Character Assessment Report March 2021

2 Introduction

2.1 The Neighbourhood Character Assessment (NCA) of the parish of South Cerney has been
produced in support of the Neighbourhood Plan (NP). It sets out the distinctive character of different
parts of the parish.

2.2 The NCA is an important record of the character of the different areas of the parish. It sets
out the key style and construction of the built environment, the important green spaces and the
characteristics of the open countryside. Such analysis should assist in ensuring that any NP policies
and new developments have regard to the setting into which they are planned and ensure that key
views and features are preserved and enhanced.

2.3 The NCA report has been produced by a Working Group of volunteers from the NP Steering
Committee and the South Cerney Trust.

2.4 There have been various landscape character assessments undertaken at the National’,
County’ and District’ level as well as an Assessment of the Cotswold Water Parks®. These
assessments have informed this Neighbourhood Character Assessment which aims to address the
built environment and countryside as experienced by people who live and work in South Cerney.

3 Brief South Cerney History

3.1 The history of South Cerney dates back to pre-historic times due to the fertile lands in the
area and the land was occupied during Roman times and before the Saxons founded the village over
a thousand years. A royal charter was granted in 999AD and the modern day Parish still reflects the
historic boundaries. There was a rash of building in the 16" and 17" century when the South Cerney
as exists today first took shape. Upper Up, Silver Street, Station Road, High Street, Church Lane and
School Lane all date from that period.

3.2 In the 18" and 19" century there was further expansion with both the canal and the railway
bringing new growth. Census returns of the 19" century reveal a village of around a thousand
people at first working on farming related activities in the parish, but later many travelled to work in
Cirencester and Swindon, taking advantage of better wages in the new industries. Maps from the
time show the layout of the village as at 1924.

3.3 The canal closed in the 1920s and the railway line in the 1960s. Both leave important
industrial legacy. More recently gravel extraction has been a major shaping force, with restoration
creating the Cotswold Water Park and the resultant leisure and holiday home sectors. Another

! http://publications.naturalengland.org.uk/publication/5865554770395136?category=587130

? https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/6800/glca_report_severn___other_vales_text_2006-51673.pdf
* Assessment of landscapes outside the Cotswold AONB, White Consultants for CDC, June 2000

* https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/media/3xrnffaz/cotswold-water-park-landscape-character-assessment.pdf

2
Page 136



South Cerney Neighbourhood Character Assessment Report March 2021

important development was the opening of the airfield in 1936. In 1967 the airfield was taken over
by the Army and the Duke of Gloucester Barracks is an integral part of the parish.

S N
/ Yo
2 2
v‘:“lllll

-\ (q-,».j'v;\ e 2 A\ ‘_) AN

By i o 2 ~ .ﬂr; . A u | _ | i 4 -

A\ permpiide it st - 308 O U-T H - C KE/R/N ¥}

P 1 e e | .*"i’g\ \
AL = o}

b W2
\.
o
<
A

\~
‘.
g A %
5 N
a > '.\\‘
e .\‘.
The Village in 1924
3.4 The village of South Cerney has, for a number of centuries, been of a crucifix form spreading

out from the intersection of what we now call High Street/Station Road with Clark’s Hay/Silver
Street/Ham Lane. The lanes and tracks have supported the expansion of the village over the
centuries and it is perhaps not surprising that there are pinch points along their length where the
layout of old buildings does not allow the full width roads and pavements that would be ideal in the
21 century.

3.5 Over the last 50 years or so there have been many estate and infill developments that have
housed the burgeoning population. Most are development off the linear routes of the village and
along a new line of development to the south along Broadway Lane.

3.6 The hamlet of Cerney Wick has a similar history to South Cerney village with many
properties dating from the 16" to 19" century. It has not had the major new developments that
have seen the village grow so much over the recent decades.

3
Page 137



South Cerney Neighbourhood Character Assessment Report March 2021

4 Character Areas

4.1 GeneralPoints

4.1.1 The task of setting out the character of all parts of the parish was guided by a methodology
recommended by Planning Aid’England and summarised in Appendix 1 to this report.

4.1.2 A Working Group of members of the NP Steering Committee and volunteers from the South
Cerney Trust proposed that the parish be split into seven areas which have an individual style and
character. Walkabouts were then undertaken noting the character of the areas and amendments
made to the boundaries as deemed appropriate. It should be noted that some parts of the parish
have properties from the 16™ to 19" century sitting alongside infill developments from the second
half of the 20™ century. Inevitably it has been hard to draw the line between some areas. Whilst a
property may fall within one character area it may still have an impact on the setting and character
of an adjacent area. Views into and out of character areas are important and, for example, changes
to a property/development in Later Cerney could have an impact on nearby properties in Old
Cerney.

4.1.3 The seven character areas are shown in the attached map.

4.1.4 Indrawing the boundary of Old Cerney, account was taken of the boundary of the
Conservation Area®. The Old Cerney boundary extends beyond the Conservation Area boundary
where it was felt that other parts of the village should be included for the reasons given above. The
boundary of the Commercial Area is taken as the employment area identified in the CDC Local Plan.

4.1.5 This report is not a detailed description of individual buildings but describes the basic scale
and style of buildings and how they contribute to each area’s character and attributes. A more
detailed description of the individual listed buildings is contained in the Conservation Area
Statement and full descriptions are available at the Historic England web site.

4.1.6 Each of these seven character areas was walked by groups of volunteers. The key
characteristics of the areas are summarised as follows.

> How to prepare a character assessment to support design policy within a neighbourhood plan, Planning Aid
England
® South Cerney Conservation Areas statement, CDC, December 2002

4
Page 138



March 2021

South Cerney Neighbourhood Character Assessment Report

abul4 ulayinos .
feuszo pio [}
abuui4 uisyuon
fsuis) 123 .
saxe
|BIDJ8WWo) .
$oIM Asuls)

JUBWISSASSY
J93dedey) Ajiedo

ISNOH WUE4 UNOD

ujseg ay |

uuey weypeyn

T20Z (92SLS000T) PaAIasa. s3ybu ||y "3ybu aseqelep pue JybuAdod umoid o

FOIM Aawe]

SMOJ|IM BYL

(e sues)

SialsIS ey )

mopeay AejD

mojebung
UMOPISBM

asnoH puejel

uuey sajeH

oUluic,) ysiied

0000€°T €35
wQo8 009 00 00T 0

1202/20/81 i93eq

Aoyyny

dd Asusa) ynos Sealy JUBWISSasSY Jajpeleyd) Asusa) yinos

Page 139



South Cerney Neighbourhood Character Assessment Report March 2021

4.2 Northern Fringe

4.2.1 The Northern Fringe area is a mixture of historic water meadow, farmland, parkland, the
airfield and the army camp and sports facilities and playing fields as set out below. The large open
spaces, punctuated by only a few buildings, significantly contribute to the separation from
Cirencester, Siddington and Preston. Older field boundaries are typically hedges with drainage
ditches with Cotswold stone walling reserved for property boundaries.

South Cerney

%v\\‘ \v
o
45725 9\

4.2.2 Animportant feature of this area is the short distance with which the character changes
from a village setting to a rural setting. The area is crossed by the route of the abandoned canal and
dismantled railway line and there is evidence of the associated infrastructure in a number of locks,
former lock keeper’s cottages and railway bridges. Buildings in this area vary from traditional
Cotswold Stone farm buildings, through pre and post war military facilities to more modern leisure
facilities, such as the South Cerney Golf Club clubhouse and sports pavilions at the Upper Up playing
fields. The east of the area is bounded by the A419 and the noise from the roads is a significant
detractor to the enjoyment of this part of the Northern Fringe.

4.2.3 There are a number of important views in this area including the views from the old canal
footpath looking over the parkland of the golf course, the views from Northmoor Lane towards the
control tower and hangers of the airbase and the view from the old canal path to the north of
Northmoor Lane looking up towards the base. But undoubtedly the most spectacular views are the
270 degree panoramas from the ridge behind Hill View Farm along to Hill House which looks north,
west and south. The views from numerous vantage points along the ridge reveal few man-made
structures other than the odd pylon in the far distance. It is just possible to make out the top of

6
Page 140



South Cerney Neighbourhood Character Assessment Report March 2021

Cirencester Parish Church — but there is little evidence of occupation of the landscape before you. It
is hard to accept that such a rural panorama can be found so close to the village centre. The
preservation and enhancement of all these views should be a high priority.

4.2.4 There are two important Local Green Spaces within the Northern Fringe as set out in the
CDC Local Plan, the Upper Up playing fields and the Church Lane allotments.

4.2.5 Many parts of the Northern Fringe area are well used by ramblers and dog walkers alike. The
area forms an important part of the parish and gives the parish its sense of separation from the
settlements of Siddington, Cirencester and Preston.

4.3 0Old Cerney

4.3.1 Old Cerney covers the areas that include most of the old properties in South Cerney village
dating back from the 16" to 19" century as well as some later additions that impact on the setting of
those older properties. The area naturally contains the iconic parts of the village built in the
Cotswold vernacular of stone walls, stone or slate roofs, stone or brick chimneys, wooden sash and
casements windows or metal casement windows, steep roof slopes with many dormers, dry stone
boundaries and wide verges. The scale of properties in the area is varied from grand manor houses
to former farmworker/artisan cottages and workshops. There are a number of important street
scenes, village facilities and green and open spaces within the area.

4.3.2 The layout of the area follows the historic pattern of the village with Station Road/High
Street running east to west and Silver Street/Clarks Hay north to south. The layout is varied but not
regimented, reflecting the organic development of the village through the centuries. Church Lane
and School Land are narrow lanes in the centre of the village and Bow Wow is a unique lane with the
River Churn on one side with the Mill Stream running down the other side with fields beyond that
where a working farm (Boxbush Farm) remains in the heart of the village. The adaptation of this
layout to 21% century living and the motor car helps explain problems with car parking, the narrow
pinch points in the road layout and the intermittency of pavements and footpaths.

7
Page 141



South Cerney Neighbourhood Character Assessment Report March 2021

2 I '
z\jj | |
/ ]
]
} 7
J
)
/ .

/

9]
-
&
[ e

A B
\ ?g,m«ém oy

4.3.3 The garage on Clark’s Hay stands out as an incongruous site. Formerly the village petrol
station and garage, the site has become a vehicle recovery and repair operation with a forecourt
filled with vehicles, some of which are damaged along with associated recovery vehicles. The garage
is no longer a village facility and is simply a business that could be more suitably located in the
designated Lakeside Business Park. The recently opened Co-op on the High Street is a useful
additional retail business that serves the needs of local people. However, the traffic issues that it has
brought with traffic bottleneck at a scenic viewpoint along the High Street, parking along the street
and even parking on the iconic green verges as well as increased emissions from vehicles waiting
outside the shop are all serious detractors.

4.3.4 Whilst there are many key landmarks, viewpoints and green spaces in Old Cerney, the most
important ones, which deserve the greatest degree of protection through the policies in the South
Cerney Neighbourhood Plan and The CDC Local Plan, are:

Landmarks: The Cross, The War Memorial, Bow Wow, Atkyns Manor, Edwards College, All
Hallows Church, Village Hall

Viewpoints:  View north up Silver Street from the bridge at Bow Wow, the view east along Bow
Wow from Silver Street, the view from Bow Wow across the fields towards Boxbush Farm, view west
along School Lane from before the Old School building, view towards Edwards College from the
footpath on parkland at Chapter Manor, view east along Station Road from the Cross, view west
along High Street from the War Memorial, view of All Hallows Church from the allotments.

8
Page 142



South Cerney Neighbourhood Character Assessment Report March 2021

Green Spaces: Mown verges along parts of Silver Street, Station Road and High Street, fields at
Boxbush Farm backing onto Bow-Wow, parkland between Chapter Manor and Edwards College,
allotments and bowling green by All Hallows and the site of Cerney Castle.

4.4 Later Cerney

4.4.1 Later Cerney comprises a number of larger scale developments that date from every decade
from the 1950s to the present time as well as a significant number of infill and backland
developments. Most developments have been designed to complement the traditional Cotswold
character by utilising stone coloured walls. As time has moved on the building materials used have
changed from reconstituted stone to artificial/imitation stone through to the use of natural stone
meaning that the later developments fit in better with the Cotswold vernacular. Later developments
have also utilised imitation stone roof tiles or slates, again consistent with the appearance of older
buildings. This is to be applauded. However, the space around older developments in terms of front
gardens, verges and the spacing of properties has not been maintained and many newer
developments do not enjoy the sense of openness enjoyed by earlier developments. There are also a
number of brick facades in developments between Broadway Lane and Berkeley Close.

Ch

L
e
|

T\|]  cotswokc

\ Water Pa
U
%

D N

! T z v
1) & 57 - . H
i r\ Y i = 2P 2 i -
A8 Ly oy =" = =5 =
AR et B et S : | et
- Vi s X [ Bpg[Sta
\ s i 2 T \E . - }
o ! ° A
b - ===f . i S e
§ 5 =3 \ "" = 5
lyn Housa | ) 2% { DI 5
s e . 5 ooy =5 -
¥ - = N5 6 O o S ‘ % A\ Hami Cottage
- o * " = ===\ g g2 %
= | ) ¥ = =\ "o A\ 8 N7 \
S 5 | = s Path =
oa = i VoD
oy 5
Sycamore Hi
ket Walnut Tree
and Farm Hotse
| A 5
A ..
&

3 \‘\\\\. %O
O\ ¢

Cotswold
Water Park

4.4.2 There are three important green spaces in the Newer Cerney area, the playground at Robert
Franklin Way, the green outside properties in Berkeley Close and the amenity area at Cerney on the
Water.

9
Page 143



South Cerney Neighbourhood Character Assessment Report March 2021

4.4.3 One obvious feature of the post 1990 developments at The Limes, Kingfisher Place and
Cerney on the Water is the absence of the wire-scape of electric and telephone wires that spoil
many other street scenes and views in the parish.

4.5 The Lakes

4.5.1 The lakes are mainly 20" and 21° century features resulting from the gravel extraction
across the area. Restoration has resulted in most lakes being privately owned and many developed
for holiday/tourist homes and others for recreational pursuits including fishing and water sports.

South Cerney =

4.5.2 There have been a number of developments comprising holiday homes within the water
parks area over the past 20 years. These houses are wooden New England style lodges that are
painted in pastel colours located on the shore line of the lakes. There are a mixture of
detached/semi-detached and terraced lodges. Some developments have clubhouses of a similar
construction as well as other leisure facilities. There is no public access to these private lakes.

4.5.3 Elsewhere there have been other businesses set up along the Spine Road and Broadway
Lane including Cotswold Hoburne, St Johns Care Home, De Vere Hotel, Berite and Packers Leaze.
Some of these businesses, such as the De Vere Hotel sit well in their local environment and are of a
Cotswold style while others such as the Care Home are in large New England style which looks
incongruous with the Cotswold style and setting. Berite and Packers Leaze industrial sites are
inconsistent with the tourist and recreational facilities that are adjacent to them. There are more
appropriate sites within the Commercial Area for these businesses and moves to the Commercial
Area should be supported in the longer term.

10
Page 144



South Cerney Neighbourhood Character Assessment Report March 2021

4.6 Commercial Area

4.6.1 The business park is a mixture of older and new industrial units and offices. The more recent
buildings in Lakeside Business Park and the Mallards , to the north of the area, are large purpose
built offices and light industrial units and warehouses and are constructed of reconstitutes stone
with large windows and corrugated aluminium roofs and side panels. The boundaries and
approaches are sensitively landscaped with trees and shrubs which will improve as they mature. The
Business Park tries to harmonise with the setting. The major issue with these developments is the
lack of car parking space which causes problems due to parking on Broadway Lane.

J

Cotswold
Water Park

4.6.2 Inthe more southerly part of the Commercial Area the buildings are older and become
increasingly less attractive with some unsightly porta-cabins and transport yards. Parts of this area
would benefit from redevelopment.

4.6.3 The Redland Centre is at the southern edge of the area and as well as modern facilities there
are some rusty, and presumably disused, facilities and a chimney. The area would benefit from the
removal of these disused facilities.

4.7 Cerney Wick

4.7.1 Cerney Wick is a small pretty hamlet negatively impacted by noise from the concrete surface
of the nearby A419. It Is made up principally of older farm buildings now all converted into housing,
later housing together with a pub, church and small village hall set in an area of flat low lying flood
meadows to the west of the River Churn, accessed by two narrow roads from the Spine Road and
the old A419.

11
Page 145



South Cerney Neighbourhood Character Assessment Report March 2021

4.7.2 Older properties vary in scale from older farmhouses to farmer workers cottages and former
farm buildings, many extended. They are of traditional Cotswold construction with stone elevations
and stone roof, although there are some slate roofs. More modern infill properties are of either
stone or reconstituted stone. Windows vary from timber to metal frames and uPVC. Many
properties have spacious front gardens enclosed by traditional dry stone walls whilst others are built
to the edge of the plots.

4.7.3 The footpath alongside the sailing club lake offers a picturesque view of the sailing lake
towards the machinery of the gravel industry.

4.8 Southern Fringe

4.8.1 The Southern Fringe is an area of flat rough grazing land to the south of the parish, divided
into fields by hedgerows and ditches, crossed by the River Churn, bordered by the River Thames and
crossed by the old railway line/Sustrans 45 route. There are few buildings. The infrastructure for
future gravel extraction is being put in place.

12
Page 146



South Cerney Neighbourhood Character Assessment Report March 2021

Cerney.
Wick

4.8.2 The areais far from peaceful as the noise from traffic on the nearby A419 is constant. The
landscape value is not high and, whilst there are few high value views looking either into or out of
the parish, the view of Hailstone Hill from the tranquil permissive path by the side of the infant River
Thames is notable. Also, the view from the Thames Path towards Cricklade Church and the SSSis of
North Meadow link together Saxon settlements which are now separated by a county boundary.
The area does contain some important SSSls.

5 Areas for Improvement

5.1 The Working Group have identified a number of issues that could be addressed as a part of
the NP process that would enhance the character and setting of the parish and it is proposed that
these issues should be in the formulation of NP objectives and policies.

1. Garage in Clark’s Hay — the repair garage in Clark’s Hay is completely out of character with
the Conservation Area and the surrounding historic buildings and street scene. The petrol
pump canopy, parked recovered vehicles, recovery trucks and the style of the garage itself
make this an incongruous development that detracts from the setting of the centre of the
village.

2. Wirescape throughout Old Cerney — many views into and out of the Old Cerney area are
spoilt by the wirescape of electricity and telephone wires. For example, it is impossible to
view School Lane, Silver Street or High Street without the eye being drawn to the linear
feature of wires and poles. By contrast, newer developments such as Cerney on the Water
enjoy views that are not impacted by strung wires.

13
Page 147



South Cerney Neighbourhood Character Assessment Report March 2021

3. Access to lakeside areas — it was noticeable in the walkabouts that irrespective of the NCA
area, access to lakeside areas was generally restricted. Having endured the years of gravel
extraction and lorry movements, the general public are excluded from most lakeside areas
with restored lakes privately owned and fenced off.

4. Fencingin the Business Area — some of the older fencing in the business area runs alongside
footpaths and pavements and is not always appropriate and in some instances is topped off
with barbed wire. More recent fencing demonstrates that security needs can be met
without resorting to barbed wire.

5. Inappropriate business developments — there are a number of business developments in the
Lakes NCA that are inconsistent with the setting and tranquillity of parts of the Lakes area
and inconsistent with holiday homes and tourist/leisure activities.

6. Business Area older facilities — a number of sites in the Commercial NCA would be unlikely to
be permitted today and redevelopment of stacked porta-cabin offices would enhance the
area.

7. The Sustrans 45 cycleway south of the Spine Road is in a very poor state of repair with very
large potholes that need to be filled with gravel, an ironic situation given the proximity of
gravel extraction.

14
Page 148



South Cerney Neighbourhood Character Assessment Report March 2021

Appendix 1 - Methodology

The development of the NP has been led by a Steering Committee of the Parish Council and the NCA
process has been undertaken by a Working Group comprising members of the Steering Committee
and volunteers from the South Cerney Trust.

The assessment has taken account of a number of documents and reports in addition to the
Landscape Character Assessment reports listed in Section 2 of this report.

The Village Appraisal, South Cerney and Cerney Wick, 1999

South Cerney Conservation Area Statement, CDC, Dec 2002

How to prepare a character assessment to support design policy within a neighbourhood plan,
Planning Aid England

Character assessment pro forma notes, Planning Aid England

An NCA is an integral part of the evidence base to support a NP and guidance documents from
Planning Aid England formed the framework for the assessment. A Working Group started the
process by splitting South Cerney into areas of distinctive character. Seven areas were identified:

Northern Fringe
Old Cerney

Later Cerney
The Lakes
Commercial Area
Cerney Wick
Southern Fringe

Groups of volunteers then walk about each of the character areas noting the important facets of the
built and natural environment as set out in the Planning Aid England guidance to help define the
character of the area.

15
Page 149



This page is intentionally left blank



South Cerney
Neighbourhood Plan

2021-2031:
Appendices

Neighbourhood Planning Steering Committee
Submission Version April 2021

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Ve

Page 151

rsion: Page 0 of 42



South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan:
Appendices

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TablE OF CONTENTS ...ttt ettt eib e e e et e e s bt ee e e ate e e s bbee e sbbbee e sbbbeeennbeeenanneens 1
Appendix A: Local ConsUItation EVENTS ......cvevuiiiiiiii it e e e e e ae e e e e e e e e e eeeaeeees 2
Appendix B: Map Of the PariSh ... e ee e e aeaae e 3
Appendix C: Map of the CONSErvation Ar€a .........cccccecceiciiiiiiieiie e ee e e e e e e e e e e e ee e e re s e ee e e s e baarbbesbeaaeeeas 4
Appendix D: HOW Policies MEET OB jJECHIVES ......uuun i ie et e e ee et se e e e e e ae e ee e e e e eeeeeeaeenes 5
APPENAIX B2 VIBWS ettt ettt et e e e e e e e et e e ae e be bt eaeeseeaeeaena i sesaeeaessessessnsnnnnsnsaaeanaeasnnnnns 6
Appendix F: LOCAl ECOIOBY SITES ..uuuniiiiiiiieeetcei et ee e ee e e e e e e et te e ee e e e e eeseesaeabs e eeeeeeaeaaaeeens 11
APPENAIX G2 OPEN SPACES ceevveiutiitiieieeeeeeeee ittt e eeeeeeeeeteettetaetata i aaeeseseestestetansaaeeeeseseessnssnrnnnnsaseseaeeseeeens 12
ApPPENdiX H: LOCAI GIrEEN SPACES ... i ieieiieeeeticiei e ee e e e e e ee ettt s e ee e eeeee e s teataaataeeeeaeesaesaesnssannnsaeeeaaeasasnees 19
Appendix |: Locally Listed Heritage ASSEES....uuuuuiiiie et ee e ee et e e e ee e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeeaees 22

Appendix la: Locally Listed Heritage Assets Already Recognised as Non-Designated Heritage Assets. 22

Appendix Ib: Locally Listed Heritage Assets Meeting Criteria from CDCLP .......ccccccvvvvvevieeiiiieiieeieeeenn. 24
Appendix J: Rights of Way ImMProVEMENTS .......coci ittt ee e e e e ee e e ee e ee s e s e aas e sbeaaesaeeaees 32
.............................................................................................................................................................. 33
Appendix K: Groundwater Risk FIOOD IMap ......uuueiiieii it se e e s ee e e e e e e e aeeeeeaees 37
Appendix L: EVIdence Base REFEIENCES .......ccccoe ittt e e e e ae e ae e e 38
ApPPENdiX M: REFEIENCE LiST..uiiviiiiiieiiiiiie it ee e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e st e et baasbaeabeaaesaeeaeas 40
Appendix N: Neighbourhood Character ASSESSMENT ......c..uuuuieieii i e e e e e eeeaeeeees 42

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 1 of 42

Page 152



APPENDIX A: LOCAL CONSULTATION EVENTS

Event Description Date Venue Attendance
Household Delivered to every | December 2016 N/A 401 replies
Questionnaire house in the parish,

other than

Restricted Use

Holiday homes.
Household A drop in session to | 25th March 2017 Fentons 150 attendees
Consultation reveal the Community Centre

questionnaire South Cerney

results
Business Delivered to February 2017 N/A 19 replies
Questionnaire businesses in the

plan area.
Business A drop in session to | 20th April 2017 Fentons 9 attendees

Consultation

reveal the results
of both the
household and
business
consultation

Community Centre
South Cerney

Direction of travel | Adropineventto |16 September 2017 | Fentons 20 attendees
consultation share draft vision Community Centre
and objectives with South Cerney
residents
Neighbourhood Developed to reach | December 2016 N/A N/A
Plan Website residents using
internet
Parish Council Link to December 2016 N/A N/A
Website Neighbourhood
Plan Web site
Lakeside Emailed to all June 2018 N/A 20 replies
owners

Holiday Homes

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 2 of 42

Page 153




¥GT abed

APPENDIX B: MAP OF THE PARISH

| =
DRDIKEYNES |
fcp

ASHTON KEYNES CP._
L e

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 3 of 42



GGT abed

APPENDIX C: MAP OF THE CONSERVATION AREA

T

i

Eouth Cerney Conservation Area - Character Map '

Ky oA
RS —
— — Ccrtomdey
e
.* Focal features
B e
e

AN TE——

=
&

=

Inportan buiding ies
Important hodses, walsand banks
Sigifcant foopahs

Tree Preservation Oners

Imporant res and ee groups
AreasofLndscape value,imporan reen
open pace and Sgnfcan verges

Signficant aras of water

Ths s i eproduced from Ordnance Survey matial with the.
of Drdance Suvey on bl of the Conrller o Her

Majestys Statonery Ofce © Crown copyright. Unaud
et nfinges Crown copyright nd ey lad 0 pro
S or il procesdings Corswold Disict Councl LA 077658 9

orised

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 4 of 42



APPENDIX D: HOw PoLICIES MEET OBJECTIVES

9GT abed

Objectives
Policies
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
SC1 - Design Guidelines for South Cerney Yes Yes Yes Yes
SC2 - Areas of Separation Yes Yes Yes
SC3 - Encouraging Home Working and Micro Businesses Yes Yes Yes Yes
SC4 - Local Employment Opportunities Yes Yes Yes
SC5 - Employment Development outside the Development Boundary Yes Yes Yes Yes
SC6 - Holiday Accommodation and Access to the Lakes Yes Yes Yes
SC7 - Non-residential Visitor Facilities Yes Yes
SC8 - Existing Recreational Open Spaces and Allotments Yes Yes Yes
SC9 - Protection of Community Facilities Yes Yes Yes
SC10 - Local Ecology Sites Yes Yes
SC11 - Designation of Local Green Spaces Yes Yes Yes Yes
SC12 - Locally Listed Non-designated Heritage Assets Yes Yes
SC13 - Redevelopment of Clark’s Hay Garage Yes Yes Yes
SC14 - Alleviation of Flooding Yes Yes
SC15 - Development to reduce greenhouse gas emissions Yes
SC16 - Sustainable Travel and Rights of Way Network Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
SC17 — Reduction of Light Pollution Yes Yes

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 5 of 42



APPENDIX E: VIEWS

The following views are important because they, individually and collectively, encapsulate the
unique character of South Cerney and provide a sense of place. Therefore, any significant or
unsympathetic developments or alterations to any of these views would detract from the character
of the village and be detrimental.

1.

12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.

From Cirencester Road looking north east — from the junction with Northmoor Lane as far as
Talland equestrian.

Overlooking the sailing lake (Lake 16) from the public park west of that lake.

Views across the pond at Fenton’s Community Centre, Cerney on the Water, to adjoining
woodland.

From the bridge in Silver Street down Silver Street and Bow Wow, and over to Atkins Manor.
From Berry Farm north up Silver Street.

To and from the Old Cross along Clarks Hay.

All views from The War Memorial at the top of Broadway Lane.

All around the bridge opposite the Village Hall.

Close views of the Church from the path to the south.

. The 270-degree panorama from the ridge section of footpath ‘SC4’.
. From the road between Crossroads Farm and Upper Up looking north-east to the ‘footpath

SC4’ ridge.

From the footpath across Box Bush fields.

From the stile in the wall across to Ann Edwards’ College.

From Bow Wow across Box Bush Fields.

From Canal Footpath over parkland to Golf Club.

Northmoor Lane towards Airfield Control Tower.

From Canal footpath to north of Northmoor Lane looking towards the airfield.
In Cerney Wick, from the footpath alongside the sailing lake across the lake.
Approaching Cerney Wick along the railway line footpath.

From the bridge on the railway line where it crosses the river.

View of Hailstone Hill from the permissive path by the side of the River Thames.
View from the Thames path towards Cricklade Church and SSSI’s of North Meadow.
From the Gateway Centre across lake 6.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 6 of 42
Page 157



51 Augustine
E Fm

N

/
haht |3|

0 Graviy
wald

( |

A
=

Soale:NTE @ A4

= , ? .
o Hanlstuﬁj&“ by

© Crown copymgat ang datsbase rghts 2013 h :

e

| 2 E
- o e —

) ”~ Sy
2 \ "= el

| Oranance Survey, 100057

: -
L Common

YR T

¥

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 7 of 42

Page 158



6GT abed

/AR
'|SOUTH CERNEY - PLAN 1
! | Important View Points

q l‘ll*.

SOUTH CERNEY - PLAN 2
", | Important View Points

A
V)

{ .
o -
T e
‘J,d:l"

' Upper-Up | It k-
o I L«-—“_;;ugx

= Sl

Zoale: 1:5000 @ A&
| © Crown copyright and database rights 2018
.| Ordnance Survey, 100057526 -

““““ - |
-‘;;7 [ 20ale: 1:5000 @ As
| 1© Crown copyright and database rights 2018
= | Oranance Survey, 100057526

5

ST e

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 8 of 42



09T abed

\ l‘;‘::,ﬁ“ i'" \

B Z2E BN
) ,5?% ":' \I<,-"'/ % ) ..‘:"'/ B Humpback Lock \l
SOUTH CERNEY - PLAN 3 ' =] SOUTH CERNEY - PLAN 4 :
Important View Ffoinbs o 4 I Important View Points

a2 ; | ’ =

Lane  {Pra.,
\ gt T

| © Crown copyrignt and database rights 2013
| Ordnance Survey, 100057525 FA

© Crown copyright and database rights 2015
Qranance Survey, 100057526 L

(S

! I NP/ Y ) Soale: 1:6000 @ A4

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 9 of 42



T9T abed

=

VP!JL‘LJ, S i

NN

SOUTH CERNEY PLAN 51

lmportant View Points

D

K

o, ¥ * 7% N
e ol o8
-[ L7 — .

Soale: 1:6000 @ A&

© Crown copyright and database rights 2018
QOrdnance Survey, 1UODS'5"S

SOUTH CERNEY -PLAN 6
Important View Points . "-.;..
»“. '
%
|
,‘."
‘/‘ o
P btorw Moo, \ ;
! ILII"JMI"HI

o A "-NJ-. « 7' -

e mnrp ." i :

.(: 7’ P o — J had\,;‘\r'b.‘ - A =

iy ol 4 ——la T
B ,
g e
& ‘
B
% [
\ (s
l \
5

Fory, ™

Zoale: 1:6000 @ A&

© Crown copyright and database rights 2018
QOrdnance Survey, 100057526

A

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 10 of 42




APPENDIX F: LOCAL ECOLOGY SITES

SOUTH CERNEY
WILDLIFE
- 2021

Legend
D Souts Cerrey Parmh

At Dowrmrries Rabeny £

hatmne | owet Feestzry wih Mauw Lngmn: frotecton B
© Foreusy Corwnmion)
L ] Locsd Sews B2
1. River Cham LNS
2 RMabway Cuttng OGS
3. Comey Wick Masdow LWS
Ky WIRSe Shas arw row relered = a8 Local WIS SERLIVE | 4% e part of the

Loca Gbesjes o Dalkow)
TS & 80 PScates Tap BNowing Be Locel Shes anc the oficil S i held by e

Goxemaatios WSk Tus
Local Sita wre sow & comblaaton of Key WK% SIeuKNS), Regicraly

mporant e nic Rcac
VerpMCRYL

1 the Partsh E1 Mot in e Partsh 8

Scak: NTS @AY
© Crown zogyright ang

righta 2023 Survey. L A

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 11 of 42
Page 162



APPENDIX G: OPEN SPACES

-~

D 'Q

| _{SOUTH CERNEY NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

¥ Appendix G- Qpen Spaces
g =B U Airfield

il i
o \ (disused)

Open Spaces
1 Cerney Wick Playground

) 2 Cermney on the Water - 3) Play Area b) Woodland
pp— [ ¢) Lakeside d) Fenton's Play Area
b 3 Open Area by Scout Hut

. 4 Village Hall Green

5 The Piece - Station Road
8 Bowling Green
7 Berkeley Close Open Space -
8 School Lane Allotments ké // -
9 Playground at Robert Franklin Way Vs
10 Ann Edwards’ School Playground and Sports Field ) Gravet P;ts =
11 Golf Course =Y _—\{, ?ﬂ‘»' e Z

[ pen Spaces [scale: NTs @ A4 l&
1/

- = South Cemey Parish =7 | © Crown copyright and database rights 202

(.| Ordnance Survey, 100057526

s AT A ( \ \N /) / I:II \
- N\ ! \ \ \\=r 7 \ v
. Gy \ J\) \ —lfr \ "
> ) .

|
- / /A

N G —

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 12 of 42
Page 163



¥9T1 abed

SOUTH CERNEY NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN 1 SOUTH CERNEY NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

Open Space 1 ’ Open Space 2 ¢
- Cermney Wick Playground ‘ﬁ% - Cerney on the Water
- b‘ a) Play Area b) Woodland c) Lakeside d) Fenton's Play Area

o S .

y

Al

&
(=]
" &
. Qg
% O P
’--\a.“_.
o,
S il

Wick Parm

AN

Soale: 1:1000 @ A4

© Crown copyright and database rights 2018

Ordnance Survey, 10005752

A

Scale: 1:2500 @ A4

@ Crown copyright and database rights 2021

Ordnance Survey, 100057526

XS

IRLN

7 N\

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 13 of 42



G9T abed

SOUTH CERNEY NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

Open Space 3
- Open Area by Scout Hut

>\5\4//Y/%)\\\)/° 2

\

Soale: 1:1000 @ A4

d
Ordnance Survey, 100057526

- =
&

\ © Crown copyrignt ana datsbase rghts 2018 A ‘\

- \ _—

SOUTH CERNEY NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

Open Space 4
- Village Hall Green

e |

Soale: 1:600 @ A4

Ordnance Survey, 100057526

N AN

© Crown copyright and database rights 2015

A

\ I

<

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 14 of 42



99T abed

lﬂ SOUTH CERNEY NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

) N\

\

1
. j SOUTH CERNEY NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN
\’LI— Open Space 6

- Bowling Green

1

Do
f—

B!
0

Open Space 5
- "The Piece' - Station Road
<! t -}
3
% —

Arpe Cotuge

ENGER A

e

-

I

-

Soale: 1:1000 @ As

© Crown copyright and datsbase rights 2018 h

QOrdnance Survey, 100057526

° Scale: 1:1500 @ A4 l&

AN

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021
Ordnance Survey, 100057526

)

\

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 15 of 42



/9T abed

T_BEiioas

SOUTH CERNEY NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

\ . SOUTH CERNEY NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN
Open Space 8
- School Lane Allotments _

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 16 of 42



89T abed

\__—

SOUTH CERNEY NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

Open Space 9

- Playground at Robert Franklin Way

»
3
3 =

Scale: 1:1000 @ A4

@ Crown copyright and database rights 2021 'h
Ordnance Survey, 100057526 ya

P L BT

SOUTH CERNEY NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN -

Open Space 10
- Ann Edwards' School Playground and Sports Field

BN SN

Scale: 1:1250 @ A4
© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 'k
Ordnance Survey, 100057526 ya

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 17 of 42




69T abed

\

Open Space 11
- Golf Course

/\ SOUTH CERNEY NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN /6

‘ e s A
— *i - 1] © Crown copyright and database rights 202
e\ |‘ ’ J)q Ordnance Survey, 100057526

v

N A QO =
£\ I —mEee it \ \\ p\{

AL
Ve

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 18 of 42



APPENDIX H: LOCAL GREEN SPACES

LGS1: Boxbush Farm Fields

Boxbush Farm Fields is an area of around 2.9 hectares, divided into small fields of pasture, located in
the centre of South Cerney village and within the Conservation Area. It is accessible via a public
footpath running along its entire northern edge, parallel to the River Churn and Bow Wow.

The Conservation Area Statement describes the significance of the views from Bow Wow, across
Boxbush Farm fields towards the groupings of Boxbush Farm buildings on Station Road, as lending
“great coherence to the historic pattern of the village which would be largely lost if this area was
developed. Crucially it retains the agricultural character of the village.” In addition, views across
these open fields towards the tower of All Hallows Church, are available from parts of Station Road.

The open pastoral qualities of the site enhance the tranquillity of Bow Wow, which is part of a well-
used recreational walk, and the peaceful setting of All Hallows Church.

=\ ASOUTH CERNEY NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

Local Green Space(LGS1)
Box Bush Farm Fields

*_\\ |

Soale: 1:2600 @ As
| © Crown copyright and database rights 2013 h
Oranance Survey, 100057526
=

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 19 of 42
Page 170



LGS2: Chapter Manor - Edwards’ College Parkland

This tract of land, from the estate of the former St Augustine Abbey, is situated between Chapter
Manor and Edwards’ College. Itis around 5.1 hectares divided into two enclosures of parkland. A
public footpath with a slab stile crosses the area, providing a much loved recreational walk, from
which there are important, attractive views of both Ann Edwards’ College and All Hallows Church.

The views are historically significant in commemorating Ann Edwards, a major benefactress of the
Parish, who established, for example, a ‘National School’, the descendent of which continues to bear
her name today, with houses for the School Master and Mistress; bedding, clothing, Bibles and
Prayer Books for the poor of South Cerney and the church clock. Her most significant endowment
was a Charity for the benefits of the Widow and Orphans of Clergymen, leading to the construction
of ‘The College’ providing 12 dwellings for eligible persons. Today Ann Edwards’ College is a
privately owned Grade Il listed building and the Charity continues as an almshouse charity, providing
housing in Gloucester to single women with associations to the Anglican Church.

A publication of 1840 (‘A Short Account of the Edwards’ College, built at South Cerney’), describes
the selection of the site of Edwards' College, on land then owned by Ann Edwards’ cousin, Thomas
Jones, who donated it with the specific aim of honouring his esteemed relative:

“He requested that it might be built on the most conspicuous part of his estate, that the beauty of
the edifice might be more extensively perceived, and the compliment intended to his relative more
generally acknowledged. He recommended a portion of a rich and pleasant meadow, conveniently
adjoining the principal highway to the village, as best calculated to promote his object.....”

On the description of the completed building: “The College is pleasantly situated in a park-like
meadow, with an aspect nearly due South. The parish church is a pleasing object as viewed from the
building.”

The College building has a ha-ha, rather than wall, at the front so that the facade can be seen by all
from the Parkland, as long as the Parkland remains an open space around the public footpath. The
College is a building of architectural value and it cannot be separated from the Parkland context.
The Parkland must be preserved as the space which is intrinsic to the design of the College.

The land adjoins the Graveyard of All Hallows Church, thereby protecting the tranquillity of this area,
and providing peaceful access to the Church. The Parkland is an important area for wildlife and is
home to deer, foxes, moles, badgers, owls, grass snakes and bats which utilise the insects which are
found in abundance in the Chapter Manor - Edwards’ College Parkland.

T e |

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 20 of 42
Page 171



\ \
SOUTH CERNEY NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN| \
Local Green Space (LGS2) \

g Chapter Manor - Edwards’ College
=

Soale: 1:2600 @ A4 OO
© Crown copyright and database rights 2018 A t
QOranance Survey 100057 -

o\ e

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 21 of 42
Page 172



APPENDIX |;: LOCALLY LISTED HERITAGE ASSETS

APPENDIX IA: LOCALLY LISTED HERITAGE ASSETS ALREADY RECOGNISED AS NON-DESIGNATED
HERITAGE ASSETS
Sites, Structures or Buildings Already Recognised as Non-Designated Heritage Assets:

Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1985. South Cerney
Conservation Area. Properties included in the direction under article 4 (2)

See http://www.cotswold.gov.uk/residents/planning-building/historic-buildings-conservation-
areas/conservation-area-maps-and-appraisals/article-3-4-directions/

Lower Churn, Bow Wow SE side

Little Atkyns, Church Lane S side

The Ferns, Clark's Hay E side

Manor Cottage, High Street N side

Old Post Office, High Street N side

Cross Cottage, High Street N side

Box Cottage, High Street N side

Orchard House, High Street N side

The Stables, High Street S side

Tanners, High Street S side

Well Cottage, High Street S side

The Maltings, High Street S side

Bridge House, Silver Street E side

Gable Cottage, Silver Street E side

Lime Tree Cottage, Silver Street W side
Ambermead, Silver Street W side

Orchis, Silver Street W side

The Homestead, Silver Street W side
Cotswold Cottage, Silver Street W side

The Cottage, Silver Street W side

Wyken Cottage, Silver Street W side
Chirnlings, Silver Street W side

Berkeley House, School Lane N side

Vine Cottage, School Lane N side

Clover Cottage, School Lane N side

No. 1 (Old Tiles), School Lane N side

No. 20 (Water's Edge), School Lane N side
No.21 (Little End Cottage), School Lane N side
No.1 Barclay Horn, School Lane N side

No.2 Barclay Horn, School Lane N side
Boxbush Farm, Station Road, N side

No.1 Boxbush Cottage, Station Road, N side
No.2 Boxbush Cottage, Station Road, N side
Englefield, Station Road, S side

No.9 Station Road, N side

Plough Cottage (Nos. 10 & 11), Station Road, N side
Bickley Cottage (No. 12), Station Road, N side
No.14 Station Road, N side

Rose Cottage, Upper Up

Providence Cottage, Upper Up

Meadow View, Upper Up

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 22 of 42
Page 173



Rotary House, Upper Up
Japlou, Upper Up

Pear Tree Cottage, Upper Up
The Cottage, Upper Up
Spring Cottage, Upper Up
Sideways Cottage, Upper Up
Dirty Pig Cottage, Upper Up

Sites, Structures or Buildings Already Recognised as Non-Designated Heritage Assets:

Recognition within Conservation Area Appraisals

Identified as ‘Buildings of Special Character’ in the South Cerney Conservation Area Statement 2002.
See Appendix C Map of the Conservation Area.

Converted barn at South Cerney Farmhouse

Chapter Manor, Bow Wow, South Cerney: outbuildings

A building opposite Lower Mill, after the bridge - on Chapter Manor land
The Old Vicarage: buildings within site

Berry Farmhouse: Outbuildings

Post Office, Clark’s Hay

Buildings at Little Atkyns

Maltings, High Street: building in yard

Century House, Silver Steet

The Pontings, Upper Up

Barracks Cottage, Upper Up

The Downings, Church Lane

Amethyst, Clark's Hay

Draycott, School Lane

Ryedale, Station Road

Building on corner of Station Road/Clark's Hay adjoining former Police Station
Old Anne Edwards' School = The Old School

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 23 of 42
Page 174



G/ T abed

APPENDIX IB: LOCALLY LISTED HERITAGE ASSETS MEETING CRITERIA FROM CDCLP

From Cotswold District Local Plan 2011-2031
Table 6: Criteria for Non-Designated Heritage Assets - Buildings and Structures - in Cotswold

District
Social or
Architectural Historic Aesthetic Group Communal

FEATURE / CLASSIFICATION Interest Interest | Age | Rarity Merits Representativeness | Landmark Value Value GPS Ref
Airfield white control tower X X X X SU 052 991
Talland House X SU 044 988
Bus Shelter, High Street X X SU 049 970

SU 048 973
Pennant kerbstones along Silver to
Street X X X SU 048 975
Traditional stone 'slab stile' crossing
dry stone wall on footpath over
Chapter Manor Parkland opposite
Edwards' College X X X X SU 050 974
Traditional stone 'slab stile' on
footpath crossing ditch between
Chapter Manor Parkland and field
next to railway line (where footpath
continues under old railway bridge
towards Golf Course) X X X X SU 051 976
‘Slab’ stile between footpath
running past allotments towards
Chapter Manor parkland, in wall
accessing Graveyard X X X X SU 050 973
Railway Bridge, crossing Bow Wow
(after Chapter Manor). Approach
into village from NE towards Chapter
Manor/Lower Churn X X X X SU 054 975

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 24 of 42




9/ 1 abed

From Cotswold District Local Plan 2011-2031
Table 6: Criteria for Non-Designated Heritage Assets - Buildings and Structures - in Cotswold

District
Social or
Architectural Historic Aesthetic Group Communal
FEATURE / CLASSIFICATION Interest Interest | Age | Rarity Merits Representativeness | Landmark Value Value GPS Ref
Bridge where Wildmoor Lane
crosses old railway line, near Station
Road/Robert Franklin Way SU 057 971
Railway Bridge, Cerney Wick SU 072 953
Lock Keeper's Cottage at South
Cerney Upper Lock X X X SU 046 982
South Cerney Upper lock (infilled) at
Lock Keeper's Cottage X X SU 046 982
South Cerney Middle lock (infilled)
on field below SC Upper Lock Bridge
site X X SU 047 982
South Cerney Lower lock (infilled) on
field below SC Upper Lock Bridge
site X X SU 048 981
Boxwell Springs, Canal Lock on
Thames and Severn Canal X X SU 056 976
Wildmoor Way Upper Lock /
Humpback Lock X X SU 066 974
Wildmoor Way Lower Lock X X SU 071 972
Cerney Wick Lock X X SU 078 960
Cerney Wick Round House X X X X X SU 078 960
Milepost on the Thames and Severn
Canal X X X SU 072 972
ISIS Lakes Holiday Homes X SU 066 971

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 25 of 42




1/ T abed

From Cotswold District Local Plan 2011-2031

Table 6: Criteria for Non-Designated Heritage Assets - Buildings and Structures - in Cotswold

District
Social or
Architectural Historic Aesthetic Group Communal
FEATURE / CLASSIFICATION Interest Interest | Age | Rarity Merits Representativeness | Landmark Value Value GPS Ref
Evidence of the post medieval Ridge
and Furrow field cultivation system: X
Fields to the south of the Thames
and Severn Canal and north of
Wildmoorway Lane SU 06 97
And north of the canal SU 07 97
Remains of post-medieval Water
meadows: X X X
In the north west of the Parish SU 04 98
North of the village between the
Railway Line and Crane Farm SU 05 97

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 26 of 42




Airfield white control tower Significant landmark feature of South Cerney airfield,

; dating from 1936 when RAF Flying School first opened. Art
Deco style.

Airfield was one of first to be bombed by Luftwaffe.
Included in ‘The Buildings of England: Gloucestershire and
the Cotswolds I’ by David Verey and Alan Brooks.

Talland House Described in ‘The Buildings of England: Gloucestershire
R and the Cotswolds I’ by David Verey and Alan Brooks as, “a

characteristic house by Sidney Barnsley, ....built 1919-

1920, .... Has a roughcast stone slate roof with a long, low

front, punctuated by strongly vertical chimneys....with a

porch on ‘Tuscan’ style columns and three gables to the

- o rear.”

Bus Shelter, High Street Given to the village in 1951 by the Womens’ Voluntary

Service from proceeds of paper salvage during WWIL.

19517
This Bus Shelfer, was erecled b)’ i
"Tl’mWn*nmv,Volunrar)l Service §

From I)rocec(ls ()fz‘al)er Salva e

. Durin th01939"’194swar.

Identified in the Conservation Area Statement as
“remnants of the paving materials traditionally used
throughout the village up until the early twentieth
century......Most noticeable are the pennant kerbstones
along Silver Street, which have become rounded with
time.”

V4
Traditional stone slab stile crossing dry Fine example of the use of large locally quarried limestone
stone wall on footpath over Chapter to create field boundaries. Use of such heavy, unwieldy
Manor Parkland opposite Edwards' stone slabs requires an active quarry to be worked within
College reasonable distance, such as the former quarry on
Northmoor Lane. Such stiles are no longer constructed
and historic examples fall into disrepair and may be
removed when field boundaries are revised. This example
is integrated into the adjoining dry stone wall with steps to
enable the wall to be crossed.
Traditional stone slab stile on footpath Example of a stone slab stile (see above) integrated into a

crossing ditch between Chapter Manor
Parkland and field next to railway line
(where footpath continues under old
railway bridge towards Golf Course)

hedgerow field boundary.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 27 of 42

Page 178



Stone slab stile between footpath running
past allotments towards Chapter Manor
parkland, in wall accessing Graveyard

Example of a stone slab stile (see above) integrated into a
stone wall giving access to the Graveyard.

XY

A Group of four surviving Railway Bridges in the Parish crossing the line of the former Midland and
South Western Junction Railway, built in 1891. The bridge adjacent to the Spine Road is a Grade Il
Listed Structure. The remaining three bridges are listed below.

Railway Bridge, crossing Bow Wow (after
Chapter Manor). Approach into village
from NE towards Chapter Manor/Lower
Churn

The Conservation Area Statement describes this bridge as
“a striking symbol of the Railway Age, each of its ten
arches being articulated by piers having two segmental
arches. The whole effect is surprisingly delicate and
unexpected, and typical of the engineering aesthetic of the

”

age.

Railway Bridge where Wildmoor Lne
crosses old railway line, near Station
Road/Robert Franklin Way

A '

This bridge is on the site of the former Railway Station.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 28 of 42

Page 179




Structures within the Parish which were features of the Thames and Severn Canal (opened 1789).
See: www.cotswoldcanals.org.uk and www.cotswoldcanals.net (for the Cotswold Canals in Pictures)

The Lock Keeper’s Cottage (Lock House)

e

The principal watch-house in South Cerney adjacent to
South Cerney Upper Lock. Adjacent to a long since
demolished road bridge and wharves, long since filled in.

South Cerne Upper lock (infilled) at Lock
House

This is the unrestored site of the road bridge and a lock
which is currently infilled. The fall was 2.8 meters.

South Cerney Middle lock (infilled) on
field below SC Upper Lock Bridge site

Cotswold ctures

This is the currently infilled site of South Cerney Middle
Lock. The fall was 2.8 meters. The position of the lock in
the field is marked by coping stones.

South Cerney Lower lock (infilled) on field
below SC Upper Lock Bridge site

This is the currently infilled site of South Cerney Lower
Lock. The fall was 2.8 meters. A solitary coping stone
marks the position of the lock in the field. The fall was 2.8
meters.

Boxwell Springs lock is a partly restored lock. This lock was
built later than the others in 1792, when it was realised
that the canal needed to be lowered if it was to benefit
from the nearby Boxwell Springs. Having a rise of only 1.1
meters, it was known as ‘Shallow’ or ‘Little’ Lock.
Restoration work was carried out in the early 1990s.

Wildmoor Way Upper Lock / Humpback
Lock

This is the unrestored site of a lock and, nearby, a bridge.
The fall was 2.8 meters. There is no remaining sign of any
route across the canal at this point to indicate the purpose
of the bridge (possibly a railway sleeper bridge). Itis
sometimes known as ‘Humpback Lock’ after the humpback
brick arch bridge.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 29 of 42

Page 180




Wildmoor Way Lower Lock This is the site of a partly restored lock and fully restored
A == bridge. The fall was 2.8 meters. The bridge carries a track
over the canal. A nearby restored lock cottage was built in
1831 to accommodate the Lock Keeper from Cerney Wick
who was overseeing the construction of a side-pond to
allow water to be stored between the upper and lower
levels of the lock.

This is the site of a partly restored lock with an adjoining
‘Watchman’s’ Round House (see below). The fall was 1.8
meters. It is the site of a lost brick arch bridge, carrying
the road into Cerney Wick. Restoration work was carried
out in the 1980s to repair some of the considerable
damage caused by a WWII bomb which exploded just
outside the lock.

C This round house at Cerney Wick Lock (see above) is of a

[ <& : design unique to the Cotswold Canals, with just five

2 examples built. This one was used from around 1789 to
1831 by canal employees who combined the duties of
watchman, lengthsman (responsible for a ‘length’ of the
canal) and lock keeper. Since then it has been a private
residence.

Described in ‘The Buildings of England: Gloucestershire
and the Cotswolds I’ by David Verey and Alan Brooks as,
“roughcast with a conical slate roof and Gothick windows.”
Recorded by The Milestone Society.

The plate is one of four replicas cast by DM Foundaries Ltd
of Thrupp in 2018 to replace the missing originals. This
one indicates Walbridge 18 % Inglesham 10 %.

ISIS Lakes Holiday Homes Described in ‘The Buildings of England: Gloucestershire
and the Cotswolds I’ by David Verey and Alan Brooks as,
“the best of the groups of white, weatherboarded holiday

homes......with low two storey groups picturesquely

MDA DL "oy AR Sy w? punctuated by octagonal pyramid roofed towers.” The
architects were Roger Pollard and Associates of Earith,
L Huntington 1994-1995.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 30 of 42

Page 181



Water meadows

Evidence of the ‘ridge and furrow’ field cultivation system
is visible in several locations around the Parish (eg
Gloucestershire Historic Environmental Records 12103,
12108, 12090). This is believed to indicate a change in the
agricultural regime in the post medieval period.

The remains of post-medieval water meadows along the River Churn have been identified in several
locations through the Parish (eg Historic Environmental Records for Gloucestershire 3010, 15116, 49698,
45003, 38935, 12067). 18" (Samuel Rudder) and 19" (Arthur Young) century chroniclers indicate that the
farmers of South Cerney were famous for the success with which these were managed. The practice had
ceased by the mid 20" century. Characteristic features are visible in the following locations:

In the North West of the Parish (GPS SU 04 98)

e -

Post Medieval Water meadows covering over 42 hectares
by the River Churn in both South Cerney and Siddington
Parishes. In the north west of South Cerney parish sluices
and culverts built of brick and stone have been identified.
Recorded in Gloucestershire HER 3010 and:

HER 15116: a virtually complete T shaped brick built sluice
HER 15109: a T shaped stone built sluice

HER 15108: an arched culvert through the railway
embankment, mainly brick with stone blocks

HER 15069: a double sluice of brick and stone.

North of the village beween the Railway Line
and Crane Farm (SU 05 97)

A

HER 12067: Well defined, with some feeder channels
visible, crossed by small clapper bridges made of flat
limestone slabs

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 31 of 42

Page 182




APPENDIX J: RIGHTS OF WAY IMPROVEMENTS

Applications for addition to the Definitive Map of Public Rights of Way already submitted

A. Adoption of two existing paths on Claymeadow Farm as public rights of way

B. Creation of new Restricted Byway along the length of Wildmoorway Lane

Future desired additional footpaths:

1.

To extend Sustrans Route 45 along the dismantled railway line from Footpath BSC 3 to Siddington —
described by the Council as a “de facto permissive path...until it was blocked in 2016”

A new footpath to join the school directly to the Upper Up playing fields

A new footpath to join Wagtail Walk to Huxley Court — this area will be part of a privately owned
‘Public Open Space’ in due course but the path that crosses it is not currently designated.

3(b). A new footpath from Huxley Court along the north side of Lake 16, behind Kingfisher Place, to
Station Road. Again there is a path here but it is not currently designated

‘Redrow Lakeside’ —a new footpath from the top end of Bittern Close at Wagtail Walk to the top
end of Swan Close and onwards to the Public Open Space at Lakeside Park

Designate the current path from Ham Lane (Byway 54) to Broadway Lane behind The Mallards and
Oak Way formally as a public footpath

New footways alongside Public Highway for safety purposes

6. A continuous footway is needed along the entire length of Broadway Lane up to the Spine Road
7. Afootway opposite the Sailing Club at Station Road to join the two sections of footpath to avoid

having to use the road.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 32 of 42

Page 183



2 \ AP )

SOUTH CERNEY I
Joining up the PROWSs Key
Pute Foobeth
N — Putbc Bridlewey
h ——— fealr e Byway

Byway Open To Al Tiaffe
Thin vz n not e Owintive Map of Public fights of Waey
e cfiom Defntve Vie: wod Statement are beld by
Goucwsders e

Courty Councd ot She Mal Gloccester
Community Propoced PROWe
.Ccmn.mf' Progosehs
.Plupmdl Lisled s 1.5 0 Appends J

O New Foctways Alongside Putsic =ighway
ot Satety Puposes

:&:m(ﬁ-m Parsh

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 33 of 42

Page 184



GgT abed

SOUTH CERNEY U SOUTH CERNEY ‘ ,
Joining up the PROWs ; Joining up the PROWSs|_

:

.
.es .
" "

’ !

Pubiio Rights of Way(Existing) Publio Rights of Way(Existing
- Only scourete up o Juy 2010 - Only scourete up o Juy 2010
Key Key

Putde Footpath Putie Foctpath
— Pubic Bldewsy — Putic Bldewsy
— Restricted Syway — Restricted Syway

Byway Open To A Trafie Byway Open To A Trafie
Thin maz @ ot he Defirtve Ming of Pusic Righes of Wy, This maz @ not he Defimtve Ming of Putiic Rights of Way,
S ofcial Defrtve Maz anc Saterert e hws oy . e cfcel Defrtve Maz anc Satervert wve hws oy
G Courty Counct &t Shie el Glowcester . G Courty Counct &t Shie Mall, Glowsester
Community Propoced PROWE ' Community Proposed PROWE
.Ccmnmn Preposes .L":'rmu-n, Proposas
© Propeaes Lnted m 15 in Appards J Edw @ Preposas Lstes en 1.5 in Assends J
o&- Foctweys Alongede Putlc =ighway OM Foctways Alcngaide Putsic =grway

for Sufety Puposes Scale: 1:5000 @ A4 for Sutety Purposes Scale: 1:5000 @ A4
= South Carney Pafsh © Crown copymignt and databaze righis 2018 ] o Comey Posen © Cromn capyright and database fights 2019 A
- Ordnance Survey 100057528 .

Ordnance Survey, 100057526
Cotswold Water Park \

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 34 of 42



08T abed

SOUTH CERNEY
Joining up the PROWSs

SOUTH CERNEY
Joining up the PROWSs

Pusic Rignts of Way(Ealaringt
LNy MOSWS D13 Ay X

ras

e Fooer

i ey,

— D I ey
Sywany Come To A T

S e D e My e Mabeew o aw ey

Camerunity Prapoasd PROWS
STTS S PrCAss
STOPORMS LS A8 TS T Aopet
o*.-»_nuwmum
T RAtey P

D»m_-vqm

Thie wap & wi e Dufiin Ve of Mot Mgt of Yy

EE e e L L Y

Scabe 12000 O A4
© Crown copyrpit and detebase rghts 2000
Ordne~ce Surwy 0O0S a0

A

PLAN 4

Publio Rightc of Way(Exicting)

- Only sccurste up 1o Jdy 2019

Pk Footen
— Puthe Britlewey
— Feslrctnd Byway
Bywey Open To Al Tiafe
Thin vz bn ot the Owirdtve Map of Publc Rights of Wey
e cficw Deeitve Vs w=d Statemect are et by
Gioucesterstre Courty Counc ot Shoe Hell Gloucesser
Community Propoced PROWE
Cemmunty Progcoses
Propossts Listed es 1-5 i Appendie J
(O Now fostways slanguide Putkc Highmey
fot Satety Puposes

] souh corray Pacan

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 35 of 42




SOUTH CERNEY ~ e PLAN 5
Joining up the PROWSs .

Publio Rights of Way({Existing) ' 3
- Only scourete up o Juy 2010 rvey
Key
Putde Footpath
— Pubtdc Bldewsy
— Realricted Syway
Byway Open To A) Trafie

Thin mag = not e Defistve Ving of Pusiic Nighes of Way,
*w ofcel Defrdve Naz onc Satemert woe o oy

G Courty Coundt & Shie Mal Glowester
Community Propoced PROWE
.Commnu Proposes
.ﬂcm Lsted e 1.5 in Apperds J \
ON- Footweys Alongeide Putic =ighway

for Satety Purposes Scale: 1:5000 @ A4

_ A © Crown copyright and delatese fights 2019 A

= South Cermey Padeh Crdnance Survey 100057459 L

AN

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 36 of 42

Page 187



APPENDIX K: GROUNDWATER RISk FLOOD MAP

88T abed

T e

Groundwate: leves e Setwean 050 wnd S becw e

Poere sriece.

Grourdwate’ leves e°e Setwean 0005 arc 050 beow e
Pgoure sriece

Croundwaie: lessn wos witer o of wery reer (within 0028
of) the grourd surtece.

o 047! nﬁ 19km

_mn-._“n“.‘nc—
et ¥ TIACn kcae i e

Triz map noicates where a property or site-specfic assessment
of groundwater hazard i3 recommended. & should be used only
In combination with cther information, for example local or
historical data. Some of the responses contained in this

body the Eriish Geological Survey (BGS). Your use of any
Information contained In this mapping which is derived from or
based upon such data and information i3 at your own risk. Neither
JEA, NERC nor EGS gives any warranty, condiion or
m-bmmmumu

and al sabiy
mmumumouwmwu
Iaw. Your use of the mapping constiutes your agreement to bring
no ciaim aganst NERC or SGS In connection with it

South Cemney Parish -
Risk of Flooding from Groundwater

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 37 of 42




68T abed

APPENDIX L: EVIDENCE BASE REFERENCES

Reg 14 Evidence Base Summary

Author

Date

Folder Title

Business Questionnaire

CDC Local Plan

Conservation Area

Environment

Flooding

Contents
Questionnaire
Business circulated
Survey reminder
Comments made
Response analysis
CDC Local Plan

NPPF

Area Plan
Area Statement
NCA108 Upper Thames Clay Vales

Strategic Environmental Assessment Screening Report

Churn Strategy

JBA Consulting Report

JBA Product Release Note
JBA Groundwater Flood Map

Photographs of Flooding in South Cerney

Steering Group
Steering Group
Steering Group
Steering Group
Steering Group
Cotswold District Council

Ministry of Housing, Communities and
Local Government

Cotswold District Council
Cotswold District Council
Natural England

Cotswold District Council

Environment Agency

JBA

JBA

Dr Maxine Zaidman JBC Consulting

Steering Group

28 February 2017

3 August 2018

February 2019

December 2002
2014

November 2018

November 2015
June 2017
June 2017
June 2017

27 December 2020
& Winter 2020-21

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 38 of 42



06T abed

Folder Title

Household Survey

Lakeside Homes

Public Consultations

Socio Economic Reports

Evidence to Objectives to Policies

Contents

Household Questionnaire
Question Analysis
Comment Analysis

CDC Occupation Guidance Note

Guidance Policy (Four documents)

Holiday Homes numbers analysis

Questionnaire

Response Analysis

Analysis 25.3.17 Introduction
Analysis 16.9.17 Direction of Travel
Lakeside Home analysis
Settlement Strategy South Cerney
Gloucestershire Parish Profile
Rural Place Profile

South Cerney Housing Report

South Cerney Housing Needs Survey

Objectives to Evidence Table

Policies to Objectives Table

Steering Group
GRCC
GRCC

Cotswold District Council Planning
Committee

Cotswold District Council

Robert Cowley South Cerney Parish
Council

Steering Group

Steering Group

Steering Group

Steering Group

Steering Group
Cotswold District Council
ocsl

ACRE

Martin Hutchings GRCC

Laura Mills, Rural Housing Enabler
GRCC

Steering Group

Steering Group

February 2017
February 2017

January 2012

February 2012

June 2018

20 March 2009

8 November 2016
October 2013
November 2016

September 2006

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 39 of 42



APPENDIX M: REFERENCE LIST

These documents/sources are referred to within the Neighbourhood Plan and are publicly available.

Document / Source Date Location
Arthur Young cited in ‘A Short 1840 Published by Thomas Philip Bailey, Market Place,
Account of the Edwards’ College Cirencester
built at South Cerney’
CPRE Map of Tranquillity (Council | 2006 https://www.cpre.org.uk/resources/mapping-tranquility/
for the Protection of Rural
England)
Census 2011 https://www.ons.gov.uk/census/2011census
Cerney Sixty Years Ago: A Talk 1991 Published by the South Cerney Trust
Given in 1982 by Alice Mary
Hadfield
Common Land https://www.gov.uk/common-land-village-greens
Cotswold Canal Trust https://www.cotswoldcanals.org.uk and

www.cotswoldcanals.net/ (Cotswold Canals in Pictures)

Cotswold Design Code 2018 Appendix D in the Cotswold District Council Local Plan

2011-2031 (CDC LP). See below.

Cotswold District Council Local
Plan 2011-2031 (CDC LP)

August 2018

https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/planning-and-
building/planning-policy/adopted-local-plan/local-plan-
2011-to-2031/

Cotswold District Council Tree
Preservation / Protection Orders
(TPOs)

https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/planning-and-building/tree-
works-and-preservation/tree-preservation-orders/

Cotswold Water Park Biodiversity
Action Plan 2006-2017

https://www.waterpark.org/resources-documents/

Cotswold Water Park Integrated 2009 https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/media/3xrnffaz/cotswold-

Landscape Assessment water-park-landscape-character-assessment.pdf

‘Fertile Fields and Small 2001 Published by the South Cerney Trust

Settlements’: A history of South

Cerney and Cerney Wick by

Michael Oakshott

Forestry Commission (Forestry https://www.forestryengland.uk/

England)

Gloucestershire Geology Trust 2005 Gloucestershire Cotswolds Geodiversity Audit & Local
Geodiversity Action Plan (LGAP)

Gloucestershire Historic

Environmental Records

via the Heritage Gateway https://www.heritagegateway.org.uk/gateway/

Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust https://www.gloucestershirewildlifetrust.co.uk/

International Dark Sky Association https://www.darksky.org/our-work/lighting/public-policy/

Localism Act 2011 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/localism-

act-2011-overview

National Character Area Profile
108: Upper Thames Clay Vales by
Natural England

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/countryside-
stewardship-statement-of-priorities-upper-thames-clay-
vales-ncal08

National Forest Inventory

https://www.forestresearch.gov.uk/tools-and-
resources/national-forest-inventory/

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 40 of 42

Page 191




National Planning Policy February https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-

Framework (NPPF) 2019 planning-policy-framework--2

Natural England https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/natural-
england

ONS Population Turnover Rates https://www.ons.gov.uk/

(Office of National Statistics)

Samuel Rudder 1779 A New History of Gloucestershire

Sites of Special Scientific Interest https://www.gov.uk/guidance/protected-areas-sites-of-

(SSSls) special-scientific-interest

South Cerney Conservation December https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/planning-and-

Statement 2002 building/historic-buildings-and-conservation-
areas/conservation-area-maps/

South Cerney Old and New 2015 Published by the South Cerney Trust

Thames Water Drainage Strategy | 2019 https://corporate.thameswater.co.uk/-/media/Site-

for South Cerney Content/Thames-Water/Corporate/AboutUs/Investing-in-
our-network/Drainage-strategies/SouthCerney.pdf

The Buildings of England: 1979 Published by Yale University Press

Gloucestershire and the

Cotswolds I’ by David Verey and

Alan Brooks

The Milestone Society https://www.milestonesociety.co.uk/

and via the Heritage Gateway

above

‘Warmer Bath’ by The Bath June 2011 https://www.bath-preservation-

Preservation Trust and the Centre
for Sustainable Energy

trust.org.uk/campaigning/energy-efficiency/low-carbon-
bath/

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 41 of 42

Page 192




APPENDIX N: NEIGHBOURHOOD CHARACTER ASSESSMENT

The Neighbourhood Character Assessment (NCA) is stored as a separate document, owing to its size.
If you are viewing this document in soft copy, the NCA will be in the same location as this document.

If you are reading this document in hard copy, the NCA will follow within the same binder.

South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031 Appendices Submission Version: Page 42 of 42

Page 193



This page is intentionally left blank



Representation to the South Cerney Neighbourhood Plan Regulation 16
consultation

Please find below comments from Cotswold District Council (CDC) on the South Cerney
Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2031.

CDC acknowledges the work that has been put in by the authors of this NDP and commends
them for their efforts. The Council hopes that the following comments, observations and
suggested amendments will assist with the progress on the plan through to examination. In
general these have been written to try to identify either points which in officers’ opinion may
not meet the Basic Conditions against which the NDP will be assessed, or where the
wording used may be open to interpretation during the development management process.

As context, we’d advise that CDC has committed to a partial update of its Local Plan, with an
aim to adopt an updated Local Plan in 2023. In light of the White Paper, the trajectory of this
update is subject to review. We wouldn’t wish to pre-empt evidence or the options which
will need to be consulted upon in due course, but our expectation is that the focus of
development will remain broadly consistent with our current strategy of directing
development towards our principle settlements. Reflecting the political ambitions of the
Council, housing affordability and climate change considerations are likely to drive some
other policy changes.

Since the Regulation 14 Consultation, Natural England have proposed a significant
expansion of the SSSI designation across the Cotswold Waterpark.

Despite this proposed expansion of the SSSI, the contents and intentions of the
Neighbourhood Plan have not fundamentally changed and therefore the Council stands by
its original conclusion that a Strategic Environmental Assessment is not required.

We note that the change to the SSSI and thus the sensitivity of the area will need to be
taken into account in future particularly in respect of any allocations.

Para 2.1.10 "Many of the Lakes". Most of the lakes now fall within the SSSI.

All policies
In our view policy criterion /clauses should be numbered to aid reference in planning
decisions and also denote 'and/or’ situations.

p.12 Policy SC1 Design Guidelines for South Cerney

We support the intent of this policy.

As the design code will be reviewed along with the rest of the Local Plan we would
encourage a reword, along the lines of "New developments should take account of the
Cotswold Design Code (which is Appendix D to the 2011- 2131 CDC Local Plan) or any
relevant successor design guide or code and the South Cerney Neighbourhood Character
Assessment (NCA) Appendix N.

Page 195 1



The final two paragraphs of this policy are quite lengthy and descriptive and well as being
rather prescriptive. We wonder whether the scene setting would fit better in the reasoned
justification, and the policy revised to recognise the variety of designs in the Waterpark - for
example; ‘Within Lakeside holiday developments, more contemporary designs will be
encouraging that are in character with other buildings in the vicinity’.

p.13. Policy SC2 Areas of separation

Cotswold District Local Plan policies DS2, DS3 and DS4 provide a strategic framework for
directing development towards Principal Settlements together with a presumption against
development outside of Principal and Non-Principal Settlements. These policies collectively
deliver Local Plan Objective 1c which seeks to “Protect the open countryside against
sporadic development, while also avoiding coalescence of settlements, particularly around
Cirencester”.

It is noted that there is strong community support for the policy which is admirable. However,
it is difficult to establish from the paperwork submitted what material planning considerations
are directing the qualifying body to propose this type of policy response in this location.
There is no doubt that the policy has been carefully written and positively framed but the
application of the policy would be restrictive to all development including those exceptional
uses identified in the supporting text to policy DS4. It would be useful to clarify that the
intention of the policy is not to restrict such uses, where need is demonstrated and the
planning balance indicates that it would help achieve sustainable patterns of development.
The policy largely focuses on a visual impact, which is a rather limited lens through which to
judge development - we suggest it needs reference to ‘other relevant policies’. Reference to
“perceptions” is unusual outside of protected designations (e.g. listed buildings).

The Development Management process will benefit from greater clarity on the application of
the phrase ‘compatible with a rural setting’, further justification is welcomed in the policy’s
supporting text.

For the avoidance of any doubt the policy is unable to outweigh the need to address and
meet objectively assessed needs for the District as part of future updates and reviews of the
Cotswold District Local Plan. Equally this would apply to other strategic considerations such
as the delivery of renewable energy. However, significant policy constraints already exist in
the locality which affect future patterns of growth and delivery of infrastructure.

In conclusion, the policy seeks to restrict development across a large area of the parish, to
avoid coalescence of settlements, which are currently in little danger of merging.

p.14 Policy SC3 Homeworking and Microbusinesses

While we welcome and commend the aspiration of this policy, it is not really clear how this
support translates into development proposals. Homeworking and microbusiness
developments are not a class of development - homeworking development would be
residential whereas microbusiness could be either residential or business premises.

Most development that may support such activity will be permitted development.Where
development consent may be required, existing policy addresses the concerns articulated in
the policy.

The issue could be considered as part of the NDP’s design guidance.

Page 196 2



p.14 Policy SC4 Local Employment Opportunities

The current wording sits better as a community action than a planning policy. It is unclear
whether the first phase ‘development creating employment opportunities’ is related to the
use class, or the process of development itself. The policy wording does not set a standard
that must be achieved - thus the action sought could be ‘demonstrated’ by a wholly
inadequate proposal.

p.15 Policy SC5 Employment Development outside the Development Boundary

This policy largely achieves the same as the Local Plan EC policies 1-3, but with different
wording. Lakeside is already protected as an employment site.

Policy EC3 covers employment-generating uses outside of the Development Boundary - as
indeed referenced in the policy. LP para 9.3.4 sets out that proposals must be in ‘keeping in
terms of scale, size and function with the location’ in any case, which should ensure that
adverse impacts on holiday settlements are taken into account.

That being said, there may be some room for a policy that provides ‘local flavour’, and that
highlights that development outside of the Development Boundary could impact on the
existing holiday villages.

As a general point, we would suggest the Local Plan reference is to the ‘Local Plan policies’
with the specific policy referenced in the reasoned justification, to future proof against the
changes to the Local Plan.

The final clause referencing the NCA is unnecessary - any development proposal is already
expected to have regard to the NCA as a consequence of SC1.

p.16 Policy SC6 Holiday Accommodation and Access to Lakes

The policy conflates two separate (albeit related) issues and as written comes across a little
confused. References to holiday homes duplicates the policy position already contained
within the Local Plan and therefore it does not need repeating - although it is understood
why the qualifying body would wish to speak to this point.

A suggested way forward would be to remove references to holiday homes and instead
focus on access and the role that all development has in protecting and enhancing access to
the lakes.

Given the suggested changes it would be worth considering Policy SC6 and SC16 - subject
to references to holiday homes being removed.
Suggested wording is offered:

POLICY SC6
Access to the Lakes

1) Inclusive public access to and from the lakes is a local community aspiration
and development that seeks to protect and enhance public access will be
supported. Development will be encouraged to take account of, and where
possible help to, resolve known issues identified in appendix J.

Page 197 3



p.17 Policy SC7 Non-residential Visitor Facilities

The policy states that development that significantly harms the tranquillity of lakes used for
quiet recreational pursuits (...) will not normally be permitted. ‘Not normally’ is vague -it may
be useful to state what the ‘abnormals’ are that might enable this development —particularly
in the context of Natural England’s notification of the extension of the SSSI.

It would be useful to see reference to the SSSI and the importance of biodiversity and
delivering nature recovery - while it is covered in other local and national policy, we think it
would be useful context.

This policy picks up on the direction of LP EC10 - Development Of Tourist Facilities and
Visitor Attractions and SP5 - Cotswold Water Park: Post-mineral Extraction After Use, but
with an added focus on tranquillity, covered in LP EN4.

p.18 Policy SC8 Existing recreational open spaces and allotments

We support this policy, which provides appropriate recognition and protection of valued open
spaces.

p.19 Policy SC9 Protection of Community and Cultural Facilities

It would be useful if the preliminary line of this policy advises whether this list is exhaustive
or indicative.

There are a number of facilities on the list where the use could be significantly altered
without any need for development - the pharmacy and post office are not distinctive use
classes from other forms of retail.

Class F.2 is new ‘local community uses’ — e.g. small shops, community halls and swimming
pools etc. Changes of use within these classes do not require planning permission.

We suggest some rewording, along the following lines, to ensure the policy is positively
worded:

Development proposals that will result in the less-change of use, or redevelopment ,
including ersignificant reduction in the scale and value of a community and cultural facility,
will be-resisted-unless: only be supported where...

Regarding the final clause - the explanation of economically viable could be put in the RJ
rather than the policy text itself — the approach taken in the Local Plan.

p.21 5.10.1 states "under pressure from the 500,000 annual visitors" - there are a range of
pressures on the biodiversity of the area and not just visitors (we’'d be interested to know
whether this figure is just ‘tourists’ or whether it is inclusive of day ‘visitors’ from Swindon and
Cirencester, or indeed from within the Waterpark). Other pressures include pollution,
invasive species (e.g. mink); disturbance by dog walkers (many of whom could be very
local); farming practices etc. - see para 5.10.5.

5.10.3 The CWP Biodiversity Action Plan has now passed its "sell-by date" as it was an
action plan for 2007-2016. The CWP Nature Conservation Forum is currently working on a

Page 198 4



CWP nature recovery plan but that is only in draft at present. Perhaps it could be referred to
as "in preparation” as the replacement for the BAP, to give this section a bit more currency
in the future.

p.21 Policy SC10 Important Local Ecology Sites

We have reservations about this policy - it is similar to the Local Plan Policy EN9, but we
feel does not quite reflect an appropriate planning balance.

As a very specific point, geology is not part of ecology, so the title is a bit of a misnomer - a
catch all title might be ‘Nature conservation’

We have previously expressed concern over paragraph 5.10.1.3 As part of the consultation
process, a Cotswold Water Park Ranger observed that, the lakes surrounded by holiday
homes have become of little ecological value due to human intervention, and the same can
be said of those stocked by fishing clubs. This may will be an individual viewpoint, but it
rather begs the question why these self-same lakes have been included within a SSSI.

We find para 5.10.2.1 is unclear. The old CWP boundary was set decades ago and is no
longer relevant in terms of Local Plan policy or indeed other complementary policies and
strategies such as the BAP or the new nature recovery plan. These tend to include most of
South Cerney. There are certainly sites of ecological interest that are not included within the
SSSI (both within the old CWP boundary and outside). We suggest an amendment, to
something like, ‘There are many sites of local ecological interest that are not within the
SSSis and that are recognised as being of ecological importance, for example as priority
habitats or by designation as "local sites". These are appreciated ...’

Para 5.10.2.7 ‘under the protection of Natural England as Priority Habitats and/or [SSSI]'.
NE do not specifically protect priority habitats - they are recognised in the relevant legislation
and guidance but are not strictly speaking "protected"

p.22 Policy SC11 Designation of Local Green Spaces

National policy determines the circumstances where development on Local Green Space is
permissible. The second paragraph of this policy is not wholly clear, and introduces
unnecessary complication through the phrase: ‘including development that preserves and
enhances the attributes for which it was designated.

We request that this is changed to something like ‘Proposals for development within the
designated Local Green Spaces will only be supported in very special circumstances’.

p.23 Policy SC12 Local Heritage Assets

We welcome the attention given to non-designated heritage assets by this policy, which is
covered by LP EN12. However, the introductory phrasing may not provide the appropriate
balance as required in local plan policy and the NPPF - ‘historic characteristics are to be
conserved and where possible enhanced’ appears to preclude the redevelopment of such
assets.

Isis Lake holiday homes have been included in the list of NDHAs, we would suggest that

they are not sufficiently old to be counted as a heritage asset, as they are less than 30 years
old and are not of a sufficiently high architectural quality.

Page 199 5}



Taking listing as a parallel process. Government guidance for listed buildings can be found
at -
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_da
ta/file/757054/Revised_Principles_of Selection_2018.pdf
19. Buildings less than 30 years old: such buildings are not normally considered to be
of special architectural or historic interest because they have yet to stand the test of
time. It may nevertheless be appropriate to list some modern buildings despite their
relatively recent construction — for example, if they demonstrate outstanding quality
(generally interpreted as being equivalent to Grade | or II*). The Secretary of State
calculates the age of a building from the point at which the ground was first broken.

p.24 Policy SC13 Redevelopment of Clark’s Hay Garage

References to “barrages” and “does not serve the village” are not in keeping with the good
practice. Plan should be inclusive and objective and devoid of emotive language. The
aspiration to improve the aesthetics of the site is, however, an acceptable planning
response, although it is suggested that the Parish Council include wording that indicates that
it will work constructively with the owner to bring about positive improvements.

p.25 Policy SC14 Alleviation of flooding

e |t might be useful for the RJ to note/ reference EA guidance e.g. on FRAs
(proportional response) e.g. ‘seek Environment Agency advice’ (as per national
guidance (https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-assessment-for-planning-
applications)

e The RJ could for clarity define what is meant by ‘high risk’ as this does not correlate
directly with the map key at Appendix K — for example within what distance of the
ground surface?

e The policy also includes a clause (sentence 2) for a specific requirement - Monitoring
of groundwater levels will be required for at least one year on all such sites. This is
based on the SFRA L2 recommendation, this or any other source should be
referenced as evidence in the RJ to support this. ‘It is recommended that the FRA
should propose a schedule to monitor groundwater levels from the conception to the
completion of a proposed development. This schedule should ideally include a
scheme for monitoring groundwater levels for a year post development to ensure that
there is no alteration to the groundwater regime. (SFRA L2, 2016, pg46)
https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/media/t5pbtk5s/6204-strategic-flood-risk-assessment-
level-2-may-2016.pdf

p.25 Policy SC15 Energy use and renewable energy

Please note that this is an issue that will be explored through the update of the Local Plan,
and thus any policy could be superseded by a new Local Plan policy. This policy states that
environmental improvements should outweigh other considerations, but does not explain
how to weigh up benefits. This could be interpreted as allowing upvc on heritage buildings -
or external cladding. We suggest it needs tempering with some recognition of planning
balance.

In addition this policy SC15 implies an equal weighting however national policy requires
decision makers to give great weight to the conservation of designated heritage assets.

Page 200 6


https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-assessment-for-planning-applications
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-assessment-for-planning-applications
https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/media/t5pbtk5s/6204-strategic-flood-risk-assessment-level-2-may-2016.pdf
https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/media/t5pbtk5s/6204-strategic-flood-risk-assessment-level-2-may-2016.pdf
https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/media/t5pbtk5s/6204-strategic-flood-risk-assessment-level-2-may-2016.pdf
https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/media/t5pbtk5s/6204-strategic-flood-risk-assessment-level-2-may-2016.pdf

Does the Parish have any suggestions as to how these benefits or impacts should be
measured? e.g. sometimes solar panels applications are submitted and given their position
they may generate little electricity and the property has not actually been insulated to
prevent energy loss. A nuanced approach is required around conserving energy first, and
then generating additional energy if appropriate.

p.26 Policy SC16 Sustainable Travel and Rights of Way network

See comments made at policy SC6. THere is no requirement to reference tourism and
leisure - this is implied already. You may wish to “All development...”

p.27 Policy SC17 Reduction of light pollution

We suggest making reference to local plan policy and para 10.4.11 which refers to the
national dark skies mapping information.

The policy does not cover the landscape impacts of lighting on both landscape character and

appearance, and thus to that extent, does not go as far as the NPPF statement at 5.17.2.
We suggest this should be picked up in the policy to ensure it fully reflects the NPPF.

Page 201 7



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 Neighbourhood Planning: Representation to the Regulation 16 Consultation on the South Cerney Neighbourhood Development Plan
	SCNDP SEA and HRA Screening Report
	SCNDP Reg 16 Draft Plan
	SCNDP Consultation Statement
	SCNDP Basic Conditions Statement
	SCNDP Appendix N, NCA
	SCNDP Appendices A-M
	Annex B South Cerney Reg 16 Representation Draft


